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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 5, 2018
(5)

[English)

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met in camera this
day at 5:47 p.m., in room 160-S, Centre Block, the chair, the
Honourable Raymonde Saint-Germain, presiding.

Members of the subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain, Tannas and Tkachuk

).

Also in attendance: Laurence Brosseau and Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, Analysts, Parliamentary Information and Research
Service, Library of Parliament.

Also present: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to rule 12-7(1) of the Rules of the Senate, the
subcommittee continued its consideration of financial and
administrative matters concerning the Senate’s internal
administration.

Topic: Review of the Senate’s Harassment Policy
WITNESS:
As individuals:

Witness 1;

Witness 2;

Witness 3;

Witness 4.

The witnesses each made a statement and answered questions.

At 6:24 p.m., the subcommittee suspended.

At 6:47 p.m., the subcommittee resumed.

At 7:05 p.m., the subcommittee suspended.

At 7:22 p.m., the subcommittee resumed in public.

Pursuant to rule 12-7(1) of the Rules of the Senate, the
subcommittee continued its consideration of financial and
administrative matters concerning the Senate’s internal
administration.

Topic: Review of the Senate’s Harassment Policy
WITNESS:
Carleton University:

Angela Dionisi, Assistant Professor, Sprott School of Business.

Ms. Dionisi made a statement and answered questions.

At 8:14 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned to the call of the
chair.

PROCES-VERBAUX
OTTAWA, le mardi 5 juin 2018
(%)

[Frangais]

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui a huis clos, a 17 h 47, dans la salle 160-S de
I’édifice du Centre, sous la présidence de I'honorable Raymonde
Saint-Germain (présidente).

Membres du sous-comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain, Tannas et Tkachuk (5).

Egalement présents : Laurence Brosseau et Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, analystes, Service d’information et de recherche
parlementaires, Bibliotheque du Parlement.

Aussi présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a Particle 12-7(1) du Réglement du Sénat, le
sous-comité poursuit I’examen de questions financiéres et
administratives se rapportant a la régie interne du Sénat.

Sujet : Examen de la politique du Sénat sur le harcélement.
TEMOINS :
A titre personnel :

Témoin 1;

Témoin 2;

Témoin 3;

Témoin 4.

Chacun des témoins fait une déclaration et répond aux
questions.

A 18 h 24, 1a séance est suspendue.

A 18 h 47, 1a séance reprend.

A 19 h 5, la séance est suspendue.

A 19 h 22, 1a séance publique reprend.

Conformément a larticle 12-7(1) du Reglement du Sénat, le
sous-comité poursuit I’examen de questions financiéres et
administratives se rapportant a la régie interne du Sénat

Sujet : Examen de la politique du Sénat sur le harcelement.
TEMOIN :
Université Carleton :

Angela Dionisi, professeure adjointe, Sprott School of
Business.

Mme Dionisi fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.

A 20 h 14, la séance est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation de la
présidence.
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ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 12, 2018
@)
[English]

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met this day at
5:52 p.m., in room 2, Victoria Building, the chair, the Honourable
Raymonde Saint-Germain, presiding.

Members of the subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain, Tannas and Tkachuk
(5.

Also in attendance: Laurence Brosseau and Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, Analysts, Parliamentary Information and Research
Service, Library of Parliament; Ariane Larouche, Legislative
Clerk, Committees Directorate, Senate of Canada.

Also present: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to rule 12-7(1) of the Rules of the Senate, the
subcommittee continued its consideration of financial and
administrative matters concerning the Senate’s internal
administration.

Topic: Review of the Senate’s Harassment Policy
The chair made a statement.
WITNESSES:
Rubin Thomlinson LLP:

Janice Rubin, Partner;

Michelle Bird, Workplace Investigator and Training.
Nelligan O’Brien Payne LLP:

Christopher Rootham, Lawyer.
University of Calgary:

Sandy Hershcovis, Associate Professor and Area Chair,
Organizational Behavior and Human Resources.

Ms. Rubin and Ms. Rootham made a statement and answered
questions.

At 6:30 p.m., the subcommittee suspended.

A 7:06 p.m., the subcommittee resumed.

Ms. Hershcovis made a statement and answered questions.
At 7:45 p.m., the subcommittee suspended.

At 7:47 p.m., pursuant to rule 12-16(1)(d), the subcommittee
resumed in camera to consider a draft report.

ATTESTE :

OTTAWA, le mardi 12 juin 2018
7N

[Frangais)

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 17 h 52, dans la piéce 2 de I'édifice Victoria, sous
la présidence de I’honorable Raymonde Saint-Germain
(présidente).

Membres du sous-comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain, Tannas et Tkachuk (5).

Egalement présents : Laurence Brosseau et Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, analystes, Service d’information et de recherche
parlementaires, Bibliothéque du Parlement; Ariane Larouche,
greffiére législative, Direction des comités, Sénat du Canada.

Aussi présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a Particle 12-7(1) du Réglement du Sénat, le
sous-comité poursuit son étude de questions financiéres et
administratives se rapportant a la régie interne du Sénat.

Sujet : Examen de la politique de harcélement du Sénat
La présidente fait une déclaration.
TEMOINS :
Rubin Thomlinson, s.r.l. :
Janice Rubin, partenaire;
Michelle Bird, investigatrice et formatrice en milieu de travail.
Nelligan O’Brien Payne, s.r.l. :
Christopher Rootham, avocat.
Université de Calgary :

Sandy Hershcovis, professeure agrégée et directrice de secteur,
Comportement organisationnel et Ressources humaines.

Mme Rubin et M. Rootham font une déclaration et répondent
aux questions.

A 18 h 30, la séance est suspendue.

A 19 h 6, la séance reprend.

Mme Hershcovis fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.
A 19 h 45, la séance est suspendue.

A 19 h 47, conformément a I'article 12-16(1)d) du Réglement,
la séance reprend a huis clos.
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It was agreed:

The draft report, as amended, be adopted; and

That the Chair and the Deputy Chair be empowered to
approve the final version of the report taking into
consideration this meeting’s discussions, and with any
necessary editorial, grammatical and translation changes
required.

At 8:03 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned to the call of the
chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 19, 2018
(3)
[English)

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met this day at
5:53 p.m., in room 2, Victoria Building, the chair, the Honourable
Raymonde Saint-Germain, presiding.

Members of the subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain and Tannas (4).

Other senator present. The Honourable Senator McPhedran
(.

Also in attendance: Laurence Brosseau and Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, Analysts, Parliamentary Information and Research
Service, Library of Parliament; Ariane Larouche, Legislative
Clerk.

Also present: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to rule 12-7(1) of the Rules of the Senate, the
subcommittee continued its consideration of financial and
administrative matters concerning the Senate’s internal
administration.

Topic: Review of the Senate’s Harassment Policy
WITNESSES:
University of Ottawa:

Katherine Lippel, Professor and holder of the Canada
Research Chair on Occupational Health and Safety Law.

Canadian Human Rights Commission:

Monette Maillet, Deputy Executive Director and Senior
General Counsel;

Fiona Keith, Legal Counsel, Legal Services Division;

Marcella Daye, Senior Policy Advisor, Policy, Research and
International Division.

Ms. Lippel made a statement and answered questions.

1l est convenu :

Que I’ébauche du rapport, telle que modifiée, soit
adoptée;

Que la présidente et le vice-président du sous-comité des
ressources humaines soient autorisés a approuver la version
définitive du rapport en tenant compte des discussions
d’aujourd’hui, et en y apportant tout changement jugé
nécessaire, que ce soit au niveau de la forme, de Ia
grammaire ou de la traduction.

A 20 h 3, la séance est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation de la
présidence.

ATTESTE :

OTTAWA, le mardi 19 juin 2018
@)
[Frangais]

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 17 h 53, dans la piéce 2 de I’édifice Victoria, sous
la présidence de I’honorable Raymonde Saint-Germain
(présidente).

Membres du sous-comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Jaffer, Moncion, Saint-Germain et Tannas (4).

Autre sénatrice présente : L’honorable sénatrice McPhedran
(D).

Egalement présents : Laurence Brosseau et Mayra Perez-
Leclerc, analystes, Service d’information et de recherche
parlementaires, Bibliothéque du Parlement; Ariane Larouche,
greffiére législative, Direction des comités, Sénat du Canada.

Aussi présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a I’article 12-7. (1) du Réglement du Sénat, le
sous-comité poursuit son étude de questions financiéres et
administratives se rapportant a la régie interne du Sénat.

Sujet : Examen de la politique de harcélement du Sénat
TEMOINS :
Université d’Ottawa :

Katherine Lippel, professeure et titulaire de la Chaire de
recherche du Canada en droit de la santé et de la sécurité du
travail.

Commission canadienne des droits de la personne :

Monette Maillet, directrice exécutive adjointe et avocate
générale principale;

Fiona Keith, avocate, Division des services juridiques;

Marcella Daye, conseillére principale en politiques, Division
des politiques, de la recherche et des affaires internationales.

Mme Lippel fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.
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At 6:06 p.m., the deputy chair, the Honourable Senator A 18 h 6, I’'honorable sénateur Tannas assume la présidence du
Tannas, took the chair. sous-comité.

At 6:32 p.m., the subcommittee suspended. A 18 h 32, la séance est suspendue.

At 6:34 p.m., the subcommittee resumed. A 18 h 34, la séance reprend.

Ms. Maillet made a statement and, together with Ms. Daye et Mme Maillet fait une déclaration et, avec Mme Daye, et
Ms. Keith, answered questions. Mme Keith, répond aux questions.

At 6:57 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned to the call of the A 18 h 57, la séance est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation de la
chair. présidence.

ATTEST: ATTESTE :

Le greffier du sous-comité,
Daniel Charbonneau

Clerk of the Subcommittee
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 5, 2018

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met this day at
5:47 p.m., in camera and in public, pursuant to rule 12-7(1), to
consider financial and administrative matters (Topic: Review of
the Senate’s Harassment Policy).

Senator Raymonde Saint-Germain (Chair) in the chair.

[Translation]
(The committee continued in camera.)

(The committee resumed in public.)

The Chair: Honourable senators, we are resuming our
meeting of the Subcommittee on Human Resources of the
Standing Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration.

I would like to welcome the general public. The Subcommittee
on Human Resources was struck on December 7, 2017, by the
Standing Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration to review and update the Senate’s policy on the
prevention and resolution of harassment in the workplace.

Before 1 introduce our witness, I would ask the committee
members to introduce themselves, starting on my right.

[English]

Senator Tkachuk: Senator Tkachuk from Saskatchewan.

Senator Tannas: Scott Tannas from Alberta.
Senator Moncion: Senator Moncion from Ontario.
[Translation]

The Chair: I am Raymonde Saint-Germain from Quebec and
chair of the committee. Senator Tannas is the deputy chair.

I am pleased to introduce Angela Dionisi, Assistant Professor,
Sprott School of Business, Carleton University.

I now invite Ms. Dionisi to begin her presentation.

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le mardi 5 juin 2018

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 17 h 47, a huis clos et en séance publique,
conformément a I’article 12-7(1) du Réglement, pour étudier des
questions financicres et administratives (sujet : Examen de la
politique de harcelement du Sénat).

La sénatrice Raymonde Saint-Germain (présidente) occupe
le fauteuil.

[Frangais]
(La séance se poursuit a huis clos.)

(La séance publique reprend.)

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, nous reprenons notre
séance du Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines du Comité
permanent de la régie interne, des budgets et de 1’administration
du Sénat.

Je souhaite la bienvenue au grand public. Le Sous-comité sur
les ressources humaines a été créé le 7 décembre 2017 par le
Comité permanent de la régie interne, des budgets et de
I’administration afin d’examiner la politique du Sénat sur la
prévention et le réglement du harcélement en milieu de travail,
dans la perspective de la réviser et de la moderniser.

Avant de vous présenter notre témoin, je demanderais aux
membres du comité de se présenter, en commengant par ma
droite.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Sénateur

Saskatchewan.

Tkachuk, de la

Le sénateur Tannas : Scott Tannas, de 1’ Alberta.
La sénatrice Moncion : Sénatrice Moncion, de 1’Ontario.
[Frangais]

La présidente : Je suis Raymonde Saint-Germain, du
Québec, présidente du comité. Le sénateur Tannas en est le vice-
président.

J’ai le plaisir de vous présenter Angela Dionisi, professeure
adjointe a la Sprott School of Business de 1’Université Carleton.

J’inviterais maintenant Mme Dionisi a nous faire sa

présentation.
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[English]

Welcome, Professor Dionisi. We will listen to you carefully.

Angela Dionisi, Assistant Professor, Sprott School of
Business, Carleton University: Thank you so much, and good
evening. As was just mentioned, my name is Dr. Angela Dionisi
and I am a professor of management at the Sprott School of
Business, Carleton University.

I would like to start by thanking you all for inviting me here
this evening to share some insights about the topic at hand from
research. I prepared a few comments that I would like to share to
open our discussion, and then I would welcome questions and
comments and discussion following that.

Sexual harassment is a problem in our workplaces that has
existed for a long time. Over the years, we have rightfully seen
our conceptualizations and understanding of this issue grow and
change to reflect the realities of those who are targeted with this
form of mistreatment. While sexual harassment was once seen as
something that was a sexual problem — it was thought to be
behaviour that stemmed from natural or inevitable sexual urges
— we now know that this behaviour is more appropriately
understood as discriminatory conduct that has little to do with
sexual desire and much to do with hostility.

When it comes to defining sexual harassment, we now know
that this mistreatment can take a number of different forms. First,
as was originally called out by feminist scholars back in the
1970s, sexual harassment can take the form of sexual coercion
— or what is often referred to as quid pro quo harassment —
when a woman is threatened with or actually loses her job or job-
related benefits for refusing to cooperate sexually. While this
form of sexual harassment is not as common as some of the other
forms that I’ll be discussing in just a moment, this tends to be
what comes to mind when people think about this issue. These
are the types of behaviours that people believe we’re talking
about.

Somewhat relatedly, sexual behaviours that are not
accompanied by tangible or economic job outcomes but are
nonetheless hostile and create an uncomfortable environment can
also be sexually harassing, for example, addressing colleagues in
a sexually objectifying way, being exposed to unwanted sexual

[Traduction]

Madame Dionisi, soyez la bienvenue. Vous avez toute notre
attention.

Angela Dionisi, professeure adjointe, Sprott School of
Business, Université Carleton : Merci beaucoup et bonsoir.
Comme on vient de la dire, je m’appelle Angela Dionisi et
j’enseigne la gestion a la Sprott School of Business de
I’Université Carleton.

D’entrée de jeu, je tiens a vous remercier de m’avoir invitée
ici, ce soir, pour vous faire part de certains points de vue issus de
la recherche relativement au sujet a 1’ordre du jour. J’ai préparé
quelques observations a votre intention, lesquelles sont
susceptibles d’alimenter nos échanges de ce soir. Une fois mon
exposé terminé, je serai, tout a fait, disposée a répondre a vos
questions, & recevoir vos commentaires et a poursuivre la
discussion a ce sujet.

Le harceélement sexuel au travail est un probléme qui existe
depuis longtemps. La fagon dont nous nous représentons ce
phénomeéne et la compréhension que nous en avons se sont
transformées au fil des ans et elles se sont étoffées pour tenir
compte des réalités de ceux qui sont ciblés par cette forme de
maltraitance. Il fut un temps ou le harcélement sexuel était percu
comme un probléme de nature sexuelle : on le considérait
comme étant un comportement découlant d’envies naturelles ou
d’envies sexuelles inévitables. Or, nous savons maintenant que
ce comportement se comprend de fagon plus juste comme étant
une conduite discriminatoire qui n’a finalement pas grand-chose
a voir avec le désir sexuel. En fait, le harcélement sexuel est
plutét une question d’hostilité.

Lorsqu’il s’agit de définir le harce¢lement sexuel, nous savons
maintenant que c’est une maltraitance qui peut prendre
différentes formes. Tout d’abord, comme cela a été établi par les
chercheurs féministes dans les années 1970, le harcélement
sexuel peut prendre la forme d’une coercition sur le plan sexuel,
ce que I’on décrit souvent comme une forme de chantage visant
I’obtention de services sexuels en échange de faveurs. C’est ce
qui se produit par exemple lorsqu’une femme se voit menacée de
congédiement ou de perdre quelque avantage associé a son
emploi si elle refuse de « coopérer » sur le plan sexuel
— parfois, le congédiement ou la perte d’avantages ne passe
méme pas par 1’étape de la menace. Cette forme de harcélement
n’est pas aussi répandue que certaines autres formes dont je vais
parler dans un instant, mais c’est celle que les gens ont tendance
a se représenter lorsqu’ils pensent a ce probleme. En général, les
gens croient que c’est de ce type de comportement dont nous
parlons.

Les comportements sexuels qui ne s’accompagnent pas de
répercussions tangibles ou économiques en matiere d’emploi,
mais qui, néanmoins, sont des comportements hostiles qui créent
de I’inconfort peuvent aussi étre du harcelement sexuel. Par
exemple, le fait de s’adresser a des collégues en des termes qui
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overtures, unwanted touching, kissing and behaviour of that
nature. This behaviour is referred to as unwanted sexual
attention.

Importantly though, sexual harassment most typically takes
the form of insulting verbal or non-verbal behaviour that conveys
hostile or degrading attitudes, typically about women, but it’s not
sexual. This includes questioning or insulting women’s
competence in the workplace; addressing women in ways that
belittle them, for example, calling them “honey” or “sweetie”;
displaying lewd, pornographic images in the workplace and
distributing sexist jokes. When it takes this form, sexual
harassment is something we refer to as gender harassment.
Gender harassment involves sexual and/or sexist comments,
jokes and behaviours that alienate and demean victims based on
their sex rather than solicit sexual cooperation.

While we now know that sexual harassment still takes the
form of unwanted sexual attention or sexual coercion, much
more sexually explicit or sexually charged forms, sexual
harassment most often manifests as behaviour that, in a sense,
represents or communicates animosity rather than attraction. The
reason for this is that power is at the root of this behaviour.

Regardless of what form it takes, theoretical and empirical
work suggests that sexual harassment is an expression of power
and dominance and is used as a mechanism for protecting or
enhancing one’s sex-based social status. It is behaviour that is
essentially being used as a tool to punish those who threaten a
harasser’s social or gender identity and the benefits derived from
it.

When it comes to understanding what sexual harassment is
and what it looks like in our workplaces, an important
misconception I would like to dispel or call our attention to right
off the bat is that sexual harassment does not have to be — and
typically is not — sexual in nature. Many people are
misinformed when it comes to what motivates sexual harassment
and, by extension, they don’t understand the full spectrum of
behaviours that are, in fact, sexually harassing.

One of the ramifications of the misconceptions surrounding
motive is a restricted understanding of who this workplace
problem affects, a restricted understanding of it’s scope, which is
going to impact policy and its enactment. For example, for the
longest time, sexual harassment was seen as a woman’s problem,

en font des objets a connotation sexuelle, le fait pour un employé
d’étre exposé a des avances sexuelles non désirées, a des
attouchements non désirés, a des baisers et a des comportements
de cette nature. Le terme « attention sexuelle non désirée » est
utilisé pour désigner ce type de comportements.

Cependant, la forme la plus répandue de harcélement sexuel
est un comportement insultant accompagné de paroles sexuelles
ou non qui témoignent d’attitudes hostiles ou dégradantes,
habituellement a 1’égard des femmes, mais sans pour autant étre
axé sur la sexualité. Cela comprend le fait de remettre en
question ou de mépriser la compétence des femmes au travail; le
fait de s’adresser aux femmes en utilisant des termes réducteurs
comme « la petite » ou « fille »; le fait d’afficher ou de faire
circuler des images impudiques ou carrément pornographiques,
ou de propager des blagues sexistes. Ces comportements sont
regroupés sous le terme « harcelement sexiste ». Le harcélement
sexiste englobe les commentaires, blagues et comportements
sexuels et/ou sexistes qui cherchent a dénigrer et a rabaisser la
victime en fonction de son sexe, plutdt que d’obtenir des faveurs
sexuelles.

Bien que nous sachions désormais que le harcélement sexuel
continue parfois de prendre la forme d’une attention sexuelle non
désirée ou d’une coercition de nature sexuelle — des
manifestations beaucoup plus explicites ou beaucoup plus
chargées sur le plan sexuel —, il se manifeste le plus souvent
sous la forme d’un comportement qui, d’une certaine maniere,
traduit ou charrie une animosité plutdt qu’une attirance. La
raison en est que c’est le pouvoir qui est a la source de ce
comportement.

Indépendamment de la forme que ces comportements peuvent
prendre, les travaux théoriques et empiriques qui ont été réalisés
semblent indiquer que le harcélement sexuel est une
manifestation du désir d’exercer son pouvoir et sa domination. Il
s’agit en fait d’'un mécanisme que le harceleur utilise pour
protéger ou améliorer son statut social sexospécifique. C’est un
comportement qui, essentiellement, est utilis¢é comme un outil
pour punir ceux qui menacent 1’identité sociale ou sexuelle du
harceleur et les avantages qui s’y rattachent.

Lorsque 1’on tente de comprendre ce qu’est le harcélement
sexuel et comment il se manifeste en milieu de travail, il existe
un mythe que je tiens ici a déboulonner : le harcelement sexuel
n’a pas nécessairement de connotation sexuelle. En fait, la
plupart du temps, il n’en a pas. Beaucoup de gens ont de fausses
idées au sujet de ce qui motive le harcélement sexuel et, par
conséquent, ils peinent & embrasser le spectre complet des
comportements qui, dans les faits, sont du harcélement sexuel.

L’une des conséquences de cette compréhension déficiente,
c’est que les gens n’arrivent pas a se représenter, précisément
ceux qui sont touchés par ces comportements et la portée que ces
comportements peuvent avoir, ce qui a une incidence sur les
politiques en la matiére et sur la mise en ceuvre de ces politiques.
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as something that was enacted by men against women. We know
that in the majority of cases, or large number of cases, at least,
this is in fact the case. However, social science research has also
found that this is an issue that affects the lives of many men.
While the tangible numbers vary by sample and study, there is
now research showing that upwards of 30 to 40 per cent of men
report having experienced sexual harassment at some point
during their careers, and again this is not something that many
people realize.

We’re also learning that the sexual harassment experiences of
men are quite unique. Research is showing that men by and large
are most typically harassed by someone of the same sex, and the
most common form of their harassment is what is being called
“not man enough harassment.” This is when a man is, for
example, teased about his role in the home or domestic
responsibilities or when he is mocked for failing to participate in
the objectification of women or for not laughing at sexist jokes.
In each of these cases, the content of sexual harassment revolves
again around policing gender role performances. In other words,
it is ensuring that men are behaving as “real men” by bullying
them for their inadequate displays of masculinity.

As we look to legislation or policies that are in place or being
amended, recognizing and emphasizing that victimization can
span gender boundaries is an important step towards ensuring
that all of those who are being affected by this issue are given a
voice.

Finally, when thinking about the scope of sexual harassment,
over the last number of years, there has also been a push within
the workplace mistreatment literature to begin considering how
sexual harassment can create toxic workplace environments that
negatively impact not only those who are directly targeted but
also those who witness this behaviour going on around them.

Studies show that not only are employees aware of their co-
workers’ mistreatment, but they are also negatively affected by
it. This is something we call vicarious sexual harassment. For
example, studies have shown that being exposed to the sexual
harassment of a female colleague is related to a whole host of
negative job-related outcomes, such as work withdrawal and
decreases in commitment and satisfaction. Seeing a co-worker
being harassed has also been linked to anxiety, depression and
other forms of psychological and physical illness.

Par exemple, pendant trés longtemps, le harcélement sexuel a été
per¢u comme étant un probléme de femme, comme s’il s’agissait
de quelque chose dont les hommes se servaient contre les
femmes. Nous savons que, dans la vaste majorité des cas — ou
dans un grand nombre de cas —, c’est effectivement ce qui se
passe. Cependant, les recherches en science sociale ont aussi
permis de constater que ce probléme avait une incidence sur la
vie de beaucoup d’hommes. Bien que les chiffres concrets
puissent varier selon les échantillons et les études, 30 & 40 p. 100
des hommes affirment avoir été la cible de harcélement sexuel a
un moment de leur carriére, ce qui, encore une fois, est une
réalité qu’y échappe a beaucoup de gens.

Nous avons €galement appris que le harcelement sexuel vécu
par les hommes a un caractére particulier. La recherche indique
que les personnes qui harcelent les hommes sont dans la trés
vaste majorité des cas des personnes du méme sexe, et que la
forme la plus commune de ce harcélement pourrait étre décrite
comme étant du harcélement pour manque présumé de virilité.
Par exemple, c’est ce qui se produit lorsqu’un homme se fait
taquiner pour son rdle a la maison ou ses responsabilités
ménageres, ou qu’il est pris a partie pour s’étre abstenu de
participer a 1’objectivation des femmes ou pour ne pas avoir ri de
blagues sexistes. Dans chacun de ces cas, le contenu du
harcélement sexuel est axé sur la confirmation des roles
présumés des sexes. Autrement dit, le comportement vise a
assurer que les hommes agissent comme de « vrais hommes » en
cherchant a intimider ceux qui n’affichent pas leur masculinité
de maniere adéquate.

En ce qui concerne les mesures législatives ou les politiques
qui sont en place ou que I’on entend modifier, il est important de
reconnaitre et de souligner que le harceélement transcende la
frontiére entre les sexes. Cette reconnaissance est essentielle
pour veiller a ce que tous ceux qui sont touchés par ce probléme
soient pris en compte.

Enfin, en ce qui concerne la portée du harcélement sexuel,
disons qu’au cours des derniéres années, la littérature sur la
maltraitance en milieu de travail s’est grandement intéressée a la
fagon dont le harcélement sexuel peut contribuer a 1’instauration
de climats toxiques au travail, climat qui peut avoir une
incidence négative non seulement sur ceux que ces
comportements visent directement, mais aussi sur ceux qui sont
témoins de ces choses.

Les études indiquent que les employés sont conscients de la
maltraitance dont leurs collégues font I’objet, et qu’ils souffrent
eux aussi de cela. C’est ce que I’on pourrait décrire comme du
harcélement sexuel par procuration. Par exemple, des études ont
montré que le fait d’étre exposé au harcélement sexuel d’une
collégue peut avoir toutes sortes de résultats négatifs sur le
travail, comme de [D’absentéisme ou une diminution de
I’engagement et de la satisfaction a 1’égard du travail proprement
dit. Le fait de voir un ou une collégue se faire harceler peut aussi
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This is important when thinking about how we define
workplace sexual harassment. Not only do the ramifications of a
single incident of sexual harassment grow exponentially, so too
do the number of people who could legitimately file a claim for
this type of behaviour. Again, as we look to legislation and
policies that are in place or that are being amended, recognizing
and emphasizing that sexual harassment can be felt by those who
may not be the direct targets is going to be critical.

When we consider the wealth of data that has been produced
showing the negative consequences in terms of job-related
outcomes, psychological outcomes, physical outcomes and so on,
we really see how powerful this behaviour is in the workplace
and, by extension, our need to do something about this. That is,
of course, why we’re here this evening. I understand we’ll be
discussing issues pertinent to that conflict.

The Chair: Thank you very much, professor. We have many
questions.

Senator Tannas: Thank you for being here. We really do
appreciate it. I listened very carefully.

I just wondered if you have seen our harassment policy.

Ms. Dionisi: I have, yes.

Senator Tannas: Do the definitions capture what you think
we ought to be focused on, or do you have some specific
suggestions about what we need to do in terms of additional
words or fewer words?

Ms. Dionisi: Absolutely, yes. Thank you for that question.

I have had the opportunity to take a look at the policy and
consider it with regard to what the research tells us as well as
what Bill C-65 has to say. I do have some comments, and I can
address that specific comment first, if you would like me to.

In line with what I was just saying in my opening comments,
based on the latest sexual harassment research, I would suggest
that some amendments potentially be made to the definition and
scope of this issue. Currently, the definition of “harassment” in
the policy is “any improper conduct by an individual that is
directed at and offensive to another person or persons.”

As 1 just mentioned, vicarious sexual harassment is being
shown to be a significant problem in organizations, so I would
suggest the committee think about slightly amending that

donner lieu a de I’anxiété, a de la dépression et a d’autres formes
de pathologies physiques et psychologiques.

Lorsqu’il est question de harcélement sexuel, ce sont des
choses qu’il est important de garder a 1’esprit. Les conséquences
d’un seul incident sont innombrables, comme le nombre de
personnes qui pourraient a juste titre porter plainte contre ce type
de comportement. Comme je 1’ai dit tout a I’heure, lorsqu’il
s’agit d’examiner les mesures législatives et les politiques qui
sont en place ou qui sont sur le point d’étre modifiées, il est
essentiel de reconnaitre et d’insister sur le fait que le
harcélement sexuel peut étre ressenti par ceux qui n’en sont pas
directement la cible.

Lorsque nous examinons la quantité de données, qui ont été
amassées sur les répercussions négatives du harcélement sur le
travail, sur ses conséquences psychologiques, sur ses
conséquences physiologiques, et cetera, nous constatons toute la
place qu’occupent ces comportements sur les lieux de travail, et
nous reconnaissons par ricochet la nécessité d’intervenir a cet
égard. C’est, bien entendu, la raison de notre présence ici, ce
soir. Je crois comprendre que nous allons discuter des enjeux
relatifs & ce phénomeéne néfaste.

Le président : Merci beaucoup, madame Dionisi. Nous avons
beaucoup de questions a vous poser.

Le sénateur Tannas : Merci d’étre 1a. Votre présence est trés
appréciée. J’ai écouté attentivement votre exposé.

Je me demandais simplement si vous avez vu notre politique
sur le harcélement.

Mme Dionisi : Oui, je I’ai vue.

Le sénateur Tannas : Les définitions décrivent-elles ce sur
quoi nous devrions nous concentrer, ou avez-vous des conseils
précis a nous donner a propos de ce que nous devrions étoffer ou
raccourcir?

Mme Dionisi : Absolument, oui. Merci de cette question.

J’ai eu ’occasion d’examiner la politique dans I’optique de ce
que nous dit la recherche a propos du contenu du projet de
loi C-65. J’ai effectivement certaines observations a formuler, et
je peux commencer par ce sujet-1a, si vous voulez.

Conformément a ce que je disais dans mon exposé et en me
fondant sur les dernieres recherches en matiére de harcélement
sexuel, je crois que certaines modifications devraient étre
apportées a la définition et a la description de la portée de ce
probléme. La politique actuelle décrit le harcélement comme
suit : « Tout comportement inopportun et injurieux, d’une
personne envers une ou envers d’autres personnes [...] ».

Comme je viens de le dire, il a été montré que le harcélement
sexuel par procuration est un probléme de taille au sein des
organisations, alors je conseillerais au comité d’envisager la
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definition such that those instances would be accounted for. As
one suggestion, it could add “an improper conduct by an
individual that is directed at or indirectly encountered,” for
instance. Doing so would help to account for cases where one
may not be the direct target of harassment but still be negatively
affected by it. In fact, Bill C-65 now allows for claims to be
made with regards to psychological illnesses. Research would
suggest this is a likely outcome of that vicarious exposure to
harassment, so that would be one suggestion.

Moreover, I would also suggest that the definition of “sexual
harassment” itself be amended slightly to better account for the
most common form of sexual harassment, which is gender
harassment. Currently, the definition is “sexual harassment is
any conduct, comment, gesture or contact of a sexual nature.” It
would be my suggestion to add to that “or sexist nature.” In so
doing, we can call attention to the fact that sexual harassment is
not just sexual; it can be sexist conduct as well. That’s important,
because it helps to dispel some of those misconceptions that exist
out there about the types of behaviours that are considered to be
harassing. That would be the second recommendation I would
make.

Further to that, I noticed in Appendix B, you have some
questions and so on that are stated with the intent of trying to
instruct people on evaluating a situation to determine whether it
is harassing, so potentially including several examples of gender
harassment, of vicarious harassment and, as I was saying in my
opening comments, of male sexual harassment. Particularly with
regards to that third point, that would go a long way, especially
given many men are hesitant to come forward. There is not the
same social recognition of that conduct. Many men may not even
really know for certain that the behaviours they are experiencing
as being uncomfortable and unpleasant could legitimately be
determined or be defined as sexual harassment. So perhaps
further qualifying that expanded scope and including some
examples in the appendix might be helpful.

Senator Tannas: Thank you.

I need to let the gender thing marinate with me, but regarding
vicarious harassment, we are all conscious here on the Hill. We
have a very public case right now of a person who has been
accused of being both a harasser, a vicarious reporter and on and
on. Would you not agree that the vicarious harassment issue
would only be in play if the initial harassment was unresolved
and continuing? Would we not be better off, if we’re going to go
down this road, so that we don’t get people — busybodies —
running around reporting one incident,on some kind of a crusade.

possibilité de modifier 1égérement cette définition afin d’y
inclure cette forme de harcélement. Par exemple, vous pourriez
ajouter « tout comportement inopportun et injurieux qui
toucherait directement ou indirectement une ou des personnes »,
ou quelque chose de semblable. En faisant cela, vous tiendriez
compte de ceux qui ne sont peut-étre pas la cible du harcélement,
mais qui en ressentent néanmoins les effets négatifs. En fait, le
projet de loi C-65 permet désormais de reconnaitre les
allégations en matiére d’affections psychologiques. La recherche
reconnait que ces pathologies sont une conséquence plausible de
I’exposition au harcélement par personne interposée. C’est un
exemple de ce que vous pourriez changer.

De plus, je crois que la définition de « harcélement sexuel »
devrait étre modifiée pour mieux rendre compte de la forme de
harcelement la plus répandue, le harcélement sexiste.
Présentement, la définition parle de « comportement, propos,
geste ou contact d’ordre sexuel [...] ». Je crois qu’il y aurait lieu
d’ajouter la notion de « comportement, propos, geste ou contact
d’ordre sexuel ou de nature sexiste ». En faisant cela, vous
pourriez attirer ’attention sur le fait que le harcélement sexuel
n’est pas que sexuel, mais qu’il englobe aussi les comportements
sexistes. C’est important, puisque cela aiderait a dissiper
certaines idées fausses qui circulent a propos des types de
comportements qui sont considérés comme du harcélement.
Voila pour ma deuxiéme recommandation.

Dans le méme ordre d’idées, j’ai remarqué qu’a I’annexe B
vous avez des questions, et cetera, qui sont énoncées dans le but
d’aider les gens a évaluer une situation dans le but d’établir s’il
s’agit de harcélement. Je crois qu’il y aurait lieu d’y inclure
plusieurs exemples des différentes formes de harcélement : le
harcélement sexiste, le harcélement par procuration et, comme je
le disais dans mon exposé, le harcélement sexuel pour manque
présumé de virilité. Je crois que cette troisieme forme de
harcélement aurait beaucoup de mérite a étre mentionnée, car les
hommes sont trés réticents a signaler ces comportements. La
reconnaissance sociale a cet égard n’est pas aussi grande que
pour les autres formes de harceélement. Beaucoup d’hommes ne
savent peut-étre méme pas avec certitude que ce qu’ils vivent
comme quelque chose d’inconfortable et de déplaisant pourrait, a
juste titre, étre désigné ou défini comme du harcélement sexuel.
Par conséquent, il serait assurément utile d’inclure toutes ces
conjugaisons dans I’annexe B et de fournir des exemples idoines.

Le sénateur Tannas : Merci.

Il faut que je laisse reposer un moment cette question du
harcelement sexiste, mais en ce qui concerne le harceélement par
procuration, je crois que tout le monde ici sur la Colline est
conscient de cela. Il y a présentement une affaire hautement
médiatisée au sujet d’une personne que 1’on accuse d’étre a la
fois un harceleur, un rapporteur par procuration, et cetera.
Diriez-vous que la question du harcélement par procuration ne
pourra entrer en jeu que si le harcélement initial n’est pas résolu
et qu’il continue? Ne serions-nous pas mieux avisés d’aller dans
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Rather, we actually deal with the workplace issue of an
uncomfortableness that comes by witnessing something that
never gets resolved, doesn’t get resolved, doesn’t appear to get
resolved or is repeated. Is that not what we’re trying to get after
here — to make sure we don’t have a busybody, for lack of a
better word, who has decided they are going to make a point at
somebody else’s expense?

Ms. Dionisi: The danger around that is that if a claim has to
be made first by a direct target in order for a vicarious situation
to be —

Senator Tannas: No, I’'m not saying that. I’'m saying that
somebody wouldn’t be able to say, “I was at a cocktail party and
someone said something terrible yesterday to another person.
Now I want to make a big fuss about it.”

Ms. Dionisi: Right.

Senator Tannas: But if somebody said something and that
person was injured and it’s continuing, or that person doesn’t
want to report it and it’s kind of unresolved. Do you know what I
mean? There is a difference. How do we separate that?

Ms. Dionisi: Right. Your comments bring to light another
issue | wanted to talk about at some point, which is the idea of
bystanders. What role do witnesses to events have in terms of
intervening, communicating to either a harasser or target that
they’re aware of what’s happening or potentially reporting
something to a supervisor.

Senator Tannas: Maybe that’s what I’m missing here. A
bystander would be the busybody thing. You’re saying that I’'m
saying, “I was injured because I saw this.”

Ms. Dionisi: Yes, exactly.

Senator Tannas: I see. Okay, thank you.
Senator Jaffer: Thank you for being with here.
Ms. Dionisi: Thank you for having me.

Senator Jaffer: I want to pick up on the bystander. In the
Canadian Armed Forces, they have the bystander program,
where they encourage people. Normally, we see that as being a
busybody, but in the Canadian Armed Forces, they encourage it
as a way of supporting people who are harassed. Could you tell
us what we would need to put in place to encourage people to be
bystanders, to speak up or be there for that person in the way I
understand they’re doing it in the CAF? Apparently, it is very
effective.

cette direction, afin d’éviter de nous retrouver avec des gens
— des zélés — qui courraient dans tous les sens pour rapporter
un incident apres 1’autre, comme s’ils étaient en croisade. Au
lieu de cela, nous devons composer avec ce probleme de
I’inconfort associé, au fait d’étre témoin de quelque chose qui ne
se régle jamais, qui n’est jamais réglé ou qui se répéte. N’est-ce
pas ce que nous tentons de faire ici, c’est-a-dire de nous assurer
que nous n’allons pas nous retrouver avec un fouineur — a
défaut d’un meilleur terme — qui se donnerait pour mission de
prouver quelque chose aux dépens de quelqu’un d’autre?

Mme Dionisi : Le danger avec cela, c’est que, s’il faut
d’abord attendre qu’une allégation soit faite par une cible directe
pour qu’une situation de harcélement par procuration soit...

Le sénateur Tannas : Non, ce n’est pas ce que je dis. Je dis
que quelqu’un ne serait pas en mesure de dire : « J’étais a une
réception, hier, et quelqu’un a dit des choses atroces a une autre
personne. Maintenant, je veux en faire toute une affaire. »

Mme Dionisi : Je vois.

Le sénateur Tannas : Mais si quelqu’un disait quelque chose
et que cette personne était 1ésée et que cela continuait, ou que
cette personne ne voulait pas le rapporter et que les choses
n’étaient en quelque sorte pas résolues. Voyez-vous ce que je
veux dire? Il y a une différence. Comment pouvons-nous tracer
la ligne?

Mme Dionisi : Je vois. Vos observations renvoient a une
autre question, a cette notion de spectateur, du témoin. Quelle
responsabilité les témoins devraient-ils avoir lorsqu’il s’agit
d’intervenir, d’informer le harceleur ou la cible qu’ils sont au
courant de ce qui se passe et, potenticllement, de signaler la
chose a un supérieur.

Le sénateur Tannas : C’est peut-étre ce qui m’échappe. Un
spectateur pourrait devenir un fouineur. Vous dites que je dis :
« Jai été blessé parce que j’ai vu cela. »

Mme Dionisi : Oui, exactement.

Le sénateur Tannas : Je vois. D’accord, merci.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Merci de votre présence parmi nous.
Mme Dionisi : Merci de me recevoir.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je veux continuer avec cette notion de
témoin. Les Forces armées canadiennes ont un programme pour
les témoins, qui visent & inciter les gens a dénoncer.
Normalement, une personne comme cela serait considérée
comme un trouble-féte, mais dans les Forces armées
canadiennes, c’est quelque chose que ’on soutient comme
moyen pour aider les victimes de harcélement. Pouvez-vous nous
dire ce que nous devrions mettre en ceuvre pour encourager les
gens a étre des témoins, a se faire entendre ou a étre 1a pour la
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Ms. Dionisi: Absolutely. Studies show that very few victims
of sexual harassment actually report their mistreatment. There
are a number of reasons for that. Victims don’t believe that they
will be taken seriously. Victims are also worried about secondary
victimization and retaliation. They may be hesitant to put their
complaint into writing and have it put into their formal
employment file.

A fair bit of research in the last number of years is showing
that bystanders have an important role to play in helping to
address mistreatment in the workplace more generally and sexual
harassment specifically. There are a number of things that would
prevent a bystander from intervening. There is a long history of
research showing the effects of diffusion of responsibility and so
on. Just because people are witnessing sexual harassment in the
workplace doesn’t mean they will come forward. Research has
been focusing on the fact that this could very well be an
important avenue through which we can combat sexual
harassment, so what can we do to encourage that, which is, I
think, your question.

We’re finding that working language into policies, first of all,
that stresses the responsibility that bystanders have to play in this
issue can be very effective. That was one of the
recommendations that I was going to make in terms of the
Senate’s policy, whether it’s in the general comment section or
the context section. That is, having a statement to that effect,
namely that it’s the responsibility of everybody in the workplace
to work together to address this issue. If you see an instance of
workplace sexual harassment going on around you, you have a
responsibility to do something about that.

I would qualify that by providing different avenues for a
bystander to take, whether that’s reporting to a supervisor or
confronting a harasser and saying, “That behaviour is wrong. We
don’t accept that here. I don’t support that. What are you doing?”
Or going up to a victim after the fact and saying, “Look, I saw
what happened. I’'m here to support you. Can I help you make a
report? Can I help you find other supports?” In other words,
being an advocate for a target of harassment. These sorts of
examples could be potentially included in the policy to give
some guidance to a witness. Working that kind of language into
policies is an important thing to consider.

Research is also showing that one of the best ways we can
encourage this type of behaviour is through implementing a
bystander intervention portion into our training. Organizations
now must have training for their employees on workplace sexual
harassment. It’s being suggested that a component of that

victime, comme cela se fait dans les FAC, du moins, de ce que
j’en comprends? Ce programme est apparemment trés efficace.

Mme Dionisi : Absolument. Des études nous montrent que
les victimes de harcélement sexuel sont peu nombreuses a
rapporter la maltraitance dont elles font 1’objet. Il y a un certain
nombre de raisons a cela. Les victimes ne croient pas qu’on les
prendra au sérieux. Elles craignent aussi la victimisation
secondaire et les risques de représailles. Il se peut qu’elles soient
hésitantes a formuler leur plainte par écrit en sachant que cela va
se retrouver dans leur dossier d’emploi officiel.

Ces derniéres années, un nombre substantiel de recherches ont
été faites pour démontrer que les spectateurs ont un rdle
important a jouer pour remédier au probléme de la maltraitance
au travail en général, et au probléme de harcelement sexuel en
particulier. Il y a un certain nombre de choses qui pourraient
empécher un témoin d’intervenir. D’innombrables recherches ont
montré les effets de la diffusion de la responsabilité, et cetera. Ce
n’est pas parce que les gens sont témoins de harcélement sexuel
au travail qu’ils vont nécessairement le signaler. La recherche
s’est focalisée sur le fait que cela pourrait trés bien étre un filon
important pour nous aider a combattre le harcélement sexuel,
alors que pouvons-nous faire pour encourager cela? Je crois que
c’est la question que vous vous posiez, non?

On constate tout d’abord que le fait de parler de Ia
responsabilité des témoins dans les politiques peut donner
d’excellents résultats. C’est 1a I’une des recommandations que je
voulais faire au sujet de la politique du Sénat, que ce soit dans la
section des généralités, ou la section du contexte. Il serait bon
d’avoir un énoncé a ce sujet, a savoir que la lutte contre le
harcélement en milieu de travail est la responsabilité de tous et
chacun. Si quelqu’un est témoin d’une situation de harcélement
sexuel, il a la responsabilité d’agir.

Je préciserais la nature de cette responsabilité en fournissant
quelques avenues que peut emprunter un témoin, soit rapporter
les faits a un superviseur ou confronter le harceleur en lui disant
étre contre ce comportement, qu’il agit mal, que 1’on n’accepte
pas cela ici et qu’il doit prendre conscience de ses gestes. Ou
encore aller voir la victime aprés coup pour lui dire qu’il a vu ce
qui s’était passé, et qu’il est 1a pour ’appuyer, qu’il peut 1’aider
a faire un rapport, ou encore 1’aider a trouver du soutien. En
d’autres mots, se faire le défenseur d’une personne qui est la
cible de harcélement. On pourrait inclure ce genre d’exemples
dans la politique pour orienter les témoins. Il est important de
penser a la possibilit¢é d’inclure ce genre de libellé dans une
politique.

Les recherches indiquent également qu’une des meilleures
facons d’encourager les témoins a agir est d’inclure dans la
formation un volet sur les fagons pour eux d’intervenir. Les
organisations doivent maintenant offrir a leurs employés une
formation sur le harcélement sexuel en milieu de travail. On
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training revolves around how to be a good bystander, what
avenues to take, how you should approach a victim or a
perpetrator, and making that part of the culture via what we’re
educating our employees on.

Senator Jaffer: This is a very small place. There also needs
to be a safe place for bystanders. It’s a different culture. I know
that in the Armed Forces they now have a formal bystander
culture, but it’s taken some developing. Maybe we could work
with you as to how the policy can be adopted, because people
have to be seen as being the good Samaritan or a good friend, or
more. It’s almost a separate thing. Maybe you can give us some
ideas on the bystander.

I want to go to another place. Listening for a few meetings to
people with whom we work has been a real eye-opener. Again,
we are 105 silos. We work on our own and we really don’t know
what is happening around us, or not much, even though we see
each other a lot. It’s become very obvious, for people with whom
we work, that trust is a big issue. They don’t trust. They’ve said
that they would like somebody from outside. I respect that
because I can see that trust is a big issue. How do we go about
creating a safe place?

Ms. Dionisi: That’s a tough question. It has a lot of different
components to it. I think the ultimate goal is to create a culture
where, as you said, trust is infused throughout. That’s going to
take policies, training and time.

I think that leadership has a big role to play. In fact, research
shows that within organizations — and there have been studies
looking at women specifically — women report that when their
leaders not only care about this issue but also follow through on
what they promised, follow through on policies and so on, they
are not only more likely to report an instance of sexual
harassment that they are personally experiencing but also that the
culture around sexual harassment is much more positive in terms
of it being something that is seen as unacceptable. Rates of
sexual harassment go down. So there is something to be said for
the behaviour of leaders. Leaders need to be following through
on the promises that are made in policies and otherwise. They
need to be role modelling the proper behaviour. They need to be
monitoring their workplaces and being very aware of what is
going on. When those who are in positions of power start to
behave in a way that is trustworthy, then that can start a cycle
that filters down.

Senator Jaffer: Let me stop you there.

The Chair: Briefly please, senator. Do you have a question?

suggere donc qu’un volet de cette formation porte sur les fagons
de s’y prendre pour étre un bon témoin, les avenues possibles,
les fagons d’aborder une victime ou un agresseur, afin de
sensibiliser les employés et d’ancrer cela dans la culture
organisationnelle.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Notre milieu de travail est trés petit. 11
faut aussi que les témoins bénéficient d’un endroit siir. C’est une
culture différente. Je sais que les forces armées ont maintenant
une culture officielle au sujet des témoins, mais il a fallu la
mettre au point. Nous pourrions peut-étre travailler avec vous
pour que vous nous indiquiez comment faire adopter la politique,
car il faut que le témoin soit vu comme un bon samaritain, un
bon ami, ou plus encore. C’est presque un ¢lément distinct. Vous
pourriez peut-étre nous donner des idées au sujet des témoins.

Je veux maintenant vous amener ailleurs. Nous avons passé
quelques réunions a écouter des gens avec qui nous travaillons,
et cela nous a vraiment ouvert les yeux. Encore une fois, nous
sommes 105 silos. Nous travaillons dans notre propre silo et
nous ne savons pas vraiment ce qui se passe autour de nous, ou
trés peu, méme si nous nous voyons souvent. Il est devenu trés
évident que la confiance est un grave probléme pour les gens
avec qui nous travaillons. Ils n’ont pas confiance. Ils ont dit
souhaiter avoir quelqu’un de ’extérieur. Je respecte cela, car je
peux voir que la confiance est un grave probléme. Comment
devons-nous procéder pour créer un endroit sir?

Mme Dionisi : C’est une question complexe, qui comporte
divers éléments. Le but ultime est de créer une culture, comme
vous 1’avez mentionné, ou la confiance régne partout. Pour y
arriver, il faut des politiques, de la formation et du temps.

Je pense que les dirigeants ont un rdle trés important a jouer.
Les recherches montrent, en fait, qu’au sein des organisations
— et il y a eu des études qui ont porté précisément sur les
femmes —, les femmes disent que lorsque leurs dirigeants se
soucient du probléme et qu’ils donnent suite a leurs promesses,
qu’ils mettent en place des politiques, et cetera, elles sont plus
enclines a rapporter les cas de harcélement sexuel dont elles sont
victimes, et aussi que le harcélement est alors per¢gu comme étant
inacceptable et que la culture prend une tournure positive. Les
taux de harcélement sexuel chutent. Le comportement des
dirigeants est donc important. Ils doivent donner suite & leurs
promesses de mettre en place des politiques, et cetera. Ils doivent
précher par I’exemple. Ils doivent surveiller de prés ce qui se
passe dans leur milieu de travail. Lorsque les gens en situation
d’autorité ont des comportements dignes de confiance, ces
comportements peuvent alors percoler vers le bas.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Permettez-moi de vous arréter ici.

La présidente : Sénatrice, soyez bréve, s’il vous plait. Avez-
vous une question?
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Senator Jaffer: I wasn’t going to do a sermon. I did have a
question.

The Chair: Please make your comment and, if you have other
questions, we’ll come on second round.

Senator Jaffer: We’ll go on second round.
The Chair: Thank you.

Senator Tkachuk: We talked earlier about the particular
situation the Senate and senators are in. This whole question of
harassment is sort of a learning experience for society. It’s a
twentieth century phenomenon. Women weren’t in the
workforce. Now they’re in the workforce, and new behaviour has
to be learned by the people who are in charge.

MPs and senators were not absent from that. Not too long ago,
30 years ago, most MPs and senators were all men. The
executive assistants were almost all women. I would say that
today, a lot more women are MPs and senators. I think that will
all change, because the executive assistants haven’t changed.
They are still almost mostly women. Even though about
40 per cent of the Senate is men, I would say most of the
executive assistants are all women.

I talked earlier to some of the people who were here. |
mentioned having an outside person. We really don’t have a
pyramid structure here. We have a very flat, horizontal structure
of senators and executive assistants. The administration is there
to serve the Senate offices, so they are not really part of that
group, except at a bit of a distance. I had mentioned to some of
the others that a place for them to go to would be outside. That is
my first question.

My other question is: You spent most of your time talking
about sexual harassment, but is that the majority of harassment
or is it the other part? I’ve heard a lot about this in my time.
There are yellers, there are screamers and there are people who
are abusive. I’'m not sure if that’s a larger percentage than, say,
sexual, but I would say it’s a pretty large group of people.

Ms. Dionisi: Yes, absolutely. There is no question that other
forms of harassment, such as workplace bullying, different —

Senator Tkachuk: Racist comments, homophobic, those
things — those are all harassment if the boss is constantly
bullying the staff for a particular reason that doesn’t make any
sense.

Ms. Dionisi: Or a co-worker.,

Senator Tkachuk: Or a co-worker.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je ne voulais pas faire un discours, mais
j’avais bien une question.

La présidente : Allez-y, et si vous avez d’autres questions,
vous pourrez les poser quand votre tour reviendra.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je vais attendre que mon tour revienne.
La présidente : Merci.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Nous avons parlé un peu plus tot de
la situation particuliere dans laquelle se trouvent le Sénat et les
sénateurs. Toute la question du harcélement est, en quelque
sorte, une expérience d’apprentissage pour la société. C’est un
phénoméne du XX€ siécle. Auparavant, les femmes n’étaient pas
sur le marché du travail. Elles en font partie maintenant, et les
dirigeants doivent apprendre a se comporter différemment.

Les députés et les sénateurs n’y ont pas échappé. Il n’y a pas si
longtemps, 30 ans, les députés et les sénateurs étaient presque
tous des hommes, et ils avaient presque tous des adjointes
administratives et non pas des adjoints administratifs.
Aujourd’hui, nous avons beaucoup plus de femmes qui sont
sénatrices ou députées. Je pense que tout cela va changer, car ce
sont toujours des femmes, en grande majorité, qui occupent ces
postes. Méme si prés de 40 p. 100 des sénateurs sont des
hommes, je dirais que la plupart ont des adjointes administratives
et non pas des adjoints administratifs.

J’ai discuté un peu plus tot avec quelques-unes des personnes
qui étaient ici. J’ai parlé d’avoir quelqu’un de I’extérieur. Nous
n’avons vraiment pas une structure pyramidale ici. Nous avons
une structure trés horizontale de sénateurs et d’adjoints
administratifs. L’administration est 1a pour servir les bureaux des
sénateurs, alors les gens qui y travaillent ne font pas vraiment
partie du groupe, si ce n’est un peu de loin. J’avais mentionné a
certains que I’endroit ou il pourrait aller serait a I’extérieur. C’est
ma premiere question.

Mon autre question est la suivante : vous consacrez le plus
clair de votre temps a parler de harce¢lement sexuel, mais est-ce
la principale forme de harceélement, ou est-ce 1’autre? J’en ai
beaucoup entendu parler a mon époque. Il y avait des gens qui
criaient, qui hurlaient et qui étaient méchants. Je ne sais pas si
cela représente un plus grand pourcentage que, disons, le
harcélement sexuel, mais je dirais qu’il y en a beaucoup.

Mme Dionisi : Oui, tout a fait. Il y a bel et bien d’autres
formes de harcélement, comme I’intimidation...

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Les commentaires racistes,
homophobes, par exemple; ce sont aussi des formes de
harcélement si le patron cherche toujours a intimider son
personnel pour une raison qui n’a aucun sens.

Mme Dionisi : Ou un collégue.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Ou un collégue.
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Ms. Dionisi: Absolutely. My area of expertise is sexual
harassment. In terms of commenting on prevalence rates of other
types of harassment and so on, I can’t give you those numbers,
but there is no denying that all of these types of mistreatment do
go on and can have many of the same negative effects.

Senator Tkachuk: For sure.

Ms. Dionisi: In terms of sexual harassment specifically and
one of the comments that you made with regards to an outside
person, do you mean in terms of seeking supports?

Senator Tkachuk: I think they have a problem. Who do they
go to complain to? We don’t really have a human resource group
— I mean, they are part of the administration which is there to
serve senators. They are an extension of a Senate office. Most of
them are all individuals, so we would have an office of one or an
office of two. There are very few if any offices that have more
than two people in them. So they’re very tiny, and it’s a boss-
and-employee relationship in each little office. It’s complicated.

Ms. Dionisi: Right, and that poses an important set of
circumstances that we need to be aware of. It’s problematic when
a target of sexual harassment has to go to an immediate
supervisor or a supervisor of some type to report their
mistreatment. There are a few reasons for that, one of which is
that sometimes it is that person who is doing the harassing or is
part of the larger situation. In many cases, the individual is a
male so there are some power dynamics there that make it
problematic.

Research suggests it is very important to provide options to
targets, which I think is to your point, when it comes to how they
report and to whom they report. Studies show that it’s important
within workplace harassment policies to allow employees
options with regard to whether they are going to file a complaint
that is anonymous, whether they are going to file a complaint to
an employer, to someone in HR, or in fact to someone external to
the organization, which I think is to your point. There are
choices with respect to whether the claim they file is an informal
claim or a formal claim. I think it’s an important thing to
consider. Who are we requiring these targets to report to? What
are these individuals doing with this information? Essentially,
how much autonomy and agency are we giving those who are
being targeted with this mistreatment?

Senator Tkachuk: Are women different from men? In other
words, does the research show that women in positions of
authority are less abusive and is there less sexual harassment
from women than men, or are they about the same?

Mme Dionisi : Tout a fait. Mon domaine d’expertise est le
harcélement sexuel. Je ne peux pas vous dire quels seraient les
taux de prévalence des autres formes de harcélement, et cetera.
Je ne peux pas vous donner de chiffres, mais il est indéniable que
toutes ces formes de mauvais traitements ont cours et peuvent
avoir souvent les mémes effets néfastes que le harcélement
sexuel.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Evidemment.

Mme Dionisi : Au sujet du harcelement sexuel et du
commentaire que vous avez fait concernant la personne de
I’extérieur, est-ce que vous voulez dire pour obtenir du soutien?

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Je pense qu’ils ont un probléme.
Auprés de qui peuvent-ils porter plainte? Nous n’avons pas
vraiment une équipe de ressources humaines — je veux dire, ils
font partie de I’administration qui est 1a pour servir les sénateurs.
Ils sont une extension d’un bureau du Sénat. La plupart des
bureaux ne comptent que quelques personnes, alors il y aurait un
bureau avec une ou deux personnes. Il y a trés peu de bureaux,
voire aucun, qui comptent plus de deux personnes. Les équipes
sont trés petites, et c’est une relation patron-employé dans
chaque petit bureau. C’est complexe.

Mme Dionisi : C’est exact, et c’est un ensemble important de
circonstances dont il faut étre conscient. Ce n’est pas facile pour
quelqu’un qui est la cible de harcélement sexuel d’aller voir son
superviseur immédiat ou un superviseur quelconque pour
rapporter un mauvais traitement. Il y a quelques raisons a cela, et
I’une d’elles est que c’est parfois cette personne qui est la source
du harceélement ou qui fait partie du probléme. Bien souvent, il
s’agit d’'un homme et il y a une dynamique de pouvoir qui rend
les choses difficiles.

Les recherches révelent qu’il est trés important pour les cibles
de harcelement d’avoir diverses options, ce qui revient a ce que
vous disiez, je pense, pour dénoncer la situation et a qui le faire.
Selon les études, il est important d’avoir une politique contre le
harcélement en milieu de travail qui offre diverses options aux
employés, soit déposer une plainte anonyme, ou déposer une
plainte auprés de I’employeur, a une personne des ressources
humaines, ou a un interlocuteur externe, comme vous 1’avez dit.
La personne a le choix entre une plainte non officielle ou
officielle. Je pense que c’est un ¢lément important a prendre en
considération. A qui voulons-nous que les cibles de harcélement
dénoncent la situation? Que vont faire les gens de I’information?
Quelle marge d’autonomie donnons-nous, essentiellement, aux
cibles de ces mauvais traitements?

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Est-ce différent pour les hommes et
les femmes? En d’autres mots, est-ce que les recherches révelent
que les femmes en position d’autorité sont moins portées a
maltraiter leurs employés et a faire du harcélement sexuel que les
hommes, ou est-ce a peu prés comparable?
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Ms. Dionisi: The research shows that, by and large, men tend
to be those who harass more than women — serve as harassers.
That is not uniformly the case. Women can also be those who
sexually harass. They can sexually harass men. Men can sexually
harass other men and they can sexually harass women. It’s not to
say it’s only coming from men, but research would suggest that
there is a higher proportion of males who are the perpetrators of
this type of behaviour.

Senator Tkachuk: I notice that it’s on a very regular basis in
the United States that there is a woman teacher who is having
sexual relations with a student. It’s becoming very common. To
me, that’s an abuse of power and an abusive relationship. It’s
something you never heard of 25 years ago. You always heard it
the other way around, but now it’s quite common.

The Chair: Any type of harassment is unacceptable coming
from whomever.

Ms. Dionisi: Exactly.

The Chair: If you agree, I will ask Senator Moncion to ask
her questions, and you can come back to this in your answers.

Senator Moncion: You spoke briefly of the education
component. I would like you to elaborate more on that portion of
the harassment policy.

Ms. Dionisi: Yes, absolutely. Studies show that organizations
have a lot to gain from educating their employees on this issue.
Recent research has shown that organizations that provide
education on harassment not only increased the knowledge that
their employees have about this issue, but they improve
bystander responses, they reduce victim blaming and they
increase the likelihood that a target will come forward with their
harassment. There is evidence to suggest that are benefits to be
had when it comes to training employees.

With that said, what is included in harassment training, the
form that it takes and so on can be very important. Even though
around 80 per cent of businesses have sexual harassment
training, in many of these cases it’s ineffective, there is little
consistency across programs, and it does not truly reflect the true
scope of these types of behaviours, so there needs to be some
thought given to how the training is going to be delivered. There
are different styles, different approaches, and I can make a few
comments about those if you’re interested, but things like
instructional videos versus online training modules versus in-
person role-playing experiences and so on, and there are some
pros and cons to each of those.

Mme Dionisi : Les recherches indiquent que, dans
I’ensemble, les hommes ont plus tendance que les femmes a faire
du harcelement — a étre des harceleurs. Ce n’est pas toujours le
cas, toutefois. Les femmes peuvent aussi étre celles qui font du
harcélement sexuel. Elles peuvent harceler sexuellement les
hommes. Les hommes peuvent harceler sexuellement d’autres
hommes et ils peuvent harceler sexuellement des femmes. Cela
ne veut pas dire que ce sont uniquement les hommes qui font du
harcélement, mais les recherches indiquent que le pourcentage
d’hommes qui adoptent ce type de comportement est plus élevé.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : J’ai remarqué qu’on entend trés
réguliérement parler aux Etats-Unis d’enseignantes qui ont des
relations sexuelles avec un étudiant. C’est de plus en plus
fréquent. Je vois cela comme une relation de pouvoir et une
relation abusive. On n’entendait jamais parler de cela il y a
25 ans. On entendait toujours le contraire, mais aujourd’hui c’est
trés fréquent.

La présidente : Toutes les formes de harcelement de la part
de qui que ce soit sont inacceptables.

Mme Dionisi : C’est exact.

La présidente : Si vous étes d’accord, je vais demander a la
sénatrice Moncion de poser ses questions, et vous pourrez
revenir sur ce point dans vos réponses.

La sénatrice Moncion : Vous avez parlé brievement du volet
sensibilisation. J’aimerais que vous nous en disiez davantage sur
ce volet dans une politique contre le harcélement.

Mme Dionisi : Oui, bien sir. Les études montrent que les
organisations ont beaucoup a gagner a sensibiliser leurs
employés a ce probléme. Les organisations qui leur offrent de la
formation accroissent les connaissances des employés, mais elles
incitent aussi plus de témoins a agir, elles font en sorte qu’on
blame moins les victimes et elles accroissent les chances qu’une
cible de harcelement dénonce la situation. Il est maintenant
prouvé qu’il est avantageux pour les organisations d’offrir de la
formation aux employés.

Cela dit, les diverses composantes de la formation, la forme
qu’elle prend, et cetera, tout cela peut étre trés important. Méme
si environ 80 p. 100 des entreprises offrent de la formation sur le
harcélement sexuel a leurs employés, la formation est bien
souvent inefficace, il y a peu de constance entre les programmes
et elle ne refléte pas vraiment la portée réelle de ces types de
comportements. Il faut donc bien réfléchir a la fagon dont la
formation sera donnée. Il existe différents styles, différentes
approches, et je veux vous en parler un peu si cela vous
intéresse, mais je peux vous dire qu’il y a tant des avantages que
des inconvénients a offrir de la formation sous forme de vidéos,
de modules en ligne, de jeux de role en personne, et cetera.
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Regardless of the method implemented, there are a couple of
things that research suggests are worth considering, one of which
is that it’s important for organizations to recognize that training
is not necessarily a one-time thing, or in fact shouldn’t be a one-
time thing. Just because employees have been trained once
doesn’t mean that the job is done. Rather, research suggests that
it is important to go back and have booster sessions to keep
employees up to date on the issue, to fairly regularly revisit the
issue through different types of training to ensure that the lessons
that employees are learning stick and they remain current in the
minds of employees.

Research also suggests promoting meaningful levels of
engagement among employees in this type of training so they’re
not just passively watching the video or ticking the box. It’s
important to try to implement some type of interactive or
experiential component into that training. Oftentimes, having a
post-test whereby employees can reflect on what they have just
seen and have the opportunity to report on that can help with
knowledge development and internalization.

It’s important to think about things like who is getting the
training. Research would suggest that everybody should be
getting the training, not just leaders but all employees. Research
would suggest that you need to think about who is giving the
training, and these should be experts in the field, people who
have detailed knowledge of the issues, and legal experts can
potentially be a part of that as well.

Also, there needs to be consideration to what content is being
implemented in the training. A few of the suggestions include the
need to explain what sexual harassment is, but beyond that give
tangible examples that employees can reflect on and potentially
relate to. Part of the training needs to be around the policy itself:
the different components inherent in it, reporting procedures,
expectations and so on.

As 1 mentioned earlier, bystander intervention training is a
promising thing to think about when it comes to the types of
things that are being incorporated into the training, and that can
pertain to things like when employees have a duty to report, how
to actually go about providing support to a victim, and different
channels or avenues that a bystander would have at their
disposal.

In addition, supervisors or leaders should also have some
unique aspects to their training, including how to carry out their
responsibilities with regard to policy, but also things like how to
notify somebody that they are being accused of harassment or
how to notify a target of harassment of what the investigation
found. Those can be very sensitive issues, so some training
around that can be beneficial as well.

Senator Moncion: Thank you.

Peu importe la méthode employée, les recherches indiquent
qu’il est bon de prendre en considération quelques éléments. Les
organisations doivent notamment prendre conscience que la
formation n’est pas I’affaire d’une seule fois, ou en fait que ce ne
doit pas étre le cas. Le travail n’est pas terminé parce que les
employés ont regu la formation. Au contraire, les recherches
indiquent qu’il est important d’avoir des séances d’appoint pour
tenir les employés a jour sur la question, d’en reparler
régulierement dans le cadre de divers types de formation, afin de
s’assurer que les connaissances acquises le demeurent et que les
employés les ont toujours a 1’esprit.

Les études suggérent également de promouvoir diverses
formes de participation chez les employés afin qu’ils ne se
contentent pas de regarder la vidéo ou de cocher une case
passivement. Il est important d’intégrer une composante
interactive ou expérientielle dans la formation. Il est souvent bon
de tester leurs connaissances par la suite pour les amener a
réfléchir a ce qu’ils ont appris et faire le point, afin de s’assurer
qu’ils ont bien compris et assimilé 1’information.

Il faut aussi réfléchir notamment a qui la formation sera
donnée. Les recherches indiquent que tous les employés
devraient la recevoir, et pas seulement les dirigeants. Il faut aussi
se demander qui donnera la formation, et faire appel a des
experts dans le domaine, des gens qui ont une connaissance
approfondie du sujet. On peut aussi inclure des spécialistes
juridiques.

Il faut également réfléchir au contenu de la formation. On
suggere notamment d’expliquer en quoi consiste le harcélement
sexuel, mais aussi de donner des exemples concrets auxquels les
employés peuvent réfléchir et avec lesquels ils peuvent
potentiellement faire des associations. La formation doit porter
notamment sur la politique : ses différentes composantes, les
procédures pour rapporter un cas de harcélement, les attentes,
et cetera.

Comme je 1’ai mentionné plus tot, c’est une bonne chose
d’inclure dans la formation les fagons pour les témoins
d’intervenir. On peut notamment parler de 1’obligation de
rapporter les faits, expliquer comment offrir du soutien aux
victimes et parler des options ou des avenues qui sont a la
disposition des témoins.

De plus, il devrait y avoir un volet particulier pour les
superviseurs et les dirigeants, qui porte notamment sur la fagon
de s’acquitter de leurs responsabilités au regard de la politique,
la fagon d’informer quelqu’un qu’on 1’accuse de harcélement, ou
d’informer la cible des résultats de I’enquéte. Ce sont des
questions qui peuvent étre trés délicates, et il peut étre utile pour
eux d’avoir de la formation a ce sujet.

La sénatrice Moncion : Merci.
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My other question is on the power situation where you have
senators versus staff. How do you deal with harassment in this
kind of environment?

Ms. Dionisi: Yes, it’s tricky. Again, it partly goes back to
what I was saying earlier about making sure that targets have the
ability to seek support, advice and file claims to people other
than those who directly have power over them. That can be a
really important step, again, giving them options, making them
feel like they aren’t at risk of being victimized again.

One of the other important aspects that I wanted to mention,
which can fall under policy or it can fall under training, is also
being very explicit about retaliation. Within the policy itself,
being very explicit about the fact that retaliation is not
acceptable, that it will be punished, and giving some examples of
what retaliation looks like. Retaliation can come not only from
an employer but also from colleagues. If someone gets wind of
the fact that you are rocking the boat, so to speak, they can react
to that in a retaliatory way.

Looking at the Senate policy, I suggest thinking about being
more explicit when it comes to that issue. I know that in
section 2.3.7, I believe, there is a brief mention of the fact that
corrective measures may be taken in cases of retaliation, but my
recommendation would be to make the language stronger around
that, perhaps even adding a provision to section 3.11 where it is
explicitly mentioned that retaliation is not permitted behaviour. I
think that would help to at least start to address some of the
concerns that come with, as you mentioned, that power dynamic
that often exists between a target and the harasser.

Senator Moncion: There is also the negative image that it
spreads within the senators’ culture. It hurts the staff and it hurts
everyone. Thank you. These have been very good comments.

Senator Tannas: I had a question around continuous training.
I know it has been fairly early, but what is the data showing
about reductions in actual incidents in workplaces where there is
training? Is there anything showing increased amounts of
empowerment versus decreased amounts of aggression and
aggressors? Do the bullies go away if there is more training
because of empowerment or because they actually have some
conversion on the road to Damascus?

Ms. Dionisi: That’s a great question. Research in the area of
the effectiveness of training is only just beginning, but there are
some preliminary findings that I can share with you.

One of the things that has come out in some of the literature is
that the form that training takes is important to some of what you
have just mentioned. For instance, probably the most common
form of training that is implemented is video-based training or in

Mon autre question porte sur la relation de pouvoir d’un
sénateur par rapport a son personnel. Comment peut-on régler le
probléme du harcélement dans ce genre d’environnement?

Mme Dionisi : C’est délicat, en effet. On revient en partie a
ce que je disais plus tot, soit qu’il faut s’assurer que les cibles
ont la possibilit¢ de chercher du soutien, des conseils, et de
porter plainte & quelqu’un qui n’a pas un pouvoir direct sur elles.
Il est important, encore une fois, de leur offrir des options,
qu’elles sachent qu’elles ne courent pas le risque de devenir des
victimes encore une fois.

Un autre élément important que je veux mentionner, et qui
peut faire partie de la politique ou de la formation, c’est qu’il
faut étre trés clair au sujet des représailles. 11 faut indiquer trés
clairement dans la politique méme que les représailles ne sont
pas acceptables, qu’elles seront punies, et il faut donner des
exemples de représailles. Les représailles peuvent venir non
seulement de 1’employeur, mais aussi des collégues. Si
quelqu’un a vent que vous faites des vagues, pour ainsi dire, il
peut réagir par des représailles.

Au sujet du Sénat, je suggere de penser a bien préciser ce
point dans la politique. Je sais que, dans la section 2.3.7, si je me
souviens bien, on mentionne briévement que les représailles
peuvent entrainer des mesures correctives, mais je
recommanderais de renforcer le libellé, en ajoutant peut-étre
méme une disposition a la section 3.11 ou il serait mentionné
explicitement que les représailles sont un comportement qui ne
sera pas toléré. Je pense qu’on pourrait ainsi commencer a
remédier aux préoccupations qui en découlent, comme vous
I’avez mentionné, dans la dynamique de pouvoir qui existe
souvent entre une cible et son harceleur.

La sénatrice Moncion : Il y a aussi I’image négative qui est
véhiculée dans la culture des sénateurs. Cela porte préjudice au
personnel et a tout le monde. Merci. Voila de trés bons
commentaires.

Le sénateur Tannas : J’avais une question concernant la
formation continue. Je sais que c’est assez tot, mais que montrent
les données concernant les réductions du nombre réel d’incidents
en milieu de travail ou de la formation est offerte? Y a-t-il un
document qui montre que la responsabilisation a augmenté et que
le nombre d’agressions et d’agresseurs a diminué? Les
intimidateurs arrétent-ils de sévir si on offre plus de formation
qui rehausse la responsabilisation ou s’ils le font parce qu’ils
finissent enfin par changer leur fagon de faire?

Mme Dionisi : C’est une excellente question. La recherche
concernant I’efficacité de la formation ne fait que commencer,
mais je peux vous faire part de conclusions préliminaires.

Une des choses qui est ressortie d’une partie de la
documentation est que le type de formation est important dans le
contexte de certains des éléments que vous venez de mentionner.
A titre d’exemple, probablement que le type de formation le plus



19-6-2018

Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines 1:21

some cases now Internet-based training. These tend to be the
most popular largely because they are cost effective, they are
easy to implement to geographically dispersed employees and
you can depict instances of actual sexually harassing behaviour
in a way, and with regards to the Internet form you can tailor the
content of that training by virtue of the needs of your employees.
So those two forms are quite common.

Research shows that those forms of training do in fact help
employees better understand what harassment is. When they
leave these sessions, they say, “I can identify harassment and I
know what it is,” which is a first step. However, research also
shows that they aren’t very effective in actually changing the
attitudes of employees. Employees don’t leave feeling any
different about, for example, the ethicality of these behaviours. If
they had sexist attitudes going into it, there isn’t necessarily a
change of those attitudes. That’s really going to be foundational
to the effectiveness of any training program in terms of
eliminating harassment.

There is some evidence to suggest that training that is
conducted with groups of people, with a live trainer, for instance,
ones that incorporate experiential components, role playing and
so on, is far more effective when it comes to changing employee
attitudes. While it can be more expensive and a little more
difficult sometimes to coordinate, preliminary research would
suggest that there is some promise when it comes to what
training is actually doing.

Senator Tkachuk: Does the boss change the culture or does
the culture produce the boss? In other words, if a person
becomes the boss and they are abusive, they must have been
promoted within an organization where that person had to be the
same way before, I’'m sure. So it’s pervasive then. It’s not just
the guy who is in charge or the woman who is in charge. It’s the
culture of the whole organization. Then that is a very hard
problem to get rid of.

Ms. Dionisi: They are inextricably linked. One of the
enduring questions is how do you change the culture of a
workplace. It’s not something that happens overnight. It’s not
something that any one person can do. It very much involves all
these different facets that we’re speaking about. It could very
well be the case that there is an employer who is behaving in this
particular way. That is going to filter down to the entire
organization.

Senator Tkachuk: How did he or she get there?

Ms. Dionisi: That’s a good question. But to my points earlier,
if we have leaders who are modelling the behaviour that we’re
expecting of employees, that are communicating a very strong
anti-harassment message, that they are walking the talk, that they
are following through on the promises that they have made, if

commun qui est offert est la formation par vidéo ou, dans
certains cas maintenant, par Internet. Leur grande popularité est
surtout attribuable a leur rentabilité, a la facilité de les offrir a
des employés dispersés sur le plan géographique et au fait
qu’elles permettent de représenter des cas de harcélement sexuel
réel d’une certaine fagon, et il est possible d’adapter le contenu
de la formation Internet aux besoins de vos employés. En
conséquence, ces deux types de formation sont assez répandus.

La recherche montre que ces types de formation aident
vraiment les employés a mieux comprendre ce qu’est le
harcélement. Lorsqu’ils quittent ces séances, ils disent savoir
reconnaitre le harcélement, ce qui est un début. Cependant, la
recherche montre aussi que ces formations ne sont pas tres
efficaces pour changer les attitudes des employés. Aprés coup,
ils n’ont pas changé d’opinion sur, par exemple, le caractére
éthique de ces comportements. S’ils étaient sexistes avant de
suivre ces formations, leur attitude n’aura pas nécessairement
changé. Ce sera vraiment essentiecl a D’efficacité de tout
programme de formation pour éliminer le harcélement.

Des preuves montrent que les formations offertes a des
groupes de personnes, par un formateur en personne, entre
autres, les formations qui intégrent des éléments fonctionnels,
des jeux de role et autres, sont beaucoup plus efficaces pour
changer les attitudes des employés. Bien que ces types de
formations puissent étre plus coiteux et parfois difficiles a
coordonner, les travaux de recherche préliminaires laissent
entendre que leurs résultats sont, en quelque sorte, prometteurs.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Le gestionnaire change-t-il la culture
ou est-ce la culture qui fagconne le gestionnaire? Autrement dit, si
une personne devient gestionnaire et qu’elle est abusive, elle doit
avoir été promue au sein d’une organisation ou elle agissait
comme cela avant d’étre nommée a ce poste, j’en suis sir. C’est
donc généralisé. Ce n’est pas seulement ’homme ou la femme
responsable, mais bien la culture organisationnelle en entier.
C’est donc un probléme trés difficile a régler.

Mme Dionisi : Ils sont intimement liés. Une des questions
persistantes est celle de savoir comment on change la culture
d’un milieu de travail. Ce n’est pas quelque chose qui se fait du
jour au lendemain. Ce n’est pas quelque chose qu’une seule
personne puisse faire. Elle comporte certainement les différentes
facettes dont nous discutons. Il se pourrait tres bien qu’il y ait un
employeur qui se comporte de cette fagcon particuliére. Cela se
répercutera sur I’ensemble de 1’organisation.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Comment cette personne s’est-elle
rendue 1a?

Mme Dionisi : C’est une bonne question, mais, pour en
revenir a ce que je disais, si nous avons des leaders qui montrent
I’exemple de comportements auquels on s’attend des employés,
qui envoient un message anti-harcélement trés ferme, qui
préchent par I’exemple, qu’ils honorent les promesses qu’ils ont
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they are embodying the culture that they want to see in the
organization, that’s a good step.

[Translation]

The Chair: I would like us to go a bit further than prevention
and training which, as we have seen, are absolutely essential. Let
us go all the way to the complaint. If we receive a formal
complaint, what kind of investigator should be responsible for
following up on it? Is a sexual harassment investigation
conducted the same as an administrative investigation?

What if any measures should be taken during the investigation
as to the employee who alleges they were sexually harassed and
the person accused of harassment?

[English]

Ms. Dionisi: That’s a very good question. There are some
parameters that have been laid out in Bill C-65 that can give us a
little bit of guidance with regard to what is required.

With regard to complaints, Bill C-65 now requires that
employees make a complaint to their supervisor or to the person
designated in the organization’s policy first. Before exercising
any other resource available to that employee, they must now
bring that to the attention of their employer, who then is charged
with trying to remedy this before it goes any further. I think that
is going to have implications to the Senate policy in terms of the
flowchart and how that all works.

Research suggests that victim agency is really important when
it comes to the sexual harassment resolution process. Studies
show that not only do victims themselves report wanting and
needing autonomy over this reporting process, but also allowing
choices during that process can be very beneficial when it comes
to encouraging people to come forward in the first place.

So while Bill C-65 requires that a complaint be made to the
employer first, as far as I can tell, it doesn’t specify, for instance,
whether that complaint must be formal or informal. When I took
a look at the Senate policy, if I interpreted it correctly, it’s
currently written that informal resolution processes should be
attempted first before doing anything else, except in the case
where the human resource manager deems that wouldn’t be
appropriate.

One suggestion I have would be to let the target, him or
herself, decide whether pursuing a formal or informal complaint
is desirable to them. There are different pros and cons to each, so

faites, s’ils incarnent la culture organisationnelle dont ils veulent,
c’est une bonne étape.

[Frangais]

La présidente : J’aimerais que 1’on aille un peu plus loin que
la prévention et la formation, qui sont, comme on I’a vu,
absolument essentielles. Allons jusqu’a la plainte. Si nous
recevons une plainte formelle, quel type d’enquéteur devrait étre
responsable du suivi de cette plainte? Est-ce qu’on enquéte en
matiére de harcelement sexuel de la méme maniére qu’on mene
une enquéte administrative?

S’il y en a, quelles sont les mesures a prendre, pendant
I’enquéte, a 1’égard de I’employé qui allégue avoir été harcelé
sexuellement et a I’égard de la personne qui est accusée de
harcelement?

[Traduction]

Mme Dionisi : C’est une trés bonne question. Il existe des
paramétres qui ont été énoncés dans le projet de loi C-65 qui
peuvent nous donner une idée des mesures a prendre.

Pour ce qui concerne les plaintes, le projet de loi C-65 exige
maintenant que les employés déposent d’abord plainte aupres de
leur superviseur ou de la personne désignée dans la politique de
leur organisation. Avant d’avoir recours a toute autre ressource
dont il dispose, cet employé doit maintenant porter le
harcélement a 1’attention de son employeur, qui est ensuite
chargé d’essayer de remédier a la situation avant que cela aille
plus loin. Je pense que cela aura des répercussions sur la
politique du Sénat en ce qui concerne 1’organigramme et son
fonctionnement.

La recherche suggére que la capacité d’agir de la victime est
vraiment importante dans le contexte du processus de réglement
des plaintes pour harcélement sexuel. Les études montrent que,
non seulement les victimes mémes disent vouloir de I’autonomie
et en avoir besoin dans le cadre de ce processus de signalement,
mais aussi que le fait de leur donner des choix pendant ce
processus peut &tre trés utile pour encourager les gens a dénoncer
des le départ.

Alors, bien que le projet de loi C-65 exige qu’on dépose
d’abord plainte auprés de 1’employeur, pour autant que je sache,
il ne précise pas, par exemple, si cette plainte doit étre formelle
ou informelle. Lorsque j’ai jeté un coup d’ceil a la politique du
Sénat, si je 1’ai bien interprétée, elle stipule actuellement qu’on
devrait d’abord tenter de suivre des processus de réglement
informels avant de faire autre chose, sauf dans le cas ou le
gestionnaire des ressources humaines juge qu’il ne conviendrait
pas de le faire.

Je suggérerais notamment qu’on laisse la cible décider elle-
méme si elle souhaite lancer un processus formel ou informel.
Chaque option a ses points forts et ses points faibles, si bien qu’il
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letting a target decide for themselves what form that is going to
take can be important.

There are also provisions in Bill C-65 around impartiality. It
now makes it the responsibility of the employer to establish a
process of impartiality addressing complaints, and it more
specifically prohibits any policy committee, workplace
committee or health and safety committee representative to be
part of an investigation, so that necessarily may impact how the
policy approaches who does an investigation.

Separately, research suggests that victims of harassment prefer
to have some say over at least some of the details of who does an
investigation. For instance, most people say that they prefer a
team of people to do an investigation rather than one single
individual. Most prefer to have individuals of both genders on
the investigative committee. Also, they like to have some choice
about whether they are organizational insiders or outsiders who
are performing these investigations.

This idea of impartiality is really important. We need to have
people on these committees who are not biased and don’t have a
stake in the game, so to speak, and are able to accurately and
unbiasedly look at the facts of the case.

[Translation]

The Chair: In the interest of fairness, do you think the
alleged harasser should also be given some say in the type of
investigation, the members of the investigation team and the
investigator?

[English]

Ms. Dionisi: Yes, that’s a good point. I haven’t seen any
research that speaks to that side of the equation in terms of what
those who are accused of these types of behaviours report as
being important to them, but I would imagine that they would
equally like to have a say in terms of who is involved and who
isn’t. I think that’s definitely something to consider.

One other thing that comes to mind, as you mentioned, with
regards to what happens during the investigation process, is that
there are provisions in Bill C-65 which now, in stronger
language, stress the importance of confidentiality. That’s
something that cannot be ignored. You may want to think about
strengthening the language around that a little bit more in the
policy to reflect those requirements.

In addition to that, this idea of intermediate measures may be
something to think about. What happens if somebody comes to
you and says, “This person is harassing me?” What do you do
until there has been a determination? Research suggests that it
may be necessary to implement intermediate measures, things

est important de laisser une cible décider elle-méme du type de
processus qu’elle souhaite suivre.

Le projet de loi C-65 contient aussi des ¢léments concernant
I’impartialité. Il fait maintenant en sorte que l’employeur soit
responsable d’établir un processus d’impartialité pour répondre
aux plaintes, et il interdit plus précisément a tout représentant du
comité de la politique, du comité en milieu de travail ou du
comité de la santé et de la sécurité de participer a une enquéte, si
bien que cela pourrait nécessairement influer sur la fagon dont la
politique aborde la question de savoir qui méne une enquéte.

Séparément, la recherche suggeére que les victimes de
harcélement préférent avoir leur mot a dire quant a la personne
qui méne une enquéte. A titre d’exemple, la plupart des gens
disent qu’ils préfeérent qu’une équipe méne une enquéte plutot
qu’une seule personne. La plupart préférent que le comité chargé
de I’enquéte soit formé a la fois d’hommes et de femmes. En
outre, ils aiment avoir le choix de décider s’il s’agit d’employés
de I’organisation ou de personnes de 1’extérieur qui menent ces
enquétes.

Cette notion d’impartialité est vraiment importante. Ces
comités doivent étre formés de personnes impartiales qui n’ont
pas d’enjeu dans la situation, pour ainsi dire, et qui sont capables
d’examiner les faits de 1’affaire avec exactitude et impartialité.

[Frangais]

La présidente : A votre avis, le harceleur allégué, pour des
raisons d’équité, devrait-il aussi étre associ¢ au choix du mode
de I’enquéte, au choix des membres de 1’équipe de 1’enquéte ou
au choix de I’enquéteur?

[Traduction]

Mme Dionisi : Oui, c’est un bon argument. Je n’ai vu aucune
recherche sur cet élément de I’équation concernant ce qui
importe aux personnes accusées de ce type de comportement,
mais j’imagine qu’elles aimeraient également avoir leur mot a
dire quant aux personnes qui participent au processus et celles
qui n’y participent pas. Je pense que c’est sans aucun doute un
point a prendre en compte.

Une autre chose qui vient a l’esprit, comme vous 1’avez
mentionné, concernant ce qui se produit pendant le processus
d’enquéte, c’est que le projet de loi C-65 insiste maintenant, en
termes plus marqués, sur I’importance de la confidentialité. C’est
quelque chose qu’on ne peut pas ignorer. Vous auriez peut-étre
intérét a songer a renforcer un peu les termes utilisés a cet égard
dans la politique pour tenir compte de ces exigences.

En outre, il pourrait y avoir lieu de penser a cette notion des
mesures intermédiaires. Qu’arrive-t-il si quelqu’un vient vers
vous et vous dit : « Cette personne me harcele »? Que faites-vous
en attendant qu’on ait déterminé que c’était le cas? La recherche
suggere qu’il pourrait étre nécessaire de mettre en place des
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like making schedule changes, transferring the alleged harasser
or placing the alleged harasser on leave. They can be
controversial and there is not a definitive answer, but thinking
about the options that are out there. One of the things that the
research does stress is to not unduly place the burden of onus on
the target. For example, transferring the target to a different
department is not something that we want to do. It’s a tricky
thing, but it may be worth having a conversation to figure out
what is going to be done in the interim. Do we allow these two
people to continue working together? Is that potentially putting
somebody in jeopardy? Thinking about that is important.

[Translation]

The Chair: In your opinion, does the role of investigator
require highly specialized skills? Do we have access on short
notice to an external pool of specialized investigators who can do
the job in a timely manner and very competently?

[English]

Ms. Dionisi: There are people who exist out there who
specialize in this, who have intimate knowledge of the area and
who are able to come in and impartially judge what is going on. I
think involving outsiders is important when it comes to an
unbiased approach to investigation. I can certainly look into the
specifics and make some specific suggestions. I don’t have any
off the top of my head right now, but I would be happy to look
into that for the committee if it is something that is of interest.
There are people who specialize in this area and would be
qualified to do that.

The Chair: Thank you. I do not see any other senators that
have questions. Regarding your closing words, we are interested
in receiving information and more documentation from you. I
want to thank you on behalf of all the members, Professor
Dionisi, for a value-added participation to our work, and
hopefully we’ll stay in touch.

Senators, thank you, and thank you to the analysts, the clerk,
the translators and the stenographers.

(The committee adjourned.)

mesures intermédiaires, comme modifier les horaires, transférer
le harceleur présumé ou le suspendre. Elles peuvent étre
controversées, et il n’y a pas de réponse définitive, mais il faut
penser aux options dont on dispose. Une des choses sur laquelle
la recherche insiste est qu’il ne faut pas indiment placer le
fardeau de la preuve sur la cible. Par exemple, nous ne
souhaitons pas transférer la cible vers un autre département.
C’est délicat, mais il pourrait valoir la peine de tenir une
conversation pour déterminer ce qui sera fait dans I’intérim.
Permettons-nous & ces gens de continuer a travailler ensemble?
Cela pourrait-il mettre une personne en péril? Il est important d’y
penser.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Selon vous, le profil d’enquéteur est-il un
profil trés spécialisé? Avons-nous acces, a bréve échéance, a un
bassin d’enquéteurs spécialisés de 1’extérieur qui peuvent agir de
maniere diligente et trés compétente?

[Traduction]

Mme Dionisi : Il y a des spécialistes du sujet qui connaissent
intimement ce domaine et qui sont en mesure d’intervenir et de
juger de facon impartiale ce qui se passe. Je pense qu’il est
important de faire participer des personnes de I’extérieur pour
privilégier une approche impartiale a 1’égard d’une enquéte. Je
peux certainement me pencher sur les détails précis et formuler
des suggestions précises. Il ne m’en vient pas a 1’idée en ce
moment, mais je serais ravie de me renseigner pour le comité si
c’est quelque chose qui vous intéresse. Certaines personnes se
spécialisent dans ce domaine et seraient qualifiées pour ce faire.

La présidente : Merci. Je ne vois aucun autre sénateur qui a
des questions. Pour en revenir a votre mot de la fin, nous
sommes intéressés a recevoir de I’information et de Ila
documentation supplémentaire de votre part. Je tiens a vous
remercier au nom de tous les membres, madame Dionisi, pour
votre contribution précieuse a nos travaux. Nous espérons
pouvoir rester en contact avec vous.

Mesdames et messieurs les sénateurs, merci, et merci aux
analystes, au greffier, aux interprétes et aux sténographes.

(La séance est levée.)
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 12, 2018

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met this day at
5:52 p.m. to continue its consideration of financial and
administrative matters, pursuant to rule 12-7(1) (Topic: Review
of the Senate’s Harassment Policy).

Senator Raymonde Saint-Germain (Chair) in the chair.

[Translation]

The Chair: Honourable senators, welcome to this meeting of
the Subcommittee on Human Resources. I must apologize to our
guests.

[English]

I’'m sorry. We had to stay in the chamber in order to vote, so
that’s the reason we are late, and we apologize because you had
to wait for us.

[Translation]

We are resuming our study of the Senate policy on preventing
harassment in the workplace. I would like to welcome the
general public.

The subcommittee was created on December 7, 2017, by the
Standing Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration.

[English]
I would like to introduce the members of the subcommittee.
Senator Tannas: Scott Tannas from Alberta.
[Translation]
Senator Moncion: Lucie Moncion, from Ontario.
[English]

The Chair: I’'m Raymonde Saint-Germain, from Quebec,
chair of the committee. Our colleague Senator Jaffer is in the
chamber but will be here after her amendment on Bill C-66. Our
other colleague Senator Tkachuk will be back as soon as
possible.

[Translation]

This evening we have two panels of witnesses. First, we will
hear Ms. Janice Rubin and Mr. Christopher Rootham, labour law
specialists. Afterwards we will continue with Ms. Sandy
Hershcovis, Associate Professor and Area Chair, Organisational

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le mardi 12 juin 2018

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 17 h 52, pour poursuivre I’étude de questions
financiéres et administratives, conformément a I’article 12-7(1)
du Réglement (Sujet : Examen de la politique de harcélement du
Sénat).

La sénatrice Raymonde Saint-Germain (présidente) occupe
le fauteuil.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, je vous souhaite la
bienvenue a cette réunion du Sous-comité sur les ressources
humaines. Je tiens a m’excuser auprés de nos invités.

[Traduction]

Je m’excuse. Nous avons dii rester & la Chambre pour un vote.
C’est pour cela que nous sommes en retard, et nous nous
excusons de vous avoir fait attendre.

[Frangais)

Nous poursuivons notre examen de la politique du Sénat sur la
prévention et le harcélement en milieu de travail. Je souhaite la
bienvenue au grand public.

Le sous-comité a été créé le 7 décembre 2017 par le Comité
permanent de la régie interne, des budgets et de 1’administration.

[Traduction]

J’aimerais présenter les membres du sous-comité.

Le sénateur Tannas : Scott Tannas, de I’ Alberta.
[Frangais)

La sénatrice Moncion : Lucie Moncion, de 1’Ontario.
[Traduction]

La présidente : Je suis Raymonde Saint-Germain, du
Québec, et je suis présidente du comité. Notre collégue, Mobina
Jaffer, est encore la-bas, mais elle sera avec nous aprés le
traitement de son amendement au projet de loi C-66. Notre autre
collégue, le sénateur Tkachuk, nous rejoindra dés que possible.

[Frangais]

Ce soir, nous recevons deux groupes de témoins. Tout
d’abord, nous entendrons Me Janice Rubin et Me Christopher
Rootham, avocats spécialisés en droit du travail. Par la suite,
nous poursuivrons avec Mme Sandy Hershcovis, professeure
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Behaviour and Human Resources, Haskayne School of Business,
University of Calgary.

Without further delay, I will introduce Ms. Janice Rubin, a
partner in the Rubin Thomlinson firm, and Mr. Christopher
Rootham, a lawyer from the Nelligan O’Brien Payne firm.

[English)

Do you have an agreement regarding who will begin,
Ms. Rubin?

Janice Rubin, Partner, Rubin Thomlinson LLP: I’m happy
to go first. Thank you for that, and thank you for inviting us to
attend today. With me is my colleague Michelle Bird and our
summer intern, Simon McKenzie, who is here as an observer.
We will answer any questions you may have.

Our comments here today are offered from the vantage point
of a law firm knee-deep in the issue of workplace harassment.
We are not academics. We are practitioners. Nor have we
conducted an exhaustive legal analysis of the current policy.

By way of background, we conduct investigations,
assessments and training across the country, and our work takes
us into every type of workplace imaginable. We conduct many
workplace investigations and assessments each year. I think this
year it may be into the hundreds.

So, by way of an introduction, by way of a preliminary
contribution to the work that you do, I would like to share three
ideas with you.

First, while it is certainly important to have a strong, clear and
comprehensive policy, and I say this with the utmost respect to
senators, an organization’s efforts to deal with workplace
harassment cannot simply be a round of wordsmithing and
you’re done. Rather, from our perspective as practitioners in this
area, emphasis must be placed on the program that gives the
policy life. Your program would need to appreciate the context
in which it operates by recognizing both the capital “P” political
issues and power imbalances in your workplace, as well as small
p ones, because yours is a political environment.

Our view is that a program must be bespoke for each
workplace, but some generic things to consider as part of a
program would be these: First, make sure that behavioural
standards are communicated to everyone regularly and that

agrégée et directrice de secteur, Comportement organisationnel
et Ressources humaines, de la faculté des sciences de
I’administration de 1’Université de Calgary.

Sans plus tarder, je vous présente Mme Janice Rubin,
partenaire de la firme Rubin Thomlinson, et M. Christopher
Rootham, avocat de la firme Nelligan O’Brien Payne.

[Traduction]

Madame Rubin, avez-vous pris une décision sur I’ordre des
présentations?

Janice Rubin, partenaire, Rubin Thomlinson, s.r.L : Je
serai heureuse d’y aller en premier. Merci pour cela, et merci de
nous avoir invités a comparaitre. Je suis accompagnée de ma
collegue, Michelle Bird, et d’un stagiaire, Simon McKenzie, qui
est 1a a titre d’observateur. Nous allons répondre a toutes vos
questions.

Nos observations d’aujourd’hui sont celles d’un cabinet
d’avocat, qui a un point de vue privilégié¢ sur la question du
harcélement en milieu de travail. Nous ne sommes pas des
universitaires. Nous sommes des praticiens. Il convient, en outre,
de préciser que nous n’avons pas fait d’analyse juridique
exhaustive au sujet de la politique actuelle.

Pour vous situer, sachez que notre organisation effectue des
enquétes et des évaluations a ’échelle du pays, et qu’elle donne
des formations. Nos activités font en sorte que nous nous
rendons dans tous les milieux de travail possibles et imaginables.
Chaque année, nous effectuons un grand nombre d’enquétes et
d’évaluations sur différents milieux de travail. Pour I’année en
cours, je crois bien qu’il y en aura quelques centaines.

En guise d’introduction et de contribution préliminaire au
travail qui vous occupe, permettez-moi de vous faire part des
trois observations suivantes.

Premicérement, bien qu’il soit assurément important d’avoir
une politique robuste, limpide et exhaustive — et je dis cela avec
tout le respect que j’ai a I’égard des sénateurs —, il est important
de reconnaitre que les efforts déployés par une organisation pour
faire face au harcélement en milieu de travail ne peuvent pas se
limiter au simple fait de posséder un texte bien ficelé. En tant
que praticiens dans ce domaine, nous croyons plutdt que 1’accent
doit étre mis sur le programme qui a pour fonction de donner vie
a cette politique. Votre programme doit tenir compte du contexte
de mise en ceuvre en reconnaissant les grands enjeux politiques
et de déséquilibre des pouvoirs qui existent dans votre milieu de
travail, et les enjeux plus modestes liés au fait qu’il s’agit d’un
environnement politique.

Selon nous, tout programme doit étre fait sur mesure pour les
besoins du milieu de travail, mais certains éléments génériques
doivent étre présents. Premiérement, il faut s’assurer que les
normes comportementales sont communiquées réguliérement a
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people receive meaningful training. Second, ensure that people
are accountable for breaches. If an employer condones bad
behaviour, efforts to deal with workplace harassment will be
viewed as inauthentic and shallow. Third, leaders especially
should walk the talk. Fourth, make workplace behaviour a
priority, not just an afterthought. Fifth, have clear reporting
mechanisms and options to report — consider for example a
confidential 1-800 line. Finally, involve bystanders, giving them
more of a role to play. You’ll see in our written submission to
you that we talk a little about bystanders, and we can tell you
more about our views about bystanders in the question portion.

Our second idea is recognizing the importance of
investigations as a way of dealing with complaints and incidents
of harassment. These investigations must be fair, thorough,
impartial and conducted by people who know what they are
doing. The word “competent,” I think, is what you see in the
federal legislation.

Investigators, whether they are internal or external, must have
substantive knowledge of workplace harassment. This is an area
that is full of nuances. It is often counterintuitive, and great harm
can be brought to an organization by an investigator who doesn’t
have substantive knowledge.

It is important to recognize the impact of investigations on the
people most affected by them — the parties. That means that as a
process, they should be conducted with great sensitivity and
great fairness.

The third idea I want to share in my opening, and this, I think,
is our most important idea, is that while there is no doubt that an
enhanced complaint and investigation method is important, as a
firm, as practitioners in this area, we have come to the
conclusion that employers are over-reliant on complaints, on
what is substantially a reactive mechanism, to deal with
workplace harassment.

Employers appear to believe that everything is fine, that is,
there is no harassment in their workplaces or their organizations
until someone makes a complaint and tells them about it.

This is problematic from a number of aspects. First, it places
the burden of monitoring workplace conduct on the complainant,
and at great cost to them — things such as professional and
personal disruption, stress, loss of privacy and potential for

tout un chacun et que les gens recoivent une formation
rigoureuse. Deuxiémement, il faut veiller & ce que les gens soient
tenus de répondre de leurs écarts. Si I’employeur ferme les yeux
sur les comportements répréhensibles, les efforts déployés pour
s’attaquer au harcélement en milieu de travail seront percus
comme faux et superficiels. Troisiémement, il est impératif que
les dirigeants — et particuliérement eux — joignent le geste a la
parole. Quatriemement, il faut veiller a ce que le comportement
en milieu de travail soit une priorité, et pas seulement une idée
parmi tant d’autres. Cinquiémement, il est important d’avoir des
mécanismes de signalement clairs et diversifiés — par exemple,
une ligne 1-800 confidentielle. Enfin, il faut intégrer les
spectateurs, leur donner un rdle plus important a jouer dans le
processus. Comme vous pourrez le voir, notre mémoire écrit
aborde un peu cette question des spectateurs. Nous pourrons
vous en parler plus longuement lors de la portion de la séance
réservée aux questions.

Comme deuxiéme idée phare, nous sommes d’avis qu’il faut
reconnaitre 1’importance des enquétes lors du traitement des
plaintes et des incidents en matiére de harcélement. Ces enquétes
doivent étre équitables et rigoureuses, et elles doivent étre
menées par des gens qui savent ce qu’ils font. Si je ne m’abuse,
c’est le mot « compétent » qui est utilisé dans la loi fédérale.

Qu’ils soient de I’organisation ou de 1’extérieur de
I’organisation, les enquéteurs doivent avoir une connaissance
substantielle du harcélement en milieu de travail. Le harcélement
en milieu de travail est un domaine qui est plein de nuances. Les
cas de harcélement défient parfois toute logique, et un enquéteur
qui n’a pas assez de connaissances dans ce domaine peut causer
de grands torts a 1’organisation.

Il est important de reconnaitre les répercussions que les
enquétes peuvent avoir sur les gens qu’elles visent — les parties
en cause. Cela signifie que ces enquétes doivent étre menées
avec beaucoup de doigté et un sens aigu de la justice.

La troisiéme grande idée dont je veux parler — et je crois que
c’est celle qui importe le plus — est la suivante : bien que
I’importance d’améliorer les processus de déposition de plaintes
et les méthodes d’enquéte ne fasse aucun doute, nous en sommes
venus a la conclusion que les employeurs se fient trop aux
plaintes — un mécanisme réactif, dans une vaste mesure — pour
faire face au probléme de harceélement en milieu de travail. C’est
que nous avons constaté en tant que firme et en tant que
praticiens.

Les employeurs ont tendance a croire que tout va bien
— c’est-a-dire qu’il n’y a pas de harcélement au travail au sein
de leur organisation — jusqu’a ce que quelqu’un fasse une
plainte et les mette au courant de ce qui se passe.

C’est une dynamique qui est problématique a bien des égards.
Pour commencer, cela place le fardeau de surveiller les
comportements en milieu de travail sur les épaules des personnes
qui portent plainte, ce qui peut d’ailleurs leur cofiter cher. On n’a
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reprisal. On the issue of reprisal, I will say the data are not good.
Complainants are at great risk for reprisal after they file their
complaints.

Second, we know that workplace harassment largely goes
unreported in organizations. The latest statistics from an Angus
Reid Institute survey from a few months ago show that while
approximately half of Canadian women experience sexual
harassment at some point in their working lives, only a quarter
ever report it. That means that three quarters of sexual
harassment goes underground. In our efforts to deal with
workplace harassment as a societal issue, we need to keep this
fact front and centre. We are only going to officially hear about a
fraction of what is going on in our workplaces.

If the Senate, like other employers, is serious about dealing
with workplace harassment, which — and I say this with respect
— undoubtedly occurs here, too, as in every other Canadian
institution, it’s going to have to do more than wait for
complaints. If you really want to know what is going on, you’re
going to have to ask your employees in a process that is both
confidential and anonymous so that they will feel safe and
empowered to speak.

This is the assessment work we do. We go in as third-party
neutrals, conduct surveys and conduct interviews to see what is
going on, and then report back to the institutions that retain us to
tell them what we have learned. Then those organizations can
use the data to fashion a more exact strategy to deal with
harassment.

The Senate might consider using the time between now and
when Bill C-65 comes into effect to consult, not only with
external experts, but gather information from your own
employees, the internal experts.

With that introduction, I will pass it over to members of the
committee to ask any questions, unless you would like to hear
from Mr. Rootham next.

The Chair: We will hear from Mr. Rootham. Just before that,
I’m glad to announce that Senator Tkachuk from Saskatchewan
is now here. Also, my apologies to Ms. Michelle Bird, a member
of the panel. I’'m pleased to welcome you as well.

Mr. Rootham, please go ahead.

qu’a penser aux bouleversements sur le plan personnel et
professionnel, au stress, a la perte de vie privée et aux risques de
représailles. En ce qui concerne les représailles, je dirais que les
chiffres n’indiquent rien de bon : les personnes qui portent
plainte courent de grands risques de représailles.

Deuxiémement, nous savons que le harcélement en milieu de
travail est rarement signalé. La plus récente enquéte de 1’Institut
Angus Reid — qui date d’il y a quelques mois — indique qu’au
Canada, seulement le quart des cas de harcélement sexuel
perpétré sur des femmes sont rapportés, méme si ¢’est environ la
moitié¢ des femmes qui en seront victimes a un moment ou a un
autre de leur vie active. Cela signifie que les trois quarts des
épisodes de harceélement passent sous le radar. Dans nos efforts
pour traiter le harcélement en milieu de travail en tant que
probléme de société, il importe de mettre et de garder ce fait a
I’avant-plan : ce qui sera porté a notre attention n’est qu’une
fraction de ce qui se passe vraiment.

Si, a l’'instar d’autres employeurs, le Sénat veut vraiment
s’attaquer au harcélement au travail — ce qui, et je dis cela avec
grand respect, se produit ici aussi —, il va devoir faire plus que
de se contenter d’attendre des plaintes, un principe auquel
n’échappe aucune organisation. Si vous voulez vraiment savoir
ce qui se passe, vous allez devoir le demander a vos employés, et
il faudra que cela se fasse de fagon confidentielle et anonyme, de
maniere & ce qu’ils se sentent habilités a parler et en sécurité de
le faire.

C’est ce en quoi consiste notre travail d’évaluation. Nous nous
présentons comme étant une tierce partie neutre; nous faisons
circuler des questionnaires et nous interrogeons les gens afin
d’essayer de comprendre ce qui se passe. Puis, nous rendons
compte de nos constatations a ceux qui nous ont engageés.
Ensuite, 1’organisation se sert de nos données pour mettre au
point une stratégie congruente pour remédier au harcélement.

Le Sénat aurait peut-étre avantage a profiter du temps qu’il
reste avant I’entrée en vigueur du projet de loi C-65 pour
procéder a des consultations et a la collecte de renseignements
auprés d’experts externes, certes, mais aussi aupres de ses
propres employés, qui, en fin de compte, sont les experts a
I’interne.

Voila pour notre déclaration préliminaire. Je vais maintenant
m’en remettre aux questions des membres du comité, a moins
que vous ne souhaitiez d’abord entendre la déclaration de
M. Rootham.

La présidente : Nous allons écouter la déclaration de
M. Rootham, mais juste avant, je suis heureuse d’annoncer
I’arrivée du sénateur Tkachuk, qui représente la Saskatchewan.
Aussi, je tiens a présenter mes excuses & Mme Michelle Bird, qui
fait aussi partie du groupe d’experts. Je vous souhaite la
bienvenue a vous aussi.

Monsieur Rootham, nous vous écoutons.
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Christopher Rootham, Lawyer, Nelligan O’Brien Payne
LLP: Thank you very much. I will be as brief as I can be. I
want to reserve as much time as possible for questions.

I want to thank the subcommittee for inviting me to speak on
the important workplace issue that is the Senate’s harassment

policy.

I’ll make six points briefly about the policy. First, one of the
things I was asked to speak about is the definition of
“harassment,” or what is contained in the term “harassment.” |
want to make it clear that harassment is an elusive term to
define. It is important to both define harassment broadly enough
to capture all forms of abusive behaviour and, at the same time,
make the definition narrow enough that it does not trivialize the
term and does not capture behaviour that is innocuous or
innocent in a way that trivializes what is an important workplace
issue. There is no single right answer to the definition of
“harassment.” I’m not going to propose one to you because of
that.

Second, and related, the current Senate policy includes a
complaint made in bad faith as itself a form of harassment. This
is problematic, in my experience, in two ways. First, including
that a bad faith complaint is itself a form of harassment does
have a chilling effect on complaints. Legitimate complainants are
concerned about being perceived as acting in bad faith, and
complainants are reluctant, or more reluctant, to come forward if
that is contained in the term “harassment.”

It also unnecessarily complicates the investigation process. In
my experience, it is almost inevitable as a response to a
harassment complaint to cross-complain — to say that a
complaint was made in bad faith and to therefore investigate that
cross-complaint too. It lengthens and complicates the complaint
process, and it makes it more difficult to get to the root cause of
what is really going on in the workplace.

The third point I want to make is about enforcement.
Conceptually, in my view, you can usefully divide Senate
workers into three categories. There are unionized PESRA
workers, there are non-union PESRA workers, and then there are
workers who are employed directly by individual senators who
are not captured by PESRA.

Christopher Rootham, avocat, Nelligan O’Brien Payne,
s.r.l. : Merci beaucoup. Je vais étre aussi bref que faire se peut.
Je veux laisser le plus de temps possible aux questions.

Je remercie le sous-comité de m’avoir invité a parler de cet
important probléme qu’est le harcélement en milieu de travail et
de la politique du Sénat en la maticre.

J’ai six observations a formuler a propos de la politique.
Premiérement, 1’une des choses dont on m’a demandé de parler,
c’est la définition du terme « harcélement » ou de ce qui est
contenu dans ce terme de « harcélement ». Je tiens d’entrée de
jeu a préciser que c’est une notion qui est trés difficile a cerner.
Il est important de définir le harcélement en des termes
suffisamment généraux pour englober toutes les formes de
comportement abusif et, en méme temps, de faire en sorte que la
définition soit suffisamment précise pour éviter de banaliser le
terme. Il faut en outre éviter d’y inclure des comportements
inoffensifs ou anodins, ce qui aurait pour effet de trivialiser cet
important probleme. Lorsqu’il s’agit de définir ce qu’est le
harcélement, il n’y a pas de bonne réponse unique. C’est pour
cette raison que je vais m’abstenir de vous en proposer une.

Deuxiemement — et il y a un lien —, la politique actuelle du
Sénat stipule que le dépot d’une plainte fait de mauvaise foi
constitue en soi une forme de harcélement. Selon mon
expérience, cette précision est problématique, et ce, pour deux
raisons. Tout d’abord, le fait de dire que le dép6t d’une plainte
fait de mauvaise foi constitue en soi une forme de harcélement
agit comme une douche froide sur ceux qui seraient tentés de
signaler un comportement abusif. Les plaignants légitimes
craignent d’étre percus comme s’ils agissaient de mauvaise foi,
et ils seront hésitants ou davantage hésitants a signaler un
probléeme si cette notion est comprise dans le terme
« harceélement ».

En outre, cela complique inutilement le processus d’enquéte.
Selon mon expérience, lors d’une plainte de harcelement, il est
pratiquement inévitable de se retrouver avec une contre-plainte
alléguant que la plainte a été déposée de mauvaise foi, ce qui
signifie que ladite contre-plainte doit aussi faire 1’objet d’une
enquéte. Inutile de dire que cela prolonge et complique le
processus. En outre, cela fait en sorte qu’il est beaucoup plus
difficile d’aller a la racine du probléme et de déterminer ce qui se
passe vraiment sur le lieu de travail.

Mon troisiéme point concerne I’application de la politique. De
fagon conceptuelle et pour faciliter les choses, il est possible de
séparer les employés du Sénat en trois catégories. Il y a les
travailleurs syndiqués assujettis a la Loi sur les relations de
travail au Parlement, la LRTP, les travailleurs non syndiqués
assujettis a la LRTP et les travailleurs qui sont employés
directement par les sénateurs individuels et qui ne sont pas
assujettis a la LRTP.
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Unionized PESRA workers do have relatively robust
enforcement mechanisms because their collective agreements
inevitably contain provisions prohibiting harassment. They can
grieve those and pursue that grievance to adjudication using their
bargaining agent.

Non-union PESRA workers, which are managerial-excluded or
confidential labour relations excluded under PESRA, do not have
the same opportunities. Harassment is not a condition of
employment that can be referred to adjudication. It is grieved up
the line to their managers and to senior management, and there it
ends. It’s great to have a policy, and it’s great to apply the
policy, but for that category of workers, enforcement is
problematic.

There are ways we can do it. I have acted for a number of non-
union PESRA employees before. We can enforce a policy like
this, but it’s challenging and difficult.

For the third category, it’s more than challenging and difficult;
it’s borderline impossible. Direct employees of individual
senators do not have protected statutory rights under PESRA to
enforce, grieve and challenge decisions. That’s something that is
missing from the overall statutory scheme. As an aside, I note
it’s something that is still missing under Bill C-65. Individual
employers in the House of Commons, members of Parliament,
are caught under the definition of “employer” under Bill C-65,
but individual senators are still not. So I note that a policy is only
as good as its enforcement mechanisms. Enforcement
mechanisms might require legislative change this body would
want to consider.

Fourth, the policy as it stands requires that all employees, or
everyone subject to the policy, be informed of the policy. That’s
not sufficient. The literature, the research and my own personal
experience is that a policy that is simply brought to an
employee’s attention once is easily forgotten about and becomes
just something that is in the background, along with hundreds of
other HR policies that exist for Senate employees.

If we’re serious about dealing with harassment — and I think
we are — it’s important that employees are regularly reminded
about harassment, are regularly required to sign off or to review
the policy, that there is regular training, that there is regular
review of the workforce, and so on. Simply requiring employees
to be aware of the policy is insufficient. It should be front and
centre.

Les travailleurs syndiqués assujettis a la LRTP jouissent de
mécanismes d’application relativement robustes puisque leurs
conventions collectives contiennent inévitablement des
dispositions interdisant le harceélement. Les victimes de
harcélement peuvent présenter des griefs, et ces griefs peuvent
étre soumis a I’arbitrage par leurs agents négociateurs.

Les travailleurs non syndiqués assujettis a la LRTP, c’est-a-
dire les postes de direction ou de confiance exclus des relations
de travail aux termes de la LRTP, n’ont pas la méme chance. Le
harcélement n’est pas une condition d’emploi qui peut étre
soumise a ’arbitrage. Les griefs sont renvoyés en amont aux
gestionnaires et aux cadres supérieurs, et ¢a ne va pas plus loin.
C’est formidable d’avoir une politique et de I’appliquer, mais
pour cette catégorie de travailleurs, D’application est un
probléme.

Il y a des fagons d’aller plus loin. J’ai déja défendu un certain
nombre d’employés non syndiqués assujettis a la LRTP. I1 est
possible de faire appliquer une politique comme celle-la, mais
c’est un processus exigeant et difficile.

Pour la troisiéme catégorie, ce n’est pas exigeant et difficile,
mais pratiquement impossible. Les employés qui sont a I’emploi
direct de sénateurs individuels ne disposent pas des droits
conférés par la LRTP leur permettant de faire appliquer des
décisions, de présenter des griefs et de contester des décisions.
Voila ce qui manque du cadre législatif global. Soit dit en
passant, je remarque que c’est un vide juridique auquel le projet
de loi C-65 ne remédie pas. Les employeurs individuels de la
Chambre des communes, les députés, sont inclus dans la
définition du terme « employeur » consignée aux termes du
projet de loi C-65, mais les sénateurs individuels ne le sont
toujours pas. Alors, je constate que 1’efficacité d’une politique
est tributaire de 1’efficacité de ses mécanismes d’application. Le
comité aurait peut-étre avantage a envisager la possibilité
d’apporter des modifications Ilégislatives aux mécanismes
d’application dont il est question ici.

Quatriémement, dans sa version actuelle, la politique exige
que tous les employés — ou toutes les personnes qu’elle vise —
soient informés de son existence. Ceci n’est pas suffisant. Selon
la littérature existante, la recherche et ma propre expérience, une
politique que I’on se contente de porter a [’attention des
employés est vite oubliée et se retrouve facilement en toile de
fond. C’est ce qui est arrivé a la majorité des centaines de
politiques en matiére de ressources humaines dont disposent les
employés du Sénat.

Si nous voulons vraiment remédier au harcélement — et je
crois que c’est le cas —, il est important de rafraichir la mémoire
des employés sur une base régulieére, d’exiger ponctuellement
que les employés passent en revue la politique ou I’approuvent.
Il est important de donner réguliérement des formations, de
passer les effectifs en revue sur une base régulicre, et cetera. Il
n’est pas suffisant d’exiger des employés qu’ils soient au courant
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Fifth, the policy as it’s drafted is owned by HR, so to speak.
The director of human resources is responsible for implementing
the policy for the bulk of Senate employees, responsible for
organizing the investigations and also responsible for ensuring
confidentiality. This puts HR and employees in a difficult spot.
It’s difficult for complaints to remain truly confidential if the
director of HR is responsible for them, because the director of
HR is ultimately also responsible for discipline and for
performance management. It’s hard to forget about the existence
of a pre-existing harassment complaint when you are dealing
with what could be unrelated or maybe related discipline or
performance management issues.

I would suggest this committee consider ways to get this
program out of HR. Either create a stand-alone ombudsperson
responsible for workplace wellness, including harassment, or,
alternatively, there is more than one PESRA employer. There are
the Senate, the House of Commons, the Library of Parliament
and so on. If it must reside in HR, think about cross-referring;
think about having, for example, the director of HR for the
Library of Parliament responsible for the Senate. Rotate it
around that way. It will create a greater confidentiality wall for
these complaints.

Sixth and finally, I’'m going to repeat what Ms. Rubin said: A
policy is good on its face, but workplace harassment starts with
management culture. That strong management culture is
necessary to prevent harassment in the workplace, and if
harassment in the workplace does occur, to deal with it quickly
and appropriately, to deal with it fairly for everyone involved —
complainants, respondents — but it starts with management
culture.

We can have a great policy, but if management is not going to
enforce it, and if management is not going to walk the walk as
well as talk the talk, no policy will be effective in preventing and
addressing workplace harassment. Those are the six points I
wanted to make briefly.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Rootham and Ms. Rubin. Those
were interesting presentations.

Senator Tkachuk: Two issues. You touched on both of them
— the definition. I’'m not sure if you know when you see it or
hear it, but, nonetheless, it is pretty hard to define. The second
point is that when you’re dealing with a small organization like

de I’existence de la politique. La politique devrait occuper une
place de premier plan.

Cinquiemement, dans sa forme actuelle, la politique appartient
pour ainsi dire aux ressources humaines, aux RH. La mise en
ceuvre de la politique pour le gros des employés du Sénat est
I’affaire du directeur des RH. C’est aussi lui qui est chargé
d’organiser les enquétes et d’assurer la confidentialité. Cela met
les ressources humaines et les employés dans une position
délicate. En effet, il est difficile de faire en sorte que les plaintes
restent vraiment confidentielles si c’est le directeur des RH qui
en a la responsabilité, puisqu’ultimement, ce dernier est
également responsable de la discipline et de la gestion du
rendement. Il est difficile d’oublier 1’existence d’une plainte de
harcélement préexistante lorsque vous devez traiter de problémes
connexes ou non connexes de discipline ou de rendement.

Je crois que le comité devrait penser a des fagons de soustraire
ce programme de I’emprise des ressources humaines. Cela
pourrait prendre la forme d’un poste d’ombudsman indépendant
pour le bien-&tre en milieu de travail — ce qui toucherait aussi
au harcélement. En fait, il y a plus qu’un seul employeur aux
termes de la LRTP : il y a le Sénat, la Chambre des communes,
la Bibliotheque du Parlement, et cetera. Si la politique doit rester
entre les mains des ressources humaines, vous pourriez envisager
la possibilité de renvois croisés. Par exemple, le directeur des
RH de la Bibliothéque du Parlement pourrait étre responsable du
Sénat. Ces déplacements de responsabilité permettraient
d’assurer une protection plus étanche concernant la
confidentialité de ces plaintes.

Sixiémement, et pour finir, je vais reprendre, en essence, ce
que Mme Rubin a dit : une politique peut étre bonne a premiére
vue, mais lorsqu’il est question de harcélement, il faut
commencer par la culture de gestion. Une culture de gestion
robuste est nécessaire pour prévenir le harcélement en milieu de
travail. Bien sir, il est essentiel que les cas de harcélement soient
traités rapidement et de fagon appropriée. Le traitement doit en
outre étre équitable pour toutes les parties en cause — les
plaignants, les intimés —, mais tout cela commence par la
culture de la gestion.

Nous pouvons avoir une politique formidable, mais si la
direction n’a pas I’intention de la faire appliquer et qu’elle n’a
pas D’intention de s’y conformer en gestes et en paroles, ce sera
peine perdue. Sans ces conditions, aucune politique ne saura
prévenir et traiter efficacement le harcélement en milieu de
travail. Voila les grandes lignes des six idées que je voulais vous
exposer.

La présidente : Maitre Rootham, madame Rubin, je vous
remercie. Vos exposés étaient intéressants.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Deux questions. Vous en avez parlé
tous les deux : la définition. Je ne sais pas si on le sait quand on
le voit ou qu’on I’entend, mais tout ce que je sais c’est que c’est
une notion qui est trés difficile a définir. La deuxiéme chose,
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the Senate, which we are, everyone knows each other. All the
managers know each other. They have meetings; they are
friends; they go to each other’s parties; they visit. It’s not as if
we have 2,000 people; it’s 400. It is more difficult for one
manager, when he gets a visit from one of his employees and
then finds out that person has reported him to another person or
someone in the organization about a harassment claim.

That’s why I buy the idea that it should be outside, especially
in a small organization like the Senate. I don’t know how your
experience has been with small organizations and how they deal
with it.

Ms. Rubin: Not all of our cases, but most of them, arise in
Ontario where we have Bill 132, which changed the
Occupational Health and Safety Act a couple of years ago and
clarified that employers are required by statute to conduct
investigations when they receive a workplace harassment
complaint or when they become aware of an incident of
workplace harassment. It was not just the official complaint
written and signed with a bow but an awareness of harassment.

That provision applies to large and small employers. In our
experience, the clarity that that brought about for employers in
Ontario was very helpful because it meant that they knew they
had to do something when they had this information. They were
required to conduct an investigation that was appropriate in the
circumstances. For some organizations, “appropriate in the
circumstances” might be an internal investigator, an
investigation done by somebody skillful.

But in other workplaces, perhaps small, that are highly
friendly, highly personal, for those organizations, and depending
on the severity of the complaint, often the decision is to refer
those investigations outside.

In our regime in Ontario, there is a certain flexibility, if you
like, to figure out what is appropriate in the circumstances — so
perhaps that flexibility of approach, internal — but I agree with
Mr. Rootham’s comments about who internally. But if you have
someone who is objective, unbiased and competent internally,
for some complaints, that’s perhaps the way to go. In other
situations, you would need to go external, it seems to me.

c’est que lorsqu’il s’agit d’une petite organisation comme le
Sénat, tout le monde connait tout le monde. Tous les
gestionnaires se connaissent entre eux. Ils ont des réunions; ils
ont des liens d’amitié; ils vont aux fétes des uns et des autres; ils
se rendent mutuellement visite. Ce n’est pas comme si
I’organisation comptait 2 000 personnes; nous sommes 400. Pour
un gestionnaire de notre organisation, le probléme est plus
épineux qu’ailleurs s’il recgoit la visite de 1’un de ses employés et
qu’il apprend par la suite que cet employé 1’a signalé pour
harcélement a quelqu’un d’autre ou a quelqu'un de
’organisation.

Voila pourquoi je souscris a 1’idée que cette instance devrait
étre a D’extérieur, surtout dans le cas d’une petite organisation
comme le Sénat. Je ne sais pas en quoi consiste votre expérience
a 1’égard des petites organisations et en ce concerne leur fagon
de composer avec ce probleme.

Mme Rubin : La plupart des affaires que nous traitons, mais
pas toutes, se déroulent en Ontario ou, il y a deux ans, on a
adopté le projet de loi 132 qui modifiait la Loi sur la santé et la
sécurité au travail et établissait clairement que les employeurs
étaient tenus par la loi d’effectuer des enquétes lorsqu’ils
recevaient des plaintes de harcelement ou lorsqu’ils avaient vent
d’un incident de harcélement en milieu de travail. Il ne s’agit pas
seulement d’une plainte écrite officielle et signée, mais d’une
possibilité de harcélement dont ils auraient eu vent.

Cette disposition s’applique aux grands et aux petits
employeurs. Selon notre expérience, la précision qu’a apportée
cette disposition pour les employeurs en Ontario a été tres utile,
parce que cela faisait en sorte qu’ils devaient agir lorsqu’ils
étaient mis au courant d’une situation. Les employeurs devaient
mener une enquéte appropriée dans les circonstances. Pour
certaines organisations, une enquéte « appropriée dans les
circonstances » peut se faire par un enquéteur interne, soit une
enquéte réalisée par une personne qualifiée.

Toutefois, dans d’autres situations, comme de petites
entreprises, ou le milieu de travail est trés convivial et que le
personnel est tissé serré, dans le cas de ces organisations, en
fonction de la gravité de la plainte, la décision est souvent prise
de transférer le dossier a un enquéteur externe.

Le régime ontarien offre une certaine flexibilité, pour ainsi
dire, en vue de décider ce qui est appropri¢ dans les
circonstances. Cette flexibilité, quant a I’approche, peut donc
vouloir dire une enquéte interne, mais je suis d’accord avec les
commentaires de Me Rootham pour dire qu’il faut établir la
personne a l’interne qui le fera. Cependant, si vous avez une
personne objective, impartiale et compétente dans votre
organisation, c’est une possibilité pour certaines plaintes. Dans
d’autres circonstances, il faudra faire appel a un enquéteur
externe, 4 mon avis.
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Mr. Rootham: To address the point in a little different way,
part of the issue with a smaller organization like the Senate is
that you’re going to have a number of employees who come
from the federal public service. There is going to be an
expectation gap in terms of what is available to deal with
harassment complaints in a smaller organization like the Senate
versus the federal public service. If there is a complaint against a
manager, you can’t transfer the complainant all the time. Your
organization isn’t always big enough to do that.

You can’t have the Cadillac year-and-a-half-long investigation
into harassment done by someone with 45 years of experience in
the field who is willing to conduct 23 days of interviews with
people. Different organizations will come with different
expectations and different time frames that you should be
working within to deal with harassment complaints.

In my experience in dealing with smaller organizations, it is
speed. Once you find out about the complaint, investigate the
thing; get an investigator and investigation lined up. There is
nothing preventing investigations to be done in a matter of weeks
and not months or years, unlike what often happens, in my
experience, in the rest of the federal public sector. That’s one
way that the Senate, as a smaller organization, can address what
I think some of the issues are that you are hinting at in your
question.

Ms. Rubin: It is important to recognize where you are. The
smallness might be a factor, and the fact that people have
collegial relationships, and it sounds like people are into
everyone else’s business here. Perhaps that is not the right way
to put it, but I think that this particular context needs to inform
your program. And the smallness and what it feels like to work
here may be a particular factor for under-reporting; right?
Everyone is going to find out.

Senator Tkachuk: Yes.

Ms. Rubin: If I come forward with a complaint against so-
and-so, everyone finds out; I’'m going to suffer reprisals. The
smallness needs to be thought through as part of the program that
gives your policy life.

Senator Tkachuk: The other issue — let’s say it’s against a
senator — is what happens to that employee? No matter what
happens, whether it was found for the employee or for the
employer, that relationship is finished; so that person has to go
somewhere. Well, there is really nowhere to go. This is a small
place. If there is no job in a Senate office, you're done like
dinner. That’s a problem.

The Chair: Yes, we have to address this.

M. Rootham : Je vais aborder la question d’une maniére
légérement différente. Une partie du probléme avec les petites
organisations comme le Sénat, c’est que vous aurez un certain
nombre d’employés qui sont des fonctionnaires fédéraux. Il y a
un écart par rapport aux attentes en ce qui a trait aux outils pour
intervenir en cas de plainte de harcélement dans une petite
organisation comme le Sénat par rapport a la fonction publique
fédérale. Si une plainte est déposée contre un gestionnaire, vous
ne pouvez pas toujours transférer le plaignant; votre organisation
n’est pas suffisamment grande pour le faire.

Vous ne pouvez pas réaliser une grosse enquéte d’un an et
demi sur une plainte de harcélement qui sera réalisée par une
personne qui a 45 ans d’expérience dans le domaine et qui est
disposée a mener 23 jours d’entrevues. Les attentes et le délai
que vous avez pour traiter les plaintes de harcélement varieront
d’une organisation a 1’autre.

Selon mon expérience avec de petites organisations, c’est la
vitesse. Lorsque vous étes informés de la plainte, déclenchez une
enquéte; trouvez un enquéteur, et lancez I’enquéte. Il n’y a rien
qui vous empéche de boucler I’enquéte en quelques semaines au
lieu que cela prenne des mois ou des années, comme je le
constate souvent, selon mon expérience, dans le reste de la
fonction publique fédérale. Voila une maniére dont le Sénat,
comme petite organisation, peut s’attaquer & certains enjeux
auxquels je crois que vous faites allusion dans votre question.

Mme Rubin : Vous devez étre conscients de votre situation.
La petite taille de votre organisation peut étre un facteur, de
méme que 1’esprit de collégialité qui y régne, et il semble que
tout le monde se connait ici. Ce n’est peut-étre pas la meilleure
fagon de le dire, mais je crois que ce contexte particulier doit
orienter votre programme. De plus, je présume que la petite taille
de votre organisation et le contexte de travail au Sénat peuvent
expliquer la sous-déclaration, n’est-ce pas? Tout le monde va
I’apprendre.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Oui.

Mme Rubin : Si je dépose une plainte contre un tel, tout le
monde sera au courant. Je subirai des représailles. Vous devez
vraiment tenir compte de la petite taille de votre organisation
dans le programme qui donne vie a votre politique.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : L’autre probléme — disons que la
plainte vise un sénateur — est de savoir ce qui adviendra de
I’employé. Indépendamment de ce qui arrivera, que 1’enquéte
donne raison a I’employé ou a I’employeur, cette relation est
fichue. Cette personne doit donc aller ailleurs, mais il n’y a nulle
part d’autre ou aller. C’est une petite organisation. S’il n’y a
aucun emploi dans un bureau au Sénat, vous étes fichu. C’est un
probléme.

La présidente : Oui. Nous devons nous pencher sur ce
probléme.
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Senator Tannas: We have received advice from a number of
sources. [ think, in our minds, a lot of us are thinking about
outside. Can you confirm that there are end-to-end service
providers that could provide us with a 1-800 counselling service
on a no-names basis, then move, if necessary, to investigation
and ultimately a finding that then we could take internally for
consequences? And then do the proactive surveying that you
were talking about to make sure that it’s not staying
underground, that we actually are moving the needle on
eliminating things. Is there an organization that would do that for
us?

Ms. Rubin: At the risk of sounding like a commercial,
Senator Tannas, that’s what we do. We decided to shift the
primary focus of our firm from traditional employment law to
this work because we detected a need in many organizations
across the country for exactly that. One, to be able to say that in
this situation we are referring this investigation to an external
expert, and two, to bring a level of experience and expertise to
the issue that isn’t always there.

We ourselves do not do the 1-800 program, but that is an easy
add-on. There are lots of providers who do that. We are not the
exclusive law firm that does this. Lots of law firms do this.
Christopher’s law firm may do it, too. We may be unique in that
this is the only work that we do at this level and volume.

The Chair: First we have to go to an open competition when
we have to hire professional services. It is important to state that.

We’ll have to go for a vote in the chamber. I would like to ask
you to be as concise as possible because I wouldn’t like you to
be obliged to wait for us once again. Sorry about that.

Mr. Rootham: Yes, there are service providers that can do
that. Think about whether you might want two service providers,
one to do the wall-to-wall investigation, findings, maybe the
survey; and the 1-800 you want to keep separate from the actual
investigators. If it’s one organization, maybe two wings within
that organization doing both sides of the job.

Senator Tannas: So the speed with which you conduct an
investigation and get to a finding, and us referring to a group of
lawyers, does that not cause the accused to lawyer up and the
whole thing to just pancake in terms of timing and speed, or how
does that work?

Le sénateur Tannas : Nous avons regu des conseils de
diverses sources. Je crois que bon nombre d’entre nous regardent
a Pextérieur de I’organisation. Pouvez-vous nous confirmer qu’il
existe des fournisseurs de services de bout en bout qui pourraient
nous donner un numéro sans frais pour obtenir, de facon
anonyme, des services de consultation et que nous pourrions
ensuite, le cas échéant, mener une enquéte et en arriver a des
conclusions auxquelles nous pourrions ensuite donner suite a
I’interne? Nous pourrions ensuite réaliser des sondages proactifs,
comme vous le mentionniez, pour nous assurer que ce probléme
ne reste pas invisible et que nous faisons bouger les choses pour
¢liminer ce fléau. Y a-t-il un organisme qui le ferait pour nous?

Mme Rubin : Au risque de donner 1’impression de faire de la
publicité, sénateur Tannas, c’est ce que nous faisons. Nous avons
décidé de réorienter les principales activités de notre cabinet;
nous sommes passés du droit du travail traditionnel a ce
domaine, parce que nous avons remarqué que bon nombre
d’organisations au pays avaient des besoins en la matiére.
Premiérement, cela permet de dire que, dans une telle situation,
nous transférons 1’enquéte a un spécialiste externe, et cela
permet aussi en deuxiéme lieu d’apporter une expérience et une
expertise dans le dossier, soit des éléments qui font parfois
défaut.

Nous n’avons pas de ligne sans frais, mais ce serait un ajout
facile. I y a beaucoup de fournisseurs qui offrent de tels
services. Nous ne sommes pas le seul cabinet d’avocats a le
faire. Bon nombre de cabinets d’avocats le font. Le cabinet
d’avocats de Christopher le fait peut-étre également. Nous
sommes peut-étre uniques au sens ou c’est la seule sphére
d’activité sur laquelle nous mettons autant I’accent.

La présidente : Premiérement, nous devons lancer un
concours externe lorsque nous voulons obtenir des services
professionnels. C’est important de le rappeler.

Nous devrons retourner au Sénat pour un vote. J’aimerais vous
demander d’étre le plus concis possible, car je ne voudrais pas
encore une fois vous obliger & nous attendre. Je m’en excuse.

M. Rootham : Oui. Il y a des fournisseurs de services qui
peuvent le faire. Vous pourriez opter pour deux fournisseurs de
services : un fournisseur qui s’occupe de tout, de I’enquéte, des
conclusions et peut-étre du sondage, et un autre fournisseur qui
s’occupe de la ligne sans frais et qui est distinct des enquéteurs.
S’il y a un seul organisme, il pourrait y avoir deux groupes au
sein de cet organisme qui gere les deux volets.

Le sénateur Tannas : Donc, si nous arrivons rapidement a
réaliser ’enquéte, a arriver a des conclusions et a transférer le
dossier a un groupe d’avocats, cela ne fait-il pas en sorte que
I’accusé retienne aussi les services d’un avocat et que le respect
des délais et la rapidité d’exécution prennent le bord? Comment
cela fonctionne-t-il?
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Mr. Rootham: Lawyers can take meetings quickly.

Senator Tannas: What if the other side doesn’t want to
cooperate? This is a live example of something that happened
with us.

Mr. Rootham: Yes, of course. At the risk of coming across in
the abstract, the rules of procedural fairness, in any case, are
variable and flexible depending upon the context, and,
sometimes, the rules of procedural fairness in a case do not
permit endless adjournments. An investigator can say, “The
investigation is going to take place within this time frame. I am
available on these four days. Get yourself available. Your right
to counsel is outweighed by the need to process this within a
reasonable time frame.”

Senator Tannas: Great.

Mr. Rootham: They can do that.

Senator Tannas: Thank you.
[Translation]

The Chair: For your information, the vote will take place at
6:48 p.m., which leaves us a little time.

[English]

Senator Moncion: You were speaking of help that staff could
have access to, and we have something that is quicker when an
event occurs. I think we have that access through Morneau
Shepell. We have a contract with them. I think you’re allowed to
call them on an issue like this. It’s a confidential answer, and you
get counselling. We’d have to check within the contract that we
have with them to see if that is available.

One comment that you made I’'m a little bit surprised by.
Complaints made in bad faith — there is some kind of language
in our policy that says that. How do we deal with complaints that
are made in bad faith? I understand that we’re going to remove it
from the policy, but how do we deal with those?

Mr. Rootham: You could make it clear in the policy that it is
not a form of reprisal to take steps to address a complaint that
was made in bad faith. So it’s not — making a complaint in bad
faith is not, in itself, a form of harassment. It’s not, in itself,
going to result in someone else filing a harassment complaint;
but, if an employee is making a complaint in bad faith, an
employer is still well within their rights to deal with that through
disciplinary, through performance management, through — it
can be a mental health issue — requesting better medical
information about what is really going on with an employee.
There are a myriad of ways an employer can deal with bad-faith

M. Rootham : Les avocats peuvent tenir rapidement des
réunions.

Le sénateur Tannas : Que se passe-t-il si I’autre partie ne
veut pas coopérer? C’est un exemple réel d’une situation qui est
survenue ici.

M. Rootham : Oui, évidemment. Au risque de faire dans
I’abstrait, les régles d’équité procédurale sont toujours variables
et flexibles en fonction du contexte, et il arrive parfois que les
régles d’équité procédurale ne permettent pas de remettre a
I’infini les entrevues. Un enquéteur peut dire a la personne
concernée que I’enquéte aura lieu au cours de cette période et
qu’il est disponible ces quatre jours. Il peut informer la personne
concernée qu’elle doit se rendre disponible et que la nécessité de
réaliser I’enquéte dans un délai raisonnable 1’emporte sur son
droit a un avocat.

Le sénateur Tannas : Parfait.

M. Rootham : C’est possible.

Le sénateur Tannas : Merci.
[Frangais]

La présidente : Pour votre information, le vote se tiendra a
18 h 48, ce qui nous laisse encore un peu de temps.

[Traduction]

La sénatrice Moncion : Vous avez parlé d’aide a laquelle le
personnel pourrait avoir accés, et nous avons quelque chose de
plus rapide lorsqu’une situation se présente. Je crois que nous y
avons acces par I’intermédiaire de Morneau Shepell. Nous avons
un contrat avec cette entreprise, et je crois que vous pouvez
I’appeler dans un tel cas. C’est confidentiel, et vous obtenez des
services de consultation. Il faudrait relire le contrat que nous
avons avec I’entreprise pour voir si ¢’est offert.

L’un de vos commentaires m’a un peu surprise. Au sujet des
plaintes de mauvaise foi, il y a quelque chose dans notre
politique a cet effet. Comment gérer les plaintes de mauvaise
foi? Je crois comprendre que ce sera retiré de la politique, mais
j’aimerais vous entendre sur la fagon de gérer de telles plaintes.

M. Rootham : Vous pourriez préciser clairement dans la
politique que ce n’est pas une forme de représailles que de
prendre des mesures dans le cas d’une plainte de mauvaise foi.
Bref, une plainte de mauvaise foi n’est pas, en soi, une forme de
harcélement. Cela ne ménera pas en soi une autre personne a
déposer une plainte de harcélement. Toutefois, si un employé
dépose une plainte de mauvaise foi, I’employeur a parfaitement
le droit de prendre des mesures disciplinaires contre 1’employé,
de le faire par I’entremise du processus de gestion du rendement
ou, dans le cas d’un probléme de santé mentale, d’exiger de
meilleurs renseignements médicaux sur I’état de santé réel de
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harassment complaints, without characterizing it as harassment
and without dealing with it in the harassment policy itself.

Ms. Rubin: If I could add to that, certainly, from our
experience as practitioners, it is a very small number of
complaints that actually are brought in bad faith. There can be
complaints that are not substantiated because a person is not
credible, a person is not reliable, but that’s different than bad
faith. The bar of bad faith, legally, is actually quite high. So I
think it would be very rare to actually encounter that in the
workplace, not impossible, but very rare. What does happen, for
some employers — and, again, stressing the need to have
competent investigators and a very robust understanding of
workplace harassment — is that the idea of an unsubstantiated
complaint and a complaint in bad faith gets conflated: Your
complaint is not substantiated, so automatically it’s in bad faith.
That’s just not the case.

[Translation]

The Chair: Senator Moncion, do you have another question?

Senator Moncion: No, not for the time being.

The Chair: I will allow myself a question before the second
round. It is addressed to Mr. Rootham.

[English]

You referred to the necessity for the Senate to have some
changes in the law, especially with regard to the staffers of
senators. Would you tell us more about that?

Mr. Rootham: As you’re aware, PESRA protects employees
of the Senate. But there are still what I’'ll call “individual
staffers,” who work directly with a senator. They are not
employees of the Senate. They are employees of individual
senators. As the law is currently written, there is zero statutory
protection for these employees outside of, arguably, the
Canadian Human Rights Act. But that deals with certain forms of
harassment. It does not deal with abuse of authority harassment
or just behaviour that is not motivated by sex or race or the other
prohibited grounds in the Canadian Human Rights Act.

I should pause here to say that this is also true for ministerial
staffers. It’s also true for staffers of individual members of
Parliament in the House of Commons. Bill C-65 goes some way
to closing that gap by including individual members of the
House of Commons in the definition of “employer” for the

I’employé. Un employeur a de multiples maniéres d’intervenir
dans le cas de plaintes de harcélement de mauvaise foi, sans
qualifier cela de harcélement et sans passer par la politique sur le
harcélement.

Mme Rubin : Si vous me le permettez, j’aimerais compléter
sa réponse. D’aprés notre expérience a titre de professionnels en
exercice, il y a en fait trés peu de plaintes de mauvaise foi. Il
peut y avoir des plaintes qui ne sont pas fondées, parce qu’une
personne n’est pas crédible ou qu’elle n’est pas fiable, mais ce ne
sont pas des plaintes de mauvaise foi. Sur le plan juridique, pour
dire que quelque chose est de mauvaise foi, les critéres sont en
fait trés élevés. Je crois donc qu’il serait trés rare d’en voir en
milieu de travail, méme si ce n’est pas impossible, mais ce serait
trés rare. Ce qui arrive — je souligne encore une fois la nécessité
d’avoir des enquéteurs compétents et une compréhension trés
approfondie du harceélement en milieu de travail —, c’est que
certains employeurs confondent les plaintes non fondées et les
plaintes de mauvaise foi. Si une plainte n’est pas fondée, certains
présument automatiquement que la plainte est donc de mauvaise
foi. Or, ce n’est pas le cas.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Sénatrice Moncion, avez-vous une autre
question?

La sénatrice Moncion : Non, pas pour I’instant.

La présidente : Je vais me permettre une question avant le
deuxiéme tour. Elle s’adresse a M. Rootham.

[Traduction]

Vous avez souligné la nécessité pour le Sénat de modifier la
loi, en particulier en ce qui concerne les employés des sénateurs.
Pouvez-vous nous en dire davantage a ce sujet?

M. Rootham : Comme vous le savez, la Loi sur les relations
de travail au Parlement protége les employés du Sénat.
Toutefois, il y a encore des employés que je qualifierai
d’employés « personnels » qui travaillent directement pour les
sénateurs. Ce ne sont pas des employés du Sénat. Ce sont des
employés des sénateurs. Selon le libellé actuel de la loi, ces
employés n’ont aucune protection en vertu de la loi, mis a part
peut-étre la Loi canadienne sur les droits de la personne. Méme
si cela vise certaines formes de harcélement, cela ne concerne
pas le harcélement lié a I’abus de pouvoir ou les comportements
qui ne sont pas fondés sur le sexe ou la race ou les autres motifs
de distinction illicite en vertu de la Loi canadienne sur les droits
de la personne.

Je devrais prendre un moment pour préciser que cela
s’applique aussi aux employés des ministres et des députés de la
Chambre des communes. Le projet de loi C-65 réussit a certains

égards a réduire ces lacunes en incluant les députés de la
Chambre des communes dans la définition d’employeur aux fins
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purposes of the harassment or the occupational health and safety
provisions in PESRA, so that the staffers of individual members
of Parliament have a forum for complaint if and when Bill C-65
becomes law. But individual senators are still not included in the
definition of “employer.” So that’s one possible fix to it.

Other possible fixes would probably be well beyond the scope
of what I’m here to testify about and would involve complicated
issues of balancing parliamentary privilege against common law
and statutory rights of individual staffers. I’'m happy to get into it
for a few hours, but let’s focus on what we’re here to focus on.
That is one thought, though.

The Chair: Ms. Rubin you referred to an ombudsperson. Can
this person be within the Senate, or would it be better, given the
small size of the institution, that this person be an outsider?

Ms. Rubin: I think it was actually Mr. Rootham who referred
to the ombudsperson. But the way some organizations do this is
that they have an internal person, but, through contract, that
internal person is given certain independence to ensure that there
are no reprisals against them for rendering decisions that perhaps
are unpopular or are problematic for individual members within
the organization. So I think that if you were to have an internal
person, you would need some protections around that.

In the university sector in Ontario, post-Bill 132, most
universities have a dedicated harassment officer who deals with,
often, a lot of the intake of harassment and violence complaints,
sometimes investigates them, sometimes sends them outside. So
I think there is no one size for every organization. I think it
would depend.

The Chair: Mr. Rootham, do you want to add on this
ombudsman question?

Mr. Rootham: Just to say that in the university sector, in my
experience, the individual responsible is not also the person
responsible for human resources within the faculty. They split
the roles.

The Chair: You made it very clear, both of you. Thank you.

Senator Moncion: For employees, who, let’s say, put in a
complaint, what is the protection they have for their job?
Because it’s nowhere in the policy.

des dispositions sur le harcélement et la santé et la sécurité au
travail de la Loi sur les relations de travail au Parlement. Ainsi,
les employés des députés auront un moyen pour formuler une
plainte si jamais le projet de loi C-65 est adopté. Toutefois, les
sénateurs ne sont toujours pas inclus dans la définition
d’employeur. Voila donc une possible solution au probléme.

D’autres possibles solutions iraient probablement au-dela de la
portée de nos discussions ici aujourd’hui; cela porterait sur des
enjeux complexes en vue de trouver un équilibre entre le
privilége parlementaire et la common law et les droits prévus par
la loi pour les employés des sénateurs. Je serai ravi de vous en
parler quelques heures, mais je crois que nous devrions nous
concentrer sur le sujet de la réunion. Par contre, c’est une idée.

La présidente : Madame Rubin, vous avez parlé¢ d’un poste
de protecteur. Le titulaire de ce poste peut-il faire partie du Sénat
ou serait-il préférable, compte tenu de la petite taille de
I’institution, que cette personne soit a Dextérieur de
I’organisation?

Mme Rubin : Je crois que c’était, en fait, M. Rootham qui a
mentionné la création d’un poste de protecteur, mais certains
organismes le font avec une personne a I’interne. Un contrat est
conclu avec cette personne a l’interne pour lui accorder une
certaine indépendance pour qu’elle soit a I’abri de toutes
représailles si elle rend des décisions qui risquent d’étre mal vues
ou de poser probléme a certains au sein de 1’organisation. Bref,
je crois que, si vous aviez une personne a 1’interne, vous devriez
prévoir une manicre de protéger le titulaire de ce poste.

Dans le milieu universitaire en Ontario, depuis I’adoption du
projet de loi 132, la majorité des universités ont un agent attitré
aux dossiers de harcélement qui traite souvent beaucoup de
plaintes de harcélement et de violence, qui réalise parfois des
enquétes et qui transfére parfois aussi des dossiers a des
enquéteurs externes. Bref, je ne crois pas qu’il y a une solution
unique qui fonctionne dans tous les cas; je crois que cela dépend.

La présidente : Monsieur Rootham, voulez-vous ajouter
quelque chose au sujet du poste de protecteur?

M. Rootham : J’aimerais seulement ajouter que, dans le
milieu universitaire, selon mon expérience, 1’agent qui s’occupe
des plaintes et le responsable des ressources humaines au sein de
la faculté ne sont pas la méme personne. Les fonctions sont
séparées.

La présidente : Vous ’avez tous les deux tres bien expliqué.
Mereci.

La sénatrice Moncion : Pour les employés qui formulent une
plainte, par exemple, quelle protection ont-ils quant a leur
emploi? Ce n’est pas précisé dans la politique.
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Mr. Rootham: The policy does prohibit reprisals as a result,
and a reprisal would include termination of employment.

Senator Moncion: I understand. But how do you —

Mr. Rootham: How do you enforce it?
Senator Moncion: Yes.

Mr. Rootham: If you’re PESRA unionized, you enforce it
through grievance adjudication. If it’s termination of
employment, PESRA non-union can also grieve and go to
adjudication on it. For senatorial staffers, nothing. There’s
nothing.

Senator Moncion: How do we protect them? We don’t?

Mr. Rootham: You find some method, either internally find a
way to guarantee or protect employment, or protect them
financially until they can find reasonable alternative
employment.

[Translation]
The Chair: Are there any other questions?
[English]

Ms. Rubin, Mr. Rootham and Ms. Bird, thank you so much for
your presentations. We will be in touch. We have received very
value-added information from all of you. Please do not hesitate
if, after these hearings, you want to add something either in
writing or verbally. Please get in touch with us and we’ll be very
pleased to hear from you again.

My apologies to Professor Hershcovis. We will have to
suspend and, immediately after the vote, we will be back in order
to hear from you. Thank you.

[Translation]

I declare the meeting suspended until the end of the vote in the
Senate.

The Chair: Honourable senators, may I introduce our second
expert of the day. From the University of Calgary, we welcome
Sandy Hershcovis, Associate Professor and Area Chair,
Organisational Behaviour and Human Resources. The professor
very kindly provided us with a written list of specific
suggestions. I thank you, that is very much appreciated. Without
further ado, I now give you the floor.

M. Rootham : La politique interdit les représailles contre un
employé qui a formulé une plainte, et la cessation d’emploi est
une forme de représailles.

La sénatrice Moncion : Je
comment pouvons-nous...

le comprends. Cependant,

M. Rootham : Comment pouvons-nous nous en assurer?
La sénatrice Moncion : Oui.

M. Rootham : Un employé syndiqué en vertu de la Loi sur
les relations de travail au Parlement peut faire respecter la
politique au moyen d’un grief. Dans le cas d’une cessation
d’emploi, un employé non syndiqué en vertu de la Loi sur les
relations de travail au Parlement peut aussi présenter un grief et
se rendre en arbitrage. Dans le cas des employés des sénateurs,
que dalle. Il n’y a rien.

La sénatrice Moncion : Comment
protéger? Ne les protégerions-nous pas?

pouvons-nous les

M. Rootham : Vous trouvez des fagons au sein de
I’institution de garantir ou de protéger 1I’emploi ou vous protégez
financiérement 1’employé jusqu’a ce qu’il se trouve un autre
emploi raisonnable.

[Frangais]
La présidente : Y a-t-il d’autres questions?
[Traduction]

Madame Rubin, monsieur Rootham, madame Bird, merci
beaucoup de vos témoignages. Nous resterons en contact. Vous
nous avez donné des renseignements a trés grande valeur
ajoutée. Si vous voulez ajouter quelque chose par écrit ou de
vive voix apreés la réunion, n’hésitez pas a communiquer avec
nous; nous serons ravis d’avoir d’autres commentaires.

Toutes mes excuses, madame Hershcovis. Nous devons
suspendre nos travaux, puis nous reviendrons immeédiatement
apres le vote écouter votre témoignage. Merci.

[Frangais]

Je déclare la séance suspendue jusqu’a la fin du vote au Sénat.

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, je vous présente notre
deuxiéme experte aujourd’hui. De 1’Université de Calgary, nous
accueillons Sandy Hershcovis, professeure agrégée et directrice
de secteur, Comportement organisationnel et Ressources
humaines. La professeure a eu la gentillesse de nous présenter
par écrit un certain nombre de suggestions précises. Je vous en
remercie, c’est trés apprécié. Sans plus tarder, nous allons vous
entendre.
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[English]

Sandy Hershcovis, Associate Professor and Area Chair,
Organizational Behaviour and Human Resources, University
of Calgary: Good evening. It’s an honour to be here today to
discuss the Senate’s policy on the prevention and resolution of
harassment in the workplace.

I’ve specialized in the scientific study of workplace
harassment for the last 15 years. In my comments, I’ll touch on
three main issues: definition, the challenges around dealing with
workplace harassment, and prevention. For the sake of clarity,
throughout these comments, 1 refer to alleged harassers as
perpetrators and those who report harassment as victims.

There are many definitions of workplace harassment, and
scholars often disagree on these definitions. Appended to my
verbal comments are examples of definitions of sexual and non-
sexual harassment. I’ve asked Mr. Charbonneau to distribute this
to the committee.

I want to highlight three key components of what I consider to
be a good definition.

First, harassment, both in its sexual and non-sexual forms,
does not always occur within the confines of organizational
boundaries. Cyberharassment has become increasingly
problematic as employees harass co-workers through various
online channels, including email, social media and text
messaging. Any definition of harassment should include
behaviours that may extend beyond organizational time and
space boundaries.

Second, I encourage the committee to be broad in its
definition. Sometimes policy-makers fear broad definitions
because they think it will encourage people to over-report, but as
I’ll explain in a few moments, victims are far more likely to
under-report than over-report harassment. A broad definition
sends a strong message that the organization will not tolerate
harassment of any kind.

Third, I recommend that you explicitly define “gender
harassment,” which is by far the most prevalent form of sexual
harassment. Gender harassment consists of demeaning or hostile
gender-related comments, often from more powerful toward less
powerful employees. They range in severity from obscene
gestures and sexual insults to seemingly less severe comments
and remarks that may even seem benevolent. For example,
referring to a female colleague as “sweetie” or “honey” serves to
infantilize them.

[Traduction]

Sandy Hershcovis, professeure agrégée et directrice de
secteur, Comportement organisationnel et Ressources
humaines, Université de Calgary : Bonjour. C’est un honneur
d’étre ici aujourd’hui pour discuter de la Politique du Sénat sur
la prévention et le réglement du harcélement en milieu de travail.

Je me spécialise dans 1’étude scientifique du harcelement en
milieu de travail depuis 15 ans. Dans mes commentaires,
j’aborderai trois principaux enjeux : la définition, les difficultés
lorsque vient le temps de s’occuper du harcelement en milieu de
travail et la prévention. Par souci de clarté, dans mes
commentaires, les présumés harceleurs seront appelés des
auteurs, et les gens qui signalent des cas de harcélement seront
appelés des victimes.

11 existe de nombreuses définitions du harcelement en milieu
de travail, et il arrive souvent que les universitaires aient des
opinions divergentes quant a ces définitions. Vous trouverez en
annexe de mon exposé des exemples de définitions du
harcélement sexuel et non sexuel. J’ai demandé a
M. Charbonneau de distribuer le document aux membres du
comité.

Je tiens a souligner trois ¢léments clés de ce qui constitue,
selon moi, une bonne définition.

Premicrement, le harcélement, tant sexuel que non sexuel, ne
survient pas toujours a I’intérieur des limites organisationnelles.
Songeons a la cyberintimidation, qui est devenue de plus en plus
problématique; en effet, certains employés harcelent leurs
collegues de travail par divers modes de communication en
ligne, comme le courriel, les médias sociaux et la messagerie
texte. Toute définition de harcélement devrait donc englober des
comportements qui pourraient se manifester a 1’extérieur des
heures et du lieu de travail.

Deuxiemement, j’encourage le comité a ratisser large au
moment d’élaborer une définition. Parfois, les décideurs
craignent les définitions trop générales parce qu’ils pensent que
cela va encourager les gens a signaler des incidents a tout bout
de champ, mais comme je vais l’expliquer dans quelques
instants, les victimes sont beaucoup plus susceptibles de ne pas
déclarer les cas de harcélement que d’en trop déclarer. Une
définition large du terme envoie un message clair, a savoir que
I’organisation ne tolérera aucune forme de harcélement.

Troisiemement, je recommande que vous définissiez
explicitement le « harcélement fondé sur le sexe », qui est, de
loin, la forme la plus répandue de harcélement sexuel. Le
harcélement fondé sur le sexe consiste a faire des remarques
avilissantes ou hostiles liées a 1’appartenance sexuelle, souvent
de la part d’un employ¢ en position d’autorité envers un collegue
ayant moins de pouvoir. Cela varie en gravité, allant de gestes
obscénes et d’insultes de nature sexuelle a des propos et
remarques apparemment moins graves, qui peuvent méme
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Commenting on someone’s physical or aesthetic appearance,
even in jest, can be degrading and may undermine the victim’s
confidence. These are put-downs rather than come-ons, and
many people are not aware that these behaviours are degrading
and insulting. A large body of research shows that gender
harassment has significant effects on an employee’s
psychological well-being, job satisfaction and turnover.

Next, I’'ll talk briefly about the key challenges I see in
responding to sexual harassment and harassment generally. First,
victims are afraid to speak up and with good reason. They’re
often not believed or made to feel like it’s their fault. They fear
retaliation. They fear nothing will change. They might also fear
getting someone into trouble.

Second, when victims do speak up, proving that harassment
has occurred can be very difficult. Often, perpetrators are cleared
of any wrongdoing, and that may not be because perpetrators are
innocent. It is more likely the victim couldn’t prove the
harassment. The victim is then left in a situation where they have
to face the accused and continue to work with and, often, for
them.

Third, perpetrators regularly retaliate against victims who
voice harassment concerns.

In updating your current harassment policy, I recommend the
committee consider what this policy can do to make it easier for
victims and witnesses to report harassment safely and to ensure
that you protect victims and witnesses from retaliation. Since
victims are in a vulnerable position, I think witnesses are a key
resource in the investigation process.

I have a few recommendations. First, victims and witnesses
should be able to voice concerns anonymously. To the extent
possible, the investigation process should protect victim and
witness identity.

Second, currently the government and opposition whips handle
reports of harassment against senators and Senate staff, so
victims are required to report harassment from senators to other
powerful senators. This is likely to be a huge deterrent to

sembler bienveillants. Par exemple, le fait d’interpeller une
collégue par des mots comme « ma belle » ou « chérie » sert a
I’infantiliser.

Faire des observations sur I’apparence physique ou esthétique
de quelqu’un, méme par simple plaisanterie, peut s’avérer
dégradant, au risque de saper la confiance de la victime. Ce ne
sont pas des avances insistantes, mais plutdt des remarques
dénigrantes, et bien des gens ignorent que ces comportements
sont dégradants et insultants. Un grand nombre de travaux de
recherche révélent que le harcélement fondé sur le sexe a des
répercussions importantes sur le bien-étre psychologique des
employés, leur satisfaction au travail et le taux de roulement.

Je wvais maintenant parler brievement des principales
difficultés que j’entrevois quand vient le temps de s’occuper du
harcélement sexuel et du harcélement en général. En premier
lieu, les victimes ont peur de se manifester, et avec raison. On ne
les croit souvent pas ou on leur fait sentir que c’est leur faute.
Les victimes ont peur des représailles. Elles craignent que rien
ne change. Elles pourraient aussi avoir peur d’attirer des ennuis a
quelqu’un.

En deuxiéme lieu, lorsque les victimes brisent le silence, la
tache de prouver qu’un acte de harcélement a été commis peut se
révéler tres difficile. Souvent, les auteurs de harcélement sont
disculpés de tout écart de conduite, et ce n’est pas
nécessairement parce qu’ils sont innocents. C’est fort
probablement parce que la victime n’a pas pu prouver le
harcélement. La victime se retrouve alors dans une situation ou
elle doit faire face a I’accusé et continuer a travailler avec lui et,
souvent, pour lui.

En troisiéme lieu, les auteurs usent régulierement de
représailles contre les victimes qui soulévent des préoccupations
en matiere de harcélement.

Au moment de mettre a jour votre politique actuelle sur le
harcélement, je vous recommande de songer a la fagon dont cette
politique peut faciliter la tache des victimes et des témoins pour
ce qui est de signaler des cas de harcélement en toute sécurité,
tout en vous assurant de les protéger contre les représailles.
Puisque les victimes se trouvent en position de vulnérabilité, je
crois que les témoins constituent une ressource essentielle dans
le cadre du processus d’enquéte.

J’ai quelques recommandations a vous faire. Premiérement, les
victimes et les témoins devraient étre en mesure d’exprimer leurs
inquiétudes de facon anonyme. Le processus d’enquéte devrait,
dans la mesure du possible, protéger 1’identité des victimes et
des témoins.

Deuxiemement, a I’heure actuelle, ce sont les whips du
gouvernement et de l’opposition qui s’occupent des cas de
harcélement signalés mettant en cause des sénateurs et des
membres du personnel du Sénat; par conséquent, les victimes
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reporting. Reports of harassment are best addressed to an
impartial third party, such as an ombudsman.

In terms of prevention, the first step to prevention is having a
strong policy, which this committee has already undertaken. Of
course, to have teeth, there need to be real consequences for
perpetrators. Having a policy with no consequences isn’t much
of a deterrent for bad behaviour. Since powerful people are often
the harassers, this presents a challenge when the perpetrator is a
senator.

In other organizations, people can be fired for engaging in
harassment. In the Senate, the least powerful people, those most
likely to be victims, can be fired, but the most powerful people
and those who are more likely to engage in harassment are much
harder to fire. Although senators can be expelled, to my
knowledge the Senate has never voted to expel a senator. It’s
difficult to have an effective policy when there are no serious
repercussions. Such a system is also very likely to discourage
reporting.

[’m aware that the Senate consists of more than just senators,
but senators are the most powerful members of this organization,
so I urge this committee to identify substantive consequences of
harassment for senators and other perpetrators and to ensure that
they are clearly stated in the policy.

A second way to prevent harassment is to eliminate the
contextual conditions that cause harassment. In particular, highly
stressful environments create a breeding ground for non-sexual
harassing behaviours. When people are stressed, they become
reactive and may lash out at colleagues. Ensuring the work
environment is as stress-free as possible and providing
opportunities for employees to deal with stress can help with
prevention.

Another way to prevent harassment is to involve all employees
in the policy revision process. This engages everyone in the
process of thinking about harassment and the process for dealing
with it and helps to communicate to employees that the Senate
takes harassment seriously. You might consider conducting an
anonymous survey to assess the extent of the problem. I also
suggest mandatory training for all employees to ensure everyone
understands the nature of harassment, how to identify it and how
to respond when problems arise.

sont contraintes de rapporter des cas de harcélement de la part de
sénateurs a d’autres sénateurs en position d’autorité. Voila un
facteur important qui peut dissuader les victimes de signaler des
cas. C’est un tiers impartial, comme un ombudsman, qui est le
mieux placé pour traiter les cas de harceélement signalés.

En ce qui concerne la prévention, la premiére étape consiste a
instaurer une politique solide, ce que le comité a déja entrepris.
Bien entendu, pour que la politique ait du mordant, elle doit
prévoir des conséquences réelles pour les auteurs de
harcélement. Etablir une politique qui ne prévoit aucune
conséquence ne dissuade pas vraiment les mauvais
comportements. Puisque les harceleurs sont souvent des gens en
position d’autorité, c’est difficile lorsque D’auteur est un
sénateur.

Dans d’autres organisations, les gens peuvent étre congédiés
pour motif de harcélement. Au Sénat, les gens ayant le moins de
pouvoir, c’est-a-dire ceux qui sont les plus susceptibles d’étre
victimes, peuvent €tre congédiés, mais il est beaucoup plus
difficile de renvoyer les gens qui sont en position d’autorité et
qui sont les plus susceptibles de commettre un acte de
harcélement. Méme si les sénateurs peuvent étre expulsés, a ma
connaissance, le Sénat n’a jamais voté pour expulser un sénateur.
Il est difficile d’établir une politique efficace lorsqu’il n’y a
aucune répercussion grave. La encore, un tel systéme risque fort
de décourager les signalements.

Je suis consciente que le Sénat compte bien plus que des
sénateurs, mais les sénateurs sont les membres les plus puissants
de cette organisation. J’exhorte donc le comité a prévoir des
conséquences substantielles pour les actes de harcelement
commis par les sénateurs et d’autres personnes et a s’assurer que

ces conséquences sont clairement énoncées dans la politique.

Une deuxiéme fagon de prévenir le harcélement consiste a
¢éliminer les conditions contextuelles qui le provoquent. En
particulier, les environnements hautement stressants créent un
terreau fertile pour des comportements liés au harcélement non
sexuel. Quand les gens sont stressés, ils deviennent réactifs et ils
peuvent s’en prendre brutalement a leurs collégues. Faire en
sorte que le milieu de travail soit le moins stressant possible et
donner aux employés des occasions de composer avec le stress
— voila autant de mesures qui peuvent favoriser la prévention.

Une autre fagcon de prévenir le harcélement, c’est de faire
participer tous les employés au processus de révision de la
politique. On invite ainsi tout le monde a prendre part a la
réflexion sur le harceélement et sur les moyens de s’y attaquer,
tout en faisant comprendre aux employés que le Sénat prend le
harcelement au sérieux. Vous pourriez envisager de mener un
sondage anonyme pour évaluer ’ampleur du probléme. Je
propose également une formation obligatoire destinée a tous les
employés pour veiller & ce que tout le monde comprenne la
nature du harcélement, la fagon de le discerner et la fagon d’y
réagir en cas de probléme.
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Managers must be held accountable for acting to stop
harassment. Managers often turn a blind eye because it’s easier
than taking action. Failure to act has serious consequences for
victims and the organizational culture. It’s also important to offer
multiple ways for victims to report harassment early before it
turns into a formal complaint. Employees should be able to
report their experience to someone they perceive to be safe and
on their side. This is often not their boss or human resources
management.

I have appended several specific suggestions for ways to
strengthen the current policy for the committee’s consideration.
Thank you for inviting me to comment. I welcome any questions.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Senator Tkachuk: Just so it would be helpful for discussion
purposes, we have had senators who have been punished except
what happened is they resigned before the Senate had time to act.
They resign to protect their pensions, usually. In my experience,
I’ve been here 23 years, and four or maybe five senators have
left before action could be taken. If action is taken, it’s very
public, so it is a tool and one that we don’t use with impunity,
only because partisan problems can get in the way of it and
people may be expelled for the wrong reasons.

Second, we have suspended senators, actually, three of them.
That was a pretty difficult ordeal for them, I’m sure, and it was
for us. It was a two-year suspension. So there are vehicles for the
Senate to be able to adjust, and if there are problems they’re able
to punish, that’s for sure. Of course, we’re public figures, which
makes it even more difficult.

I don’t have any questions.

The Chair: Thank you for the clarification, senator. I
appreciate that. You don’t have any further questions for the
time being?

Senator Tkachuk: No, I think I’ll let Senator Moncion ask
some.

Senator Moncion: Could you talk about bullying and where it
fits into this policy, talking about bullying on social media, just
to make the connections? You brought up social media and I
think we might have some situations here.

Les gestionnaires doivent étre tenus responsables des mesures
prises pour mettre fin au harceélement. Les gestionnaires ferment
souvent les yeux sur le probléme, car c’est plus facile que d’agir.
Or, I’inaction a de graves conséquences pour les victimes et la
culture organisationnelle. Il est également important d’offrir aux
victimes diverses fagons de signaler un cas de harcélement a un
stade précoce, avant qu’on en arrive a une plainte officielle. Les
employés devraient étre en mesure de rapporter leur expérience a
quelqu’un qui leur parait digne de confiance et qui est de leur
coté. 11 ne s’agit souvent pas de leur patron ou de la direction des
ressources humaines.

J’ai inclus en annexe, a l’intention du comité, plusieurs
suggestions précises quant a la facon de renforcer la politique
actuelle. Je vous remercie de m’avoir invitée a témoigner. Je suis
préte a répondre a vos questions.

La présidente : Merci beaucoup.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Il serait utile de préciser, pour les
besoins de la discussion, que certains sénateurs ont déja été
punis, mais ils ont démissionné avant que le Sénat ait eu le temps
d’agir. C’est ce qui se passe d’habitude : ils démissionnent pour
protéger leurs pensions. D’aprés mon expérience, et je suis ici
depuis 23 ans, il y a quatre ou cinq sénateurs qui ont
démissionné avant toute intervention. Lorsqu’une mesure est
prise, cela se fait de fagon trés publique. Il s’agit donc d’un outil
que nous n’utilisons pas impunément, étant donné que des
problémes partisans peuvent prendre le dessus, si bien que des
gens risquent d’étre expulsés pour les mauvaises raisons.

Deuxiémement, nous avons déja suspendu des sénateurs
— trois, pour étre précis. C’était une épreuve trés difficile pour
eux, j’en suis sfr, et pour nous aussi. Il s’agissait d’une
suspension de deux ans. Le Sénat dispose donc des moyens
requis pour s’adapter a la situation et, en cas de probléme, il peut
imposer des sanctions, aucun doute la-dessus. Bien entendu,
nous sommes des personnalités publiques, ce qui rend I’exercice
encore plus difficile.

Je n’ai pas de questions.

La présidente : Merci de cette précision, sénateur. Je vous en
suis reconnaissante. Vous n’avez aucune question a poser pour le
moment?

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Non, je crois que je vais laisser la
sénatrice Moncion prendre le relais.

La sénatrice Moncion : Pourriez-vous nous parler de
I’intimidation et de la place qu’elle occupe dans cette politique,
notamment en ce qui concerne l’intimidation sur les médias
sociaux, afin que nous puissions faire les liens nécessaires? Vous
avez évoqué les médias sociaux, et je pense que nous pourrions
faire face a ce genre de situations ici.
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Ms. Hershcovis: Right. Bullying is a persistent form of
psychological and sometimes physical harassment that happens
over a sustained period of time, so it differs from other forms of
harassment in that it is sustained. It usually involves different
types of behaviours. It’s usually targeted by one person towards
one or many employees, depending on the situation, and it has
significant negative effects on employees in the same way that
other forms of harassment do.

Online or cyberbullying would be the same except that it can
occur over email, social media and over the phone. It can cross
boundaries from the workspace into an employee’s home life, if
they’re opening their email, for example, in the evenings or on
weekends and they’re experiencing this harassment off the work
premises.

Senator Moncion: How do you
harassment policy?

integrate that into a

Ms. Hershcovis: I think just by including in the definition the
idea that these behaviours can cross time and space boundaries,
ensuring employees are aware they can report that type of
behaviour and that it falls within the definition of the Senate’s

policy.

Senator Moncion: I will go back to what you were saying
that there were four or five senators who left before any
complaints were brought forward against them. How protected
are they, even if they’re gone?

Ms. Hershcovis: Protected in what way?

Senator Moncion: Well, they could still have complaints of
harassment brought against them even if they’re not senators
anymore. Or does it stop when they leave?

Ms. Hershcovis: In terms of the Senate’s ability to punish or
do anything to them, I think it stops when they leave. In terms of
whether it’s illegal, I guess the employee would have other
recourse, but they wouldn’t necessarily have any recourse to
report against this individual, the senator, if the person is gone,
would they?

Senator Moncion: Because of the psychological problems
that might have occurred, the previous witnesses were talking
about not retaliation but cash settlements for these people.

The Chair: Severance pay?

Mme Hershcovis : J’en conviens. L’intimidation est une
forme persistante de harceélement psychologique et, parfois,
physique qui survient durant une période soutenue; elle differe
donc des autres formes de harcélement en ce sens qu’elle se
prolonge dans le temps. Elle met en cause habituellement
différents types de comportements. Elle se produit généralement
lorsqu’une personne cible un ou plusieurs employés, selon la
situation, et ce comportement a des effets négatifs importants sur
les employés, au méme titre que d’autres formes de harcélement.

L’intimidation en ligne ou la cyberintimidation désigne la
méme chose, sauf qu’elle peut survenir par courriel, sur les
médias sociaux et par téléphone. Elle peut dépasser les limites du
lieu de travail et s’immiscer dans la vie personnelle de I’employé
— par exemple, lorsqu’il consulte ses courriels le soir ou la fin
de semaine et qu’il subit ce genre de harcélement en dehors de
son lieu de travail.

La sénatrice Moncion : Comment faites-vous pour intégrer
cet aspect dans une politique sur le harcélement?

Mme Hershcovis : Selon moi, il suffit de préciser, dans la
définition, que ces comportements peuvent survenir en dehors
des heures et du lieu de travail, tout en s’assurant que les
employés savent qu’ils peuvent signaler ce genre de cas et que
ces comportements sont visés par la définition contenue dans la
politique du Sénat.

La sénatrice Moncion : J’aimerais revenir a ce que vous avez
dit, a savoir qu’il y a eu quatre ou cinq sénateurs qui ont
démissionné avant que des plaintes aient été déposées contre
eux. Dans quelle mesure sont-ils protégés aprés leur départ?

Mme Hershcovis : Protégés de quelle fagon?

La sénatrice Moncion : Eh bien, ils pourraient quand méme
faire 1’objet de plaintes de harcélement, méme s’ils ne sont plus
sénateurs. Ou est-ce que ce n’est plus possible une fois qu’ils
démissionnent?

Mme Hershcovis : En ce qui a trait a la capacité du Sénat de
les punir ou de leur imposer une sanction quelconque, je crois
que ce n’est plus possible une fois qu’ils quittent leurs fonctions.
Pour ce qui est de savoir si c’est illégal, je suppose que
I’employé aurait d’autres recours, mais il ne pourrait pas
nécessairement dénoncer la personne en cause si celle-ci est
partie, n’est-ce pas?

La sénatrice Moncion : En raison des problémes
psychologiques qui pourraient en découler, les témoins
précédents ont dit qu’il faut prévoir non pas des mesures de
rétorsion, mais plutdt des réglements en espéces pour ces gens.

La présidente : Une indemnité de départ?
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Senator Moncion: They were talking about stress, loss of
quality of life and reprisals. You’re saying that once these people
are gone, you cannot bring forward a complaint against them
because they’re out?

Ms. Hershcovis: Unless there’s something beyond them
that’s causing a toxic work environment. I would encourage the
organization to follow up with those employees and make sure
their mental well-being is intact and they’re being taken care of.
In terms of reporting that individual, if the person who caused
the problem and was engaging in the behaviour is gone, then I
don’t think there’s a need, really, for any further action.

I would reiterate the points made by my colleagues earlier that
this needs to go beyond the policy. The policy is a nice first step,
but really I think it’s important to conduct a survey to first assess
the nature of the problem, how persistent it is, how prevalent it is
and what kinds of harassment are happening in the Senate and
then identify ways collectively that you can move towards a
more positive culture.

You could have workshops with employees, identify the
values the Senate would like to have and figure out how to get
from the point you identified in your survey, where I'm sure
harassment is happening because it happens in every
organization, to the point where, presumably, people would like
a more positive work environment.

Senator Moncion: In the field that you are part of, can you
talk about the code of conduct? How close or how far is the code
of conduct, or ethics or whatever, to harassment policies?

Ms. Hershcovis: Usually codes of conduct lay out
expectations for behaviour, so civility is usually one aspect of a
code of respectful conduct in the workplace that comes with a
code of conduct. I would think as part of a good policy the
organization should lay out the values it expects people to
uphold, such as inclusiveness, civility, respect and so on, which
would be components of that broader code of conduct, which
also encompasses other types of behaviours and expectations for
organizations.

Senator Moncion: So they’re part of policies that an
organization would have, so you would have harassment and
work safety policy and then a code of conduct?

Ms. Hershcovis: The code of conduct would usually govern a
broader set of behaviours within the organization, some of which
would be inclusiveness and the values that you uphold.

Senator Moncion: All right. Thank you.

La sénatrice Moncion : Ils ont parlé du stress, de la perte de
qualité de vie et des représailles. Vous dites que, une fois que ces
gens démissionnent, on ne peut plus déposer de plainte contre
eux parce qu’ils ne sont plus 1a?

Mme Hershcovis : A moins qu’il y ait quelque chose, méme
aprés leur départ, qui cause un environnement de travail toxique.
J’encouragerais 1’organisation a faire un suivi auprés de ces
employés et a s’assurer que leur bien-étre mental demeure intact
et qu'on prend bien soin d’eux. Pour ce qui est de la
dénonciation, si la personne ayant causé le probléme et adopté le
comportement a démissionné, alors je ne pense pas qu’il soit
vraiment nécessaire de prendre d’autres mesures.

Je tiens a réitérer les points soulevés par mes collégues tout a
I’heure, a savoir qu’il faut aller au-dela de la politique. Certes, la
politique représente un premier pas dans la bonne direction, mais
je crois vraiment qu’il est important de mener un sondage pour
commencer par évaluer la nature du probléme, son degré de
persistance, sa prévalence et les types de harcélement qui
surviennent au Sénat, pour ensuite trouver collectivement des
moyens d’instaurer une culture plus positive.

Vous pourriez organiser des ateliers avec les employés, cerner
les valeurs que le Sénat aimerait promouvoir et déterminer
comment y arriver, en s’appuyant sur les résultats du sondage
— et je suis slre qu’il y a des cas de harcélement puisqu’aucune
organisation n’y échappe —, afin de créer un environnement de
travail plus positif, a I’image de ce que souhaiteraient sans doute
les gens.

La sénatrice Moncion : Compte tenu du domaine dont vous
faites partie, pouvez-vous nous parler du code de conduite? A
quel point le code de conduite ou d’éthique, ou peu importe, se
rapproche-t-il ou s’éloigne-t-il des politiques sur le harcélement?

Mme Hershcovis : D’habitude, les codes de conduite
énoncent des attentes; ainsi, la civilité est habituellement un des
aspects traités dans un code qui prévoit une conduite
respectueuse en milieu de travail. J’imagine que, dans le cadre
d’une bonne politique, 1’organisation devrait énoncer les valeurs
qu’elle attend de ses employés, comme 1’inclusion, la civilité, le
respect et tout le reste — bref, des valeurs qui feraient partie du
code de conduite général, lequel englobe également d’autres
types de comportements et d’attentes pour les organisations.

La sénatrice Moncion : Autrement dit, cela fait partie des
politiques dont dispose une organisation; il y aurait donc la
politique sur le harcélement et la sécurité au travail, puis un code
de conduite?

Mme Hershcovis : Le code de conduite régirait normalement
un ensemble plus vaste de comportements au sein de
’organisation, notamment 1’inclusion et les valeurs qui vous sont
chéres.

La sénatrice Moncion : Trés bien. Merci.
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The Chair: For clarification, I want to state that the senators
who were suspended were not suspended on issues related to
harassment. The senator made the point because he wanted to
indicate very accurately that we can sanction a senator, but it was
not on these issues.

Senator Tkachuk: I think only one senator has resigned
because of that issue. All the rest were other things. What I was
trying to say is that the Senate does have the means to punish.

Ms. Hershcovis: Right. I would encourage you to lay that out
explicitly in the policy so that people who are looking at
reporting, and also people who are looking at the policy and
trying to understand what behaviour is inappropriate, can see
what the possible consequences are for them.

Senator Moncion: Something out there, but President Trump
with the tweets, is he a bully?

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes, absolutely.
Senator Moncion: Is he a harasser?
Ms. Hershcovis: Yes.

Senator Moncion: I see. And he uses Twitter to harass and
bully people?

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes.
Senator Moncion: So it’s a powerful tool?

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes, it’s a powerful tool because it can be
communicated broadly.

Senator Moncion: What happens when senators use those
tools to harass or bully other senators? How do we work around
that?

Ms. Hershcovis: Well, 1 think it needs to be part of this
policy and part of the definition.

Senator Tkachuk: I think we’re getting a little off topic here.
First of all, she may be really qualified, but I don’t think she’s
spoken to President Trump. I don’t think she’s investigated
President Trump. I don’t think she’s investigated other senators,
so if we’re going to go there, we can go there, but it’s not a
pleasant place at this table.

The Chair: And I agree that we should focus on the issues
related to our work. I understand that you want to give the
example of how far can bullying and harassment go, but perhaps
we could focus more on the Senate situation.

La présidente : A titre de précision, je tiens a dire que les
sénateurs qui ont été suspendus ne ’ont pas été pour des
problémes liés au harcélement. Le sénateur a fait valoir
I’argument parce qu’il voulait indiquer, a trés juste titre, que
nous pouvons imposer une sanction a un sénateur, mais cela
n’avait rien a voir avec ces questions.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Si je ne me trompe pas, seul un
sénateur a démissionné pour motif de harcélement. Tous les
autres I’ont fait pour d’autres raisons. Ce que j’essayais de dire,
c’est que le Sénat a les moyens de punir ces gens.

Mme Hershcovis : En effet. Je vous encourage a énoncer cela
explicitement dans la politique pour que les gens qui envisagent
de signaler ces cas, de méme que ceux qui consultent la politique
pour essayer de comprendre quels comportements sont
inappropriés, puissent voir quelles sont les conséquences
possibles.

La sénatrice Moncion : C’est un peu hors sujet, mais est-ce
que le président Trump fait de I’intimidation au moyen de ses
messages sur Twitter?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui, absolument.
La sénatrice Moncion : Est-il un harceleur?
Mme Hershcovis : Oui.

La sénatrice Moncion : Je vois. Et il utilise Twitter pour
harceler et intimider les gens?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui.
La sénatrice Moncion : C’est donc un outil puissant?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui, c’est un outil puissant parce que les
messages peuvent étre communiqués a grande échelle.

La sénatrice Moncion : Que se passe-t-il lorsque des
sénateurs utilisent ces outils pour harceler ou intimider d’autres
sénateurs? Comment devons-nous nous y prendre?

Mme Hershcovis : Eh bien, je crois que cela doit étre abordé
dans la politique et la définition.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Je crois que nous nous éloignons un
peu du sujet a 1’étude. Premicérement, elle a beau étre qualifiée,
mais je ne pense pas qu’elle ait parlé au président Trump. Je ne
crois pas qu’elle ait enquété sur lui ni sur d’autres sénateurs.
Alors, si nous voulons nous embarquer la-dedans, nous le
pouvons, mais ce n’est pas agréable pour les gens autour de la
table.

La présidente : Et je conviens que nous devrions nous
concentrer sur les questions liées a notre travail. Je comprends
que vous vouliez donner un exemple pour montrer jusqu’ou
I’intimidation et le harcélement peuvent aller, mais nous
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Senator Moncion: But if I may, I asked earlier if bullying
was part of harassment.

The Chair: Yes, it is.

Senator Moncion: So I’'m going further with the information,
but the point has been made. Thank you.

Senator Tkachuk: I think harassing people is different from
harassing an employee. That’s what [’m getting at.

Senator Moncion: Harassment is harassment, whether it’s an
equal or whether —

Senator Tkachuk: You and I have a fight and we may say
that’s harassment, but it’s not the same thing as us having a
disagreement. We could have a disagreement on Twitter. We
could have a disagreement. That’s not harassing. That’s a
disagreement. You’re a senator. You’re equal to me. You’re not
an underling. I don’t have power over you; you don’t have any
power over me. We’re having a discussion.

Ms. Hershcovis: Power is not necessarily part of the
definition of harassment. You can have harassment between
colleagues. But there is clearly a distinction between a
disagreement, which is what you’re having here, and bullying
and harassment. That causes harm, and people would agree that
it is an unwelcome behaviour.

The Chair: I’'m pleased to welcome Senator Mobina Jaffer.
Senator Jaffer was on duty in the chamber, and she’s a member
of the committee.

Senator Moncion, do you have any other questions for the time
being?

Senator Moncion: No.

The Chair: I have two questions. The first one is related to
the change of culture of an institution with regard to harassment.
Some examples were given that a man, an employer or manager,
might say to his secretary or assistant, “Hi, sweetie.” There’s no
wrong or bad intention, but it won’t be accepted like it was 15
years or 20 years ago, so this brings me to the change of culture.
Do you have any suggestions for us related to this needed change
of culture in our institution, as in many other institutions?

pourrions peut-étre mettre davantage 1’accent sur la situation au
Sénat.

La sénatrice Moncion : Si je puis me le permettre, j’ai
demandé tout a I’heure si I’intimidation faisait partie du
harcélement.

La présidente : Oui, elle en fait partie.

La sénatrice Moncion : Je cherche donc a obtenir plus de
précisions, mais j’ai compris le message. Merci.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : A mon avis, harceler les gens n’est
pas la méme chose que harceler un employé. Voila ou je veux en
venir.

La sénatrice Moncion : Le harcélement reste du harcélement,
que ce soit entre des égaux ou...

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Vous et moi pourrions avoir une
dispute, et nous pourrions déclarer qu’il s’agit d’un cas de
harcélement, mais ce n’est pas la méme chose qu’un différend.
Nous pourrions avoir un différend sur Twitter. Nous pourrions
étre en désaccord, mais ce n’est pas du harcélement. Vous étes
sénatrice. Vous étes mon égal, et non mon sous-fifre. Je n’ai
aucun pouvoir sur vous, et vous n’en avez aucun sur moi. Nous
avons une discussion.

Mme Hershcovis : Le pouvoir ne fait pas nécessairement
partie de la définition du harceélement. Il peut y avoir des cas de
harcélement entre collégues, mais il y a manifestement une
distinction entre un désaccord, comme celui qui existe entre vous
en ce moment, I’intimidation et le harcélement. L’intimidation et
le harcelement causent des préjudices, et les gens s’entendent
pour dire que c’est un comportement indésirable.

La présidente : Je suis heurecuse d’accueillir la sénatrice
Mobina Jaffer. La sénatrice Jaffer était de service au Sénat; elle
est membre du comité.

Sénatrice Moncion, avez-vous d’autres questions a poser pour
le moment?

La sénatrice Moncion : Non.

La présidente : J’ai deux questions a vous poser. La premicre
est liée aux changements de culture qui peuvent survenir dans
une organisation en ce qui concerne le harcélement. Par exemple,
il a été mentionné qu’un homme, & savoir un employeur ou un
gestionnaire, pourrait dire a sa secrétaire ou son adjointe :
« Bonjour, chérie. » Méme si I’homme en question n’avait
aucune mauvaise intention, I’utilisation d’un tel titre ne serait
pas acceptée comme cela aurait été le cas il y a 15 ou 20 ans.
Cela me ramene donc au changement de culture. Avez-vous des
suggestions a nous faire en ce qui concerne la nécessité de
changer la culture de notre organisation, comme celle de bon
nombre d’autres organisations?
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Ms. Hershcovis: How to change culture, you mean?

The Chair: What’s the best way to influence the changing of
culture?

Ms. Hershcovis: 1 think it needs to start from the top. It’s
crucial that the leader is exhibiting the kind of behaviour
expected within an organization. It was mentioned earlier, and [
agree about having an initial investigation into the extent of the
problem in the first place, understanding the extent of the
problem through a survey and through consultation with
employees to really get at the root of where the problems are,
what kinds of problems you’re experiencing, such as gender
harassment, bullying, cyberharassment or something else. First,
get a pulse on what the problem is and then have workshops with
employees to collectively determine what the organization would
like to see, so what employees see. You need buy-in from the
bottom up.

It’s important for the leader to exhibit the behaviours you
want, but it’s also important for employees to be involved in that
change process so that everyone is aware of what the change
needs to look like and there’s consensus around that change. I
think there very much needs to be a collective process, where
people identify values they want to uphold and work towards
identifying strategies to achieve those values in that end.

The Chair: My other question is related to what I would call
the reconciliation. I believe that any case of harassment should
not, depending on what it is, result in two people leaving the
Senate or one of the two people leaving the Senate.

What are the best practices in reconciliation between the
harasser or alleged harasser and the victim?

Ms. Hershcovis: That’s a very difficult question because
there’s not a one-size-fits-all solution. It really is contextual. If
the harassment happens and it’s a one-off thing and the victim
feels like they can approach the harasser directly and explain
how their behaviour has affected them, and making sure they do
that in a very respectful way that doesn’t raise defences and so
on, then that can be fixed right then. But usually that’s not the
way it goes. Usually people are afraid to say anything. They feel
bad saying something. They think maybe they’re just having a
bad day and then the behaviour persists to a point where it’s a
much bigger deal. At that point, I think you’re looking at more of
a mediation of some kind, where a third party can come in and
help the two parties have a conversation to try to come to a
resolution.

Mme Hershcovis : Voulez-vous dire la fagon de changer la
culture d’une organisation?

La présidente : Quel est le meilleur moyen d’exercer une
influence sur le changement de culture?

Mme Hershcovis : Je pense que cela doit commencer au
sommet de la hiérarchie. Il est primordial que le chef de file
adopte le genre de comportement attendu au sein d’une
organisation. Cela a été mentionné plus tot, et j’approuve 1’idée
de mener d’abord une enquéte initiale portant sur 1’étendue du
probléme, de comprendre 1’étendue du probléeme au moyen d’une
enquéte ou de consultations aupres des employés afin de trouver
les causes profondes des problémes, et de découvrir le genre de
problémes auxquels vous faites face, comme le harcélement
fondé sur le sexe, I’intimidation, la cyberintimidation ou quelque
chose d’autre. Premiérement, prenez la mesure du probléme, puis
organisez des ateliers avec les employés afin de déterminer
collectivement ce que 1’organisation aimerait voir et donc ce que
les employés voient. Vous devez obtenir la participation de la
base de I’organisation jusqu’a son sommet.

Il est important que le chef de file adopte les comportements
que vous souhaitez, mais il est €galement important que les
employés jouent un réle dans ce processus de changement, afin
que tous sachent a quoi doit ressembler ce changement et qu’il y
ait consensus a cet égard. Je crois qu’il faut vraiment qu’il y ait
un processus collectif dans le cadre duquel les gens désignent les
valeurs qu’ils souhaitent respecter et s’emploient a trouver des
stratégies en vue de préserver ces valeurs a cette fin.

La présidente : Mon autre question est liée a ce que
j’appellerais la réconciliation. J’estime que tous les cas de
harcélement ne devraient pas se solder par le départ du Sénat des
deux personnes ou de 1’'une d’entre elles.

Quels sont les pratiques exemplaires en matiere de
réconciliation entre le harceleur, ou présumé harceleur, et la
victime?

Mme Hershcovis : C’est une question a laquelle il est trés
difficile de répondre, parce qu’il n’y a pas de solution
universelle. Tout dépend vraiment du contexte. Si le harcélement
n’est survenu qu’une seule fois, que la victime a 1’impression
que le harceleur peut étre abordé directement et étre informé de
la fagon dont son comportement a affecté la victime, et qu’il est
possible de s’assurer que ce processus est effectué¢ d’une fagon
trés respectueuse qui n’entraine pas le recours a des moyens de
défense, le probléme peut étre réglé immédiatement. Toutefois,
habituellement, ce n’est pas la fagon dont les choses se passent.
Normalement, les gens craignent de dire quoi que ce soit. Ils se
sentent mal a 1’aise a 1’idée de mentionner quelque chose. Ils
pensent qu’ils ont peut-étre eu une mauvaise journée, mais le
comportement continue jusqu’a ce que le probléme devienne
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Sometimes the victim won’t feel comfortable with that, so it
must be victim-driven. If they come to someone with a
complaint, then that person should give some sense of what
they’re looking for in a resolution. Are they looking to sit down
with the person and resolve it? Are they looking for their
manager to resolve it for them? You have to identify the way the
victim would like to go.

The Chair: Would you recommend that the policy go that
far? That is, we would plan for a type of resolution in order to
reconcile?

Ms. Hershcovis: I think it would be ideal if you could do that.
Certainly it should be an option. I believe your current policy has
that sort of informal process embedded within it. Most victims
would prefer these things get resolved informally because
launching a formal complaint is scary and has all sorts of
implications. I think you should include it, yes.

Senator Jaffer: You may have said this, but I didn’t hear it
because I was late. Would you say that even between two
colleagues there are power relationships and that harassment can
exist?

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes.

Senator Jaffer: Even though you think you are equal, you are
not?

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes, there are different dimensions of
power. Two senators may be equal, two employees may be
equal, but there are social forms of power that arise when certain
people have more influence in social circles. There is gender-
related power that we know is a significant form of power where
men often in society seem to be more powerful than women.

Equal is a very hard thing to define. It depends on the context
that you are in, who is friends with whom, cronyism, all sorts of
things. Yes, definitely. Research has shown that co-worker
harassment has significant negative health effects on victims as
well as harassment from someone with power.

plus grave. A ce stade, je pense que vous devez prévoir une
intervention qui ressemble davantage a un processus de
médiation d’une sorte ou d’une autre, dans le cadre duquel une
tierce partie vient aider les deux parties a entamer une discussion
pour tenter de régler un probléme.

Parfois, la victime n’est pas a I’aise avec cette solution. La
solution doit donc étre axée sur les victimes. Si la victime dépose
une plainte aupres de quelqu’un, elle devrait donner une idée de
ce qu’elle recherche en matiére de résolution. Souhaite-t-elle
rencontrer la personne et résoudre le probléme? Souhaite-t-elle
que son gestionnaire régle le probléme en son nom? Il faut
déterminer la fagon dont la victime aimerait que les choses se
passent.

La présidente : Recommanderiez-vous que la politique aille
aussi loin? C’est-a-dire que nous prévoirions la mise en ceuvre
d’un certain type de résolution en vue de parvenir a une
réconciliation?

Mme Hershcovis : Je pense que, si vous pouviez le faire, ce
serait la solution idéale. Cela devrait certainement étre une
option. Je crois que votre politique actuelle integre ce genre de
processus officieux. La plupart des victimes préférent que ces
problémes soient réglés de fagon officieuse, car elles craignent
de déposer une plainte officielle qui pourrait avoir toutes sortes
de conséquences. Oui, je pense que vous devriez ajouter cette
solution.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Vous ’avez peut-étre déja mentionné,
mais je n’ai pas entendu cette observation en raison de mon
arrivée tardive. Diriez-vous que des rapports de force peuvent
exister méme entre deux collégues et qu’un harcélement peut
survenir?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Méme si vous pensez étre égaux, vous
ne 1’étes pas?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui, le pouvoir a différentes facettes.
Deux sénateurs ou deux employés peuvent étre égaux, mais il y a
des formes sociales de pouvoir qui surviennent lorsque certaines
personnes exercent une plus grande influence au sein de cercles
sociaux. De plus, nous savons que le pouvoir 1i¢ au sexe est une
importante forme de pouvoir qui permet aux hommes de détenir
plus de pouvoirs que les femmes au sein de la société.

Le caractere égal est trés difficile a définir. 11 dépend du
contexte dans lequel vous vous trouvez, des amitiés nouées entre
certaines personnes, du copinage, et cetera. Oui, cela ne fait pas
de doute. Les études ont démontré que le harcélement entre
collegues a des effets néfastes substantiels sur la santé des
victimes, tout comme le harcélement provenant d’une personne
en situation de pouvoir.
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Senator Jaffer: I’m just trying to understand this. Even with
co-workers, it depends on who has the boss’s ear, so who has
more influence with the boss. That can also be —

Ms. Hershcovis: Right. A form of power.

Senator Jaffer: We live in a political world here. And we
don’t really live here. We are transient; so that causes many
other issues. It’s not 365 days you come to the same place. We
are here a few days, we are out. We don’t pick up signs.

I’'m going to another question on this, and I’'ll come back to
what | was originally asking you. I’ve been thinking a lot about
this. I’ve been here 17 years. What I have heard has made me
very guilty because I felt I didn’t hear it. Where was 1? I didn’t
hear these things. I’'m stuck here in this building, and so what
I’m asking you — and if you’re not able to explain, I understand
— is what signs should we be looking for?

Ms. Hershcovis: That’s a difficult question. The broader issue
that you’re getting at is the importance of training everyone —
not just managers, but all employees — on the signs to recognize
when harassment is occurring. To call out and be willing to call
out your colleagues, especially people in positions of power,
because it happens so often from someone in a position of power
to someone below them.

I’m not saying that you call someone out publicly. You might
pull them aside privately and speak to them about it. But in terms
of specific signs, it’s very difficult when people aren’t reporting
because people can hide harassment. They can do it subtly; they
can do it in invisible ways.

I don’t think you need to beat yourself up for not identifying
it, but making yourself open so that people are willing to report
to you, checking in with your employees to ask them whether
there is anything going on. Can you talk to me about the climate
among staffers or among other people who are maybe not at your
level of power? That can help as well, just checking in and
asking your employees.

Senator Jaffer: That’s exactly the problem. I only have two
employees. Most people that I work with here are not my
employees, and they are the ones who are saying they are
harassed. You may not be able to answer this, but if you can
reflect on it and perhaps give us an answer, [ would appreciate it.
The people we work with here are not our employees; so that’s a

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je m’efforce simplement de comprendre
ce concept. Méme entre collégues, tout dépend de la personne
qui a Doreille du patron et qui exerce donc une plus grande
influence sur lui. Cela peut aussi étre...

Mme Hershcovis : Une forme de pouvoir. C’est exact.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Nous évoluons ici dans un univers
politique, mais nous ne vivons pas vraiment ici. Nous sommes de
passage, ce qui cause de nombreux autres problémes. Nous ne
nous rendons pas au méme endroit 365 jours par année. Nous
passons quelques jours ici, puis nous nous déplagons. Nous ne
remarquons pas les signes.

Je vais poser une autre question a ce sujet, et je reviendrai
ensuite a la question que je vous ai posée au départ. J’ai
beaucoup réfléchi a ce sujet. Je travaille ici depuis 17 ans. Ce
que j’ai entendu m’a fait sentir trés coupable, car j’ai le
sentiment de ne pas avoir écouté les plaintes. Ou étais-je? Je n’ai
pas entendu ces commentaires. Je suis coincée ici dans cet
édifice, alors je vous demande — et si vous n’étes pas en mesure
de me fournir des explications, je comprendrai — quels sont les
signes que nous devrions chercher a repérer.

Mme Hershcovis : C’est une question a laquelle il est
difficile de répondre. Le probléme plus général auquel vous en
venez, c’est I’importance de former tous les intervenants — pas
seulement les gestionnaires, mais aussi les employés — a
reconnaitre les signes de harcélement, a interpeller ou a étre
disposé a interpeller vos collégues, en particulier ceux qui
occupent des postes de pouvoir, car le harcélement survient
souvent entre une personne occupant un poste de pouvoir et 1’'un
de ses subalternes.

Je ne soutiens pas que vous devriez interpeller quelqu’un
publiquement. Vous pouvez les entrainer a 1’écart pour leur en
parler en privé. Toutefois, en ce qui concerne les signes
particuliers, il est trés difficile de les déceler lorsque les gens
omettent de signaler le probléme, car les gens peuvent dissimuler
le harcelement. Ils peuvent agir de fagon subtile ou invisible.

Je ne crois pas que vous deviez vous culpabiliser de ne pas
avoir décelé le harcélement, mais vous devriez vous rendre
disponible afin que les gens soient disposés a vous signaler des
problémes, et vous devriez vérifier ce que font vos employés afin
de pouvoir leur demander si quoi que ce soit s’est produit.
Pouvez-vous me parler du climat chez les membres du personnel
ou chez les autres employés qui pourraient ne pas avoir votre
niveau de pouvoir? Le fait de vérifier simplement ce que font vos
employés et de les interroger peut aussi aider.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Voila justement le probléme. J’ai
seulement deux employés. La plupart des gens avec lesquels je
travaille ici ne sont pas mes employés, et ce sont eux qui
déclarent étre harcelés. Il se peut que vous ne puissiez pas
répondre a la question, mais si vous pouviez y réfléchir, et nous
fournir une réponse plus tard, je vous en serais reconnaissante.
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big challenge. As a senator, you have two employees, but the
others you work with. It’s not the same as you would have in a
normal workplace.

I’ve been thinking a lot about this since we started this
committee. There are many different things in this place that we
have to look at. It’s not the normal work relationship. We may
work with one clerk once a month, once a week, but it is
transient. There are some ways for you to help us. How do we go
about setting this up? Because it’s a very different workplace.

Ms. Hershcovis: It is difficult to identify harassment, which
is why I suggested some sort of an anonymous survey — in the
earlier session, they suggested the same thing — to get a pulse
on what is happening and where it’s happening. Once you know
that, then you can start to fix it or at least try to fix the culture.

Senator Jaffer: How do you create a safe place?

Ms. Hershcovis: Having an open line of communication,
having leaders who exhibit respectful behaviour toward each
other and subordinates. Really important to a safe environment is
having workplace fairness — so being transparent,
communicative, making sure that employees know that you care
about their well-being, and they feel like they are comfortable to
come to you.

You said in your comments that other employees had
commented on harassment, or that they were being harassed but
they weren’t your employees?

Senator Jaffer: They are not my employees.
Ms. Hershcovis: How do you know that?

Senator Jaffer: Because of this committee.

Ms. Hershcovis: So you have asked.
Senator Jaffer: I never knew before.
Ms. Hershcovis: So asking is important.
Senator Jaffer: Thank you.

Senator Tkachuk: When you’re talking about employees in
an organization, I think anybody who belittles someone, who
makes stories up about someone, who does stuff that — we all
know, as civilized human beings, what is right and wrong. That

Les gens avec lesquels nous travaillons ici ne sont pas nos
employés; cela représente donc un défi. En notre qualité de
sénateurs, nous n’employons que deux personnes, mais nous
travaillons avec les autres personnes. La situation différe de celle
d’un milieu de travail normal.

Je pense beaucoup a cela depuis que notre comité a commencé
a siéger. Il y a de nombreux aspects a examiner dans notre milieu
de travail. La relation de travail n’est pas normale. Il se peut que
nous ne travaillions avec un greffier qu’une fois par mois ou une
fois par semaine, mais cela fluctue. Il y a des fagcons dont vous
pourriez nous aider. Comment pouvons-nous établir ce systéme,
car le milieu de travail ici est trés différent?

Mme Hershcovis : Il est difficile de déceler le harcélement,
et c’est la raison pour laquelle je vous ai suggéré d’organiser une
espece d’enquéte anonyme — au cours de la séance qui a eu lieu
plus tot, ils ont suggéré la méme chose — afin de prendre le
pouls de ce qui se produit et de I’endroit ou cela se produit. Dés
que vous savez cela, vous pouvez commencer a changer la
culture ou, du moins, a tenter de le faire.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Comment peut-on créer un milieu de
travail sécuritaire?

Mme Hershcovis : En maintenant une bonne communication,
et en ayant des dirigeants qui agissent respectucusement les uns
envers les autres et qui ont un comportement respectueux envers
leurs subordonnés. De plus, pour avoir un milieu de travail
sécuritaire, il est trés important qu’il soit équitable — il faut
donc que vous soyez transparents et communicatifs, que vous
vous assuriez que les employés savent que vous vous préoccupez
de leur bien-étre et qu’ils se sentent a 1’aise de venir vous parler.

Au cours de votre intervention, vous avez mentionné que
d’autres employés avaient formulé des observations a propos du
harcélement ou déclaré qu’ils étaient victimes de harcélement,
mais que ces employés ne relevaient pas de vous?

La sénatrice Jaffer : Ce ne sont pas mes employés.
Mme Hershcovis : Comment le savez-vous?

La sénatrice Jaffer : En raison des délibérations de notre
comité.

Mme Hershcovis : Vous avez donc posé la question.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je ne ’avais jamais su auparavant.
Mme Hershcovis : Il est donc important de poser la question.
La sénatrice Jaffer : Merci.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Lorsque vous parlez des employés
d’une organisation, je pense que, a titre d’étres humains civilisés,
nous faisons tous la distinction entre le bien et le mal, et je crois
que toute personne qui rabaisse quelqu’un ou invente des
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would be unacceptable. That would be grounds to fire the person
because they can’t be good for the culture of the organization.

It seems to me that if people are using Twitter, they are
leaving evidence. They are causing themselves their own
problem. With teenagers and schools, that is a very different
situation. In an organization, any manager who is worth his salt
is going to say this cannot happen here.

Ms. Hershcovis: Right. The problem is it often doesn’t
happen. You were saying how people are leaving evidence.
That’s true, but only if the victim reports.

Senator Tkachuk: Why wouldn’t the victim report something
like that? This is an adult thing. Why would you be afraid?

Ms. Hershcovis: Well, because it may seem like you’re being
petty by reporting someone, or it may seem like you’re too
sensitive. There are lots of reasons why people don’t report.
They will be afraid that they will be retaliated against, that they
will lose their jobs.

Senators, as an example, have a permanent position. My
understanding is staffers have a very tentative position. So
reporting someone for being rude to them over Twitter or
Facebook might result in them losing their job in a year when
their contract comes up.

There are lots of reasons why people would be afraid to report,
which is why it’s very important to take the responsibility for
reporting off the victim and put it on people who might witness
this sort of thing and see it happening on Twitter and do
something about it.

Senator Tkachuk: If people are afraid to report being
maligned by a fellow worker in an organization like the Senate,
doesn’t that say something about the culture itself of the whole
organization, if they are allowed to get away with it and people
are afraid to come forward?

Ms. Hershcovis: Absolutely. Yes.

Senator Tkachuk: It wouldn’t be just the one person; it
would be the whole bloody works of them.

Ms. Hershcovis: Yes. Harassment often occurs in permissive
cultures that allow it to occur. Once again, I hate to repeat
myself, but tapping into what is happening, maybe this isn’t a
prevalent problem, maybe it is, but finding out and then trying to
understand the causes.

histoires a propos de quelqu’un agit d’une fagon inacceptable. Ce
comportement justifierait le congédiement de la personne, car
elle nuirait a la culture de 1’organisation.

Il me semble que si des gens utilisent Twitter, ils laissent des
preuves. Ils créent leurs propres ennuis. La situation est tres
différente lorsqu’il s’agit d’adolescents a 1’école. Au sein d’une
organisation, tout gestionnaire digne de ce nom décrétera que ce
comportement est inadmissible.

Mme Hershcovis : C’est exact. Toutefois, le probléme, c’est
que souvent cela ne se produit pas. Vous disiez que les gens
laissent des preuves, mais c’est vrai seulement si la victime
signale le probléme.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Pourquoi la victime ne signalerait-
elle pas un comportement de ce genre? C’est une situation
mettant en cause des adultes. Pourquoi craindriez-vous de le
faire?

Mme Hershcovis : Eh bien, en signalant le comportement de
quelqu’un, vous pourriez sembler mesquin ou trop sensible. 11 y
a de nombreuses raisons pour lesquelles les gens ne signalent pas
ces problémes. Ils craignent de faire 1’objet de représailles ou de
perdre leur emploi.

Par exemple, les sénateurs sont titulaires de postes
permanents. En revanche, je crois comprendre que les postes des
membres du personnel sont trés provisoires. Donc, en signalant
que quelqu’un a été impoli envers eux sur Twitter ou Facebook,
ils pourraient perdre leur emploi dans un an, quand viendra le
temps de renouveler leur contrat.

Il y a de nombreuses raisons pour lesquelles les gens craignent
de signaler ces problemes, et voila pourquoi il est trés important
que cette responsabilité ne repose pas sur la victime, mais plutot
sur des gens qui pourraient étre témoins de ce genre de
comportement sur Twitter et qui pourraient prendre des mesures
a cet égard.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Si les gens craignent de signaler le
fait qu’ils ont été calomniés par un collégue au sein d’une
organisation comme le Sénat, si les harceleurs peuvent s’en tirer
sans conséquence et que les gens ont peur de se manifester, cela
ne révele-t-il pas quelque chose a propos de la culture méme de
I’organisation en entier?

Mme Hershcovis : Oui, tout a fait.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Cela ne se limiterait pas a une seule
personne; cela toucherait la totalité des gens.

Mme Hershcovis : Oui. Le harcélement se produit dans des
organisations ou une culture permissive autorise ce genre de
comportement. J’ai horreur de me répéter, mais, en observant ce
qui se produit, vous pourrez découvrir si le probléme est répandu
ou non, puis tenter d’en comprendre les causes.
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Senator Tkachuk: There are cultural changes that happen.
Exactly like Senator Saint-Germain said, 40 years ago, using a
term like that would be almost normal, and teasing; it wouldn’t
be considered harassment.

Now I notice that no one wants to touch each other, which is
an abnormal thing for me. You have to train yourself to change
the way you behave around other people. That’s a cultural
problem only because we’re older, and we’re used to a certain
way to do things, and now it’s considered unacceptable
behaviour.

Ms. Hershcovis: Right. That just comes down to training and
awareness.

Senator Tkachuk: Yes. People don’t know.

The Chair: I want to follow up on Senator Tkachuk’s
questions and comments. If it is allowed for co-workers to be
bullying each other or harassment between them, isn’t there a
responsibility of their managers who wouldn’t have been
proactive enough to try to prevent, to tackle the issue? Would
you suggest that we create, not only in the policy, but in the
ethics code of managers and staffers, responsibilities and
obligations related to that?

Ms. Hershcovis: Absolutely. It’s the responsibility of
managers, but only when you see it. You heard one of the
senators say that they had not seen it. It’s a very common thing,
though, for managers to see a conflict or a mistreatment and to
look the other way because it’s much easier to not do anything
than it is to address it. It can be intimidating. It can be onerous.

No one likes conflict, and it’s difficult to approach, but
managers need to be trained on how to properly address conflict
in a respectful way and make people aware of how they may be
coming across, because sometimes people aren’t aware of that.

Yes, I think you should include it in your code of conduct.

The Chair: Interesting. Thank you.

Senator Jaffer: I have a challenge with a question you asked.
With the greatest of respect, there are no managers. There is just
managers for the administration; we don’t have managers.

The Chair: This policy would apply to all the members of the
Senate — senators and personnel of the administration as well.
We have to take care of them as well.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Des changements culturels
surviennent. Exactement comme la sénatrice Saint-Germain 1’a
indiqué, ’utilisation d’un terme comme celui-la aurait été
presque normale et taquine il y a 40 ans de cela; cette utilisation
n’aurait pas été considérée comme du harcélement.

Maintenant, je remarque que personne ne veut toucher aux
autres, ce que je trouve anormal. Nous devons nous entrainer a
modifier la fagon dont nous nous comportons avec les gens.
C’est un probléme culturel uniquement parce que nous sommes
plus agés et que nous avions I’habitude de faire certaines choses
qui sont maintenant jugées inacceptables.

Mme Hershcovis : C’est exact. C’est
question de formation et de sensibilisation.

simplement une

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Oui. Les gens ne sont pas au courant.

La présidente : Je souhaite donner suite aux questions et aux
commentaires du sénateur Tkachuk. Si les collégues sont
autorisés a s’intimider et a se harceler mutuellement,
n’incomberait-il pas a leurs gestionnaires de prendre un nombre
suffisant de mesures préventives pour s’attaquer au probléme ou
le prévenir? Suggéreriez-vous que nous ajoutions des
responsabilités et des obligations a cet €gard non seulement dans
la politique, mais aussi dans le code d’éthique des gestionnaires
et des membres du personnel?

Mme Hershcovis : Absolument. C’est la responsabilité des
gestionnaires, mais seulement s’ils observent le comportement.
Vous avez entendu 1’une des sénatrices déclarer qu’elle n’avait
pas remarqué le probléme. Cependant, il arrive souvent que les
gestionnaires remarquent un conflit ou un mauvais traitement et
qu’ils ferment les yeux parce qu’il est plus facile de ne rien faire
que de régler le probléme. Ce travail peut étre intimidant et
colteux.

Personne n’aime régler des conflits, et c’est un probléme
difficile a aborder, mais les gestionnaires doivent étre formés sur
la fagon de régler les conflits d’une maniére appropriée et
respectueuse et sur la facon de sensibiliser les gens a
I’impression qu’ils peuvent laisser, car parfois les gens n’en ont
pas conscience.

Oui, je pense que vous devriez ajouter cela a votre code de
conduite.

La présidente : Votre avis est intéressant. Merci.

La sénatrice Jaffer : J’ai un probléme en ce qui concerne
I’une des questions que vous avez posées. Avec tout le respect
que je vous dois, il n’y a pas de gestionnaires. Seule
I’administration compte des gestionnaires. Nous n’en avons pas.

La présidente : Cette politique s’appliquerait a tous les
membres du Sénat — aux sénateurs ainsi qu’au personnel de
I’administration. Nous devons nous occuper d’eux aussi.
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Senator Jaffer: We’ll have a discussion, but I can’t see how
that can happen.

Senator Tkachuk: That’s why we talked about the unique
situation we have here, because we have this horizontal level of
senators, each one with his own little office.

Senator Jaffer: Silos.

Senator Tkachuk: But then we have a whole bureaucracy
underneath us, members of which can often and have been
intimidated by senators.

The Chair: By senators, you’re right.

Senator Tkachuk: So we have those two situations, and they
are very different; they are going to be very different to deal
with. We’re lucky we have some really smart people around who
are coming before us and helping us out with this. It’s
complicated.

The Chair: I want to state this, because it’s very important.
Each and every employee of the Senate, be he or she a staffer,
senator or member of the administration, has the right work in a
harassment-free workplace. That’s why we are caring for all
employees of the Senate.

Senator Jaffer, do you have another question?

Senator Jaffer: Just a matter of clarification: Is the vote at
8:25?

The Chair: Yes, at 8:25.

Senator Jaffer: We also have this report to look at.

Sorry, I do not mean to be rude to you, Ms. Hershcovis.

The Chair: We have time for a few questions still. Do you
have another one?

Senator Jaffer: I wanted to be respectful if anybody else had
questions.

The Chair: I think Senator Tkachuk
Moncion, do you have any questions?

is done. Senator

Senator Moncion: It’s ongoing.

Senator Jaffer: I’'m going to come back to this. I’ve been
listening to you for a short time. From the other meetings we

La sénatrice Jaffer : Nous aurons une discussion, mais je ne
vois pas comment cela pourrait se produire.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : C’est la raison pour laquelle nous
avons parlé de la situation unique qui existe ici, étant donné qu’il
y a un échelon horizontal de sénateurs, qui ont chacun leur
propre petit bureau.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Des éléments cloisonnés.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Cependant, sous notre autorité, il y a
une bureaucratie compléte, dont les membres peuvent Etre
victimes d’intimidation de la part des sénateurs et 1’ont été par le
passé.

La présidente : De la part des sénateurs, vous avez raison.

Le sénateur Tkachuk : Il y a donc ces deux situations qui
sont trés différentes. Leur gestion sera trés différente.
Heureusement pour nous, nous sommes entourés de gens tres
intelligents qui comparaissent devant nous et nous aident a
résoudre ces problémes, qui sont complexes.

La présidente : Je tiens a mentionner ce qui suit, parce que
cela revét une grande importance. Chaque employé du Sénat,
qu’il soit membre du personnel du Sénat, sénateur ou membre de
I’administration, a le droit d’exercer ses activités dans un milieu
de travail exempt de harcelement. C’est la raison pour laquelle
nous nous occupons de tous les employés du Sénat.

Sénatrice Jaffer, avez-vous une autre question a poser?

La sénatrice Jaffer : J’ai juste besoin d’une précision. Le
vote a-t-il lieu a 20 h 25?

La présidente : Oui.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Nous devons également examiner le
présent rapport.

Pardon, je ne veux pas étre impolie a votre égard, madame
Hershcovis.

La présidente : Nous avons encore le temps de poser
quelques questions. En avez-vous une autre?

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je tenais a faire preuve de respect
envers toute autre personne qui aurait des questions a poser.

La présidente : Je pense que le sénateur Tkachuk a terminé.
Sénatrice Moncion, avez-vous des questions a poser?

La sénatrice Moncion : C’est en cours.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je vais revenir la-dessus. Je vous écoute
depuis peu de temps. Compte tenu des autres séances que nous
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have had, we will need to have a real discussion on our setup.
Our setup is so different. There are managers, but there are
managers for the administration. Nobody manages us.

Ms. Hershcovis: Right.

Senator Jaffer: Except perhaps our whips. But that’s also
changing.

I’m saying that maybe with your help and the help of others,
we have to look at how we do this. There is a lot of education
that has to happen for senators and staff.

I want to come back to how we create an institutional safe
place. How does that happen?

Ms. Hershcovis: It’s through mutual accountability and in
recognizing that you have to hold each other accountable for
how you’re behaving, and doing so in a respectful way, since we
are talking about harassment. It’s important to make sure, if you
see one of your colleagues behaving in a way that you think
qualifies as harassment, that you let them know.

In my own research, I look at the power dynamics in witness
reactions to workplace mistreatment. First of all, everyone is
more likely to do nothing, but powerful people are a little bit
more likely to confront the perpetrator and say something to
them — “You shouldn’t have said that” — but they forget about
the victim. It’s important to make sure you remember there’s a
victim on the other end of that dynamic. Go over to them
afterward and tell them, “I’m so sorry that happened to you, and
here is how I addressed it.” That can create a safe and respectful
culture.

The Chair: Senator Moncion?
Senator Moncion: I’m good.

The Chair: Professor Hershcovis, thank you, and
congratulations on very interesting and relevant testimony,
including your specific suggestions that you tabled in writing.
You travelled from Calgary for us. It was really rewarding, so
thanks again. Travel safely back home.

(The committee continued in camera.)

avons eues, nous devrons avoir une vraie discussion a propos de
notre situation qui est si différente des autres. Il y a des
gestionnaires, mais ils gérent 1’administration. Nous ne sommes
gérés par personne.

Mme Hershcovis : Tout a fait.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Sauf peut-étre par nos whips, mais cela
aussi est en train de changer.

Ce que je dis, c’est que, peut-étre avec votre aide et celle
d’autres personnes, nous devons envisager comment nous
procéderons. Il faut que les sénateurs et les membres du
personnel suivent un grand nombre de cours de formation.

Je souhaite revenir sur la fagon dont nous pouvons créer un
milieu de travail sécuritaire. Comment cela peut-il se produire?

Mme Hershcovis : Grice a une responsabilit¢ mutuelle,
c’est-a-dire en reconnaissant que vous devez vous tenir, les uns
les autres, responsables de la fagon dont vous vous comportez, et
ce, d’une fagon respectueuse, étant donné que nous parlons de
harcélement. Si vous constatez que 1’un de vos collégues se
comporte d’une fagcon qui, selon vous, constitue du harcélement,
il est important de vous assurer de le lui faire savoir.

Dans le cadre de mes propres recherches, j’ai examiné
I’incidence de la dynamique du pouvoir sur les réactions des
témoins de mauvais traitement au travail. Premiérement, tous les
gens sont plus enclins & ne rien faire qu’a agir, mais les
personnes occupant des postes de pouvoir sont légerement plus
susceptibles d’affronter I’auteur des mauvais traitements et de lui
dire qu’il n’aurait pas di s’exprimer ainsi. Toutefois, ces
personnes oublient la victime. Il est important de veiller a ne pas
oublier que cette dynamique a fait une victime. Allez la voir
apreés coup, dites-lui que vous étes vraiment désolé que cela lui
soit arrivé et expliquez-lui comment vous avez géré le probléme.
Cela peut créer une culture sécuritaire et respectueuse.

La présidente : Sénatrice Moncion?
La sénatrice Moncion : Ca va.

La présidente : Madame Hershcovis, je vous remercie et je
vous félicite de votre témoignage trés intéressant et pertinent, y
compris les suggestions particuliéres que vous avez déposées par
écrit. Vous étes partie de Calgary pour nous rencontrer. Votre
visite a été réellement enrichissante. Je vous en remercie donc
encore une fois, et je vous souhaite un bon voyage de retour, en
toute sécurité.

(La séance se poursuit a huis clos.)
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Tuesday, June 19, 2018

The Subcommittee on Human Resources met this day in
public at 5:53 p.m., pursuant to rule 12-7(1), for the
consideration of financial and administrative matters (Topic:
Review of the Senate’s Harassment Policy); and in camera, for
consideration of a draft report.

Senator Raymonde Saint-Germain (Chair) in the chair.

[Translation]

The Chair: Honourable senators, this evening we are
continuing our review of the Senate’s policy on preventing and
resolving harassment in the workplace. I welcome the public to
this meeting.

The subcommittee was created on December 7, 2017, by the
Standing Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration to examine the Senate’s policy on preventing and
resolving harassment in the workplace.

This evening, we are hearing from two groups of witnesses.
First, we have the pleasure of hearing from Katherine Lippel,
Professor and Holder of the Canada Research Chair on
Occupational Health and Safety Law at the University of Ottawa.
Ms. Lippel, thank you for joining us and for participating this
evening. I want to apologize on behalf of the committee
members who had to make you wait because the sitting hours in
the chamber were extended. Without further ado, I invite you to
make your presentation.

Katherine Lippel, Professor and holder of the Canada
Research Chair on Occupational Health and Safety Law,
University of Ottawa: Thank you very much, Madam Chair.
You don’t have to apologize; it’s completely understandable.
Thank you for the invitation. I have prepared a few pages of not
notes, but at least comments I will read to you.

[English]

I’m mostly going to be speaking English. You have references
at the end, and I’ve provided Mr. Charbonneau with copies of
what I’ve prepared because I’'m going to refer to studies and you
will be able to see what I’m talking about when you see them.

The Chair: Don’t worry. We have very skilled translators and
interpreters.

Ms. Lippel: I will try to be a decent witness and not switch
back and forth between languages. Thank you for your patience.

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le mardi 19 juin 2018

Le Sous-comité sur les ressources humaines se réunit
aujourd’hui, en séance publique, a 17 h 53, conformément a
I’article 12-7(1) du Réglement, étudier des questions financiéres
et administratives (sujet I’examen de la politique de
harcélement du Sénat) et a huis clos, pour I’étude d’une ébauche
de rapport.

La sénatrice Raymonde Saint-Germain (présidente) occupe
le fauteuil.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, nous poursuivons ce
soir notre ¢tude de la politique du Sénat sur la prévention et le
réglement du harcélement en milieu de travail. Je souhaite la
bienvenue au public a cette réunion.

Le sous-comité a été créé le 7 décembre 2017 par le Comité
permanent de la régie interne, des budgets et de I’administration
pour examiner la politique du Sénat sur la prévention et le
réglement du harcélement en milieu de travail.

Ce soir, nous recevons deux groupes de témoins. En premier
lieu, nous avons le plaisir de recevoir Katherine Lippel,
professeure et titulaire de la Chaire de recherche du Canada en
droit de la santé et de la sécurit¢ du travail de 1’Université
d’Ottawa. Madame Lippel, je vous remercie de votre présence et
de votre participation ce soir. Je tiens a vous exprimer les regrets
des membres du comité qui ont dit vous faire attendre en raison
de la prolongation des travaux de la Chambre. Sans plus tarder,
je vous invite a nous livrer vos réflexions.

Katherine Lippel, professeure et titulaire de la Chaire de
recherche du Canada en droit de la santé et de la sécurité du
travail, Université d’Ottawa : Merci beaucoup, madame la
présidente. Vous n’avez pas a vous excuser, c’est tout a fait
compréhensible. Je vous remercie de ’invitation. J’ai préparé
quelques pages que je vais lire, non pas de notes, mais au moins
des interventions.

[Traduction]

Je parlerai surtout en anglais. Vous trouverez des références a
la fin, et j’ai remis & M. Charbonneau des exemplaires de ce que
j’ai préparé, car je ferai référence a quelques études et vous
pourrez voir ce dont je parle lorsque vous les consulterez.

La présidente : Ne vous inquiétez pas. Nous avons de trés
bons traducteurs et interpretes.

Mme Lippel : Je vais tenter d’étre un bon témoin et de ne pas
alterner entre deux langues. Je vous remercie de votre patience.
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Thank you for the introduction. Essentially, I'll say a few
words about what I do and who I am, because I think that will
facilitate the questions afterwards. I’'m a lawyer by training. I’'m
a member of the Quebec bar. I’'m in the civil law section, so I’'m
a professor of Quebec law. I hold the Canada Research Chair in
Occupational Health and Safety Law, which means I work with
dozens of people who are not lawyers, and most of my research
is interdisciplinary.

In relation to what is of interest to you tonight, I’ve done some
work with the International Labour Organization recently, where
I prepared a document for them called “Addressing Occupational
Violence,” which looks at all the literature on definitions of
different categories of violence, on the one hand, and literature
on the regulatory strategies around the world. The context of that
was that the ILO is preparing an international convention on
occupational violence, and lots of things happening in Canada,
including Bill C-65 and including modifications of laws across
Canada, are in the context of this international convention that is
in the process of being negotiated.

The first draft of the convention was adopted June 8, 2018, so
this is recent stuff, basically. Things are moving along very
rapidly. In this context, I’ve produced documents, on the one
hand, and in the references you’ll have a reference to the draft
convention that has been adopted.

I’'ve worked with the Canadian delegation, employers,
workers’ representatives and government representatives prior to
the meeting in Geneva, and we’ve been exchanging on different
concepts.

Bill C-65, as I say, was part of the context in which this
international convention was adopted. I believe that the federal
government, among other things, is aware of Canada’s
obligations to be a leader in occupational violence in the world,
and they are certainly a leader at these discussions in Geneva.

For the other part of my experience that I will be referring to,
I’m going to switch to French because I did it in French.

[Translation]

I was a researcher for the Enquéte québécoise sur les
conditions de travail, de I’emploi et de santé et sécurité du
travail, EQCOTESS, which is a Quebec survey funded by the
province’s Ministry of Labour, Employment and Social
Solidarity that provides a sample of more than 5,000 people
representing Quebec’s working population. It was carried out by
the Institut de la statistique du Québec, the Institut national de

Je vous remercie d’avoir fait les présentations. Je dirai
essentiellement quelques mots sur ce que je fais et qui je suis, car
je crois que cela vous facilitera la tiche pendant la période de
questions. Je suis avocate de formation. Je suis membre du
Barreau du Québec. Je suis dans la section sur le droit civil, et je
suis donc professeure de droit au Québec. Je suis titulaire de la
Chaire de recherche du Canada en droit de la santé et de la
sécurité du travail, ce qui signifie que je travaille avec des
douzaines de personnes qui ne sont pas avocates, et que la
plupart de mes recherches sont interdisciplinaires.

En ce qui concerne votre sujet d’intérét d’aujourd’hui, j’ai
récemment mené quelques travaux avec 1’Organisation
internationale du Travail et j’ai préparé, pour cet organisme, un
document intitulé « Addressing Occupational Violence », dans
lequel on examine, d’une part, I’ensemble de la documentation
sur les définitions des différentes catégories de violence, et
d’autre part, la documentation sur les stratégies de
réglementation utilisées partout dans le monde. Cette initiative a
ét¢ menée dans le cadre des préparatifs liés a la convention
internationale sur la violence au travail organisée par I’OIT, et de
nombreuses initiatives menées au Canada, notamment le projet
de loi C-65 et une série de modifications apportées a des lois
canadiennes, s’inscrivent dans le contexte de cette convention
internationale qui fait actuellement 1’objet de négociations.

Le premier projet de convention a été adopté le 8 juin 2018, et
c’est donc essentiellement un processus récent. Les choses
avancent trés rapidement. Dans ce contexte, j’ai produit des
documents et dans les références, vous trouverez une référence
au projet de convention qui a été adopté.

Avant la réunion qui s’est déroulée a Genéve, j’ai travaillé
avec des membres de la délégation canadienne, des employeurs,
des représentants de travailleurs et des représentants du
gouvernement, et nous avons discuté de différentes notions.

Comme je I’ai dit, le projet de loi C-65 fait partie du contexte
dans lequel ce projet de convention internationale a été adopté.
Je crois que le gouvernement fédéral est notamment conscient de
I’obligation du Canada d’agir a titre de chef de file mondial dans
le dossier de la violence au travail, et il est certainement un chef
de file lors de ces discussions a Genéve.

Pour vous parler de 1’autre partie de mon expérience, je
m’exprimerai en francais, car c’est la langue que j’ai utilisée a ce
moment-1a.

[Frangais]

J’ai été chercheure dans le contexte de I’Enquéte québécoise
sur les conditions de travail, de I’emploi et de santé et sécurité du
travail, ’EQCOTESST, qui est une enquéte nationale au sens
québécois du terme, financée par le ministére du Travail, de
I’Emploi et de la Solidarité sociale du gouvernement du Québec
et qui a fait un échantillon représentatif de la population qui
travaille au Québec de plus de 5 000 personnes. Cela a été mené
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sant¢ publique du Québec, the INSPQ, and the Institut de
recherche Robert-Sauvé en santé et en sécurité du travail, the
IRSST. I was in charge of the portion on violence in the
workplace. Some of your questions concern the prevalence, for
example, of various forms of violence. I could at least paint you
a picture of the Quebec situation. Dr. Michel Vézina was the
director of that survey. At the INSPQ, he is responsible for
anything related to psychosocial risks, including violence in the
workplace, and I consulted him before coming to meet with you.
I discussed your project with him and Dr. Mariéve Pelletier, who
works at the INSPQ. So, even though I am a lawyer, I obtained
information from non-lawyers and more specifically health
experts.

[English]

I read your policy in both French and English, and I also read
the proceedings from June 5 and June 12. As I say, I shared your
policy with my colleagues in Quebec, who are specialists in
prevention of violence and health issues related to violence.
When 1 say “violence,” of course, harassment and bullying are
included within the purview of violence in my language.
Because | agree with the vast majority of everything that was
said by the previous witnesses, I’m not going to say everything
they said, essentially. I’'m happy to answer questions. There are a
couple of things I’m not totally in agreement with, which I will
mention, but I’'m not going to say every time, “As the other
witness said, this is a good idea.” In the interest of brevity, I will
focus on novel aspects of my comments in relation to your

policy.

My first comment is in relation to the definitions. I have two
messages on that. I think it’s key to have the full spectrum of
violence, which therefore includes sexual harassment, gender-
based harassment, discriminatory harassment, bullying
harassment, what the Swedes call mobbing — depending on
what country you come from, you call it mobbing, bullying,
psychological harassment. The broad spectrum of behaviours
that are known to be forms of psychological violence need to be
covered by your policy as such. A very short piece of advice is to
pay attention to the definitions in Bill C-65 and the regulations,
because it would be confusing to a lot of people to have that
body of legislative framework with one definition. The
regulations are going to complete the definition. If you have
different definitions, I think that might be problematic. But
obviously it’s your policy, and do as you see best in relation to
that.

I have one minor comment in relation to the old policy that
you’re revising. You use the word “conflict” often, and it’s
important to avoid subsuming harassment and bullying as
conflict. If you want to use it, define it, but you can have

par I’Institut de la statistique du Québec, ’Institut national de
santé publique du Québec (INSPQ) et I’'Institut de recherche
Robert-Sauvé en santé et en sécurité du travail, I’'IRSST. J’étais
responsable du chapitre sur la violence au travail. Un certain
nombre de vos questions portent sur la prévalence, par exemple,
des différentes formes de violence. Je pourrais au moins vous en
peindre le portrait québécois. Le Dr Michel Vézina était
directeur de cette enquéte. Il est le responsable a I’'INSPQ de tout
ce qui a trait aux risques psychosociaux, y compris la violence au
travail, et je 1’ai consulté avant de venir vous rencontrer. J’ai
discuté avec lui de votre projet ainsi qu’avec la Dre Mariéve
Pelletier qui travaille a I’INSPQ. Donc, méme si je suis avocate,
je me suis informée auprés de non-juristes et particuliérement de
spécialistes en santé.

[Traduction]

J’ai lu votre politique en anglais et en francais, et j’ai
également lu les délibérations du 5 juin et du 12 juin. Comme je
I’ai dit, j’ai présenté votre politique a mes collégues québécois,
car ce sont des spécialistes de la prévention de la violence et des
troubles de santé liés a la violence. Lorsque je dis « violence »,
cela comprend évidemment le harcélement et I’intimidation.
Puisque je suis d’accord avec la grande majorité des témoignages
précédents, je ne répéterai pas leurs propos. Je serai heureuse de
répondre aux questions. Je ne suis pas tout a fait d’accord avec
quelques points, et je les mentionnerai, mais je ne répéterai pas
chaque fois que le témoin a exprimé une bonne idée. Par souci de
concision, je me concentrerai sur mes commentaires qui
apportent de nouveaux ¢léments liés a votre politique.

Mon premier commentaire concerne les définitions. J’aimerais
faire valoir deux points a cet égard. Je crois qu’il est essentiel de
tenir compte du spectre complet de la violence, ce qui comprend
le harcélement sexuel, le harcélement fondé sur le sexe, le
harcélement discriminatoire, le harcélement fondé sur
I’intimidation, et ce que les Suédois appellent la persécution
collective — selon votre pays d’origine, vous parlez de
persécution collective, d’intimidation ou de harcélement
psychologique. Votre politique doit donc viser tous les
comportements du spectre de la violence qui sont reconnus
comme étant des formes de violence psychologique. Si vous me
permettez de vous donner un bref conseil, il faut porter attention
aux définitions contenues dans le projet de loi C-65 et les
réglements, car ce cadre législatif avec une définition pourrait
causer de la confusion chez un grand nombre de personnes. Les
réglements compléteront la définition. Si vous avez plusieurs
définitions, cela pourrait causer des problémes, selon moi.
Cependant, c’est évidemment votre politique, et vous ferez ce
que vous jugerez approprié a cet égard.

J’aimerais formuler un petit commentaire sur 1’ancienne
politique que vous révisez. Vous utilisez souvent le mot
« conflit », et il est important d’éviter d’associer le harcélement
et l’intimidation a un conflit. Si vous souhaitez [’utiliser,
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harassment where you give somebody an office with no phone
and nothing to do. That’s harassment. There’s no conflict there.
It can kill people. There are suicides in France that are currently
the subject of criminal charges against France Télécom. They
were often not conflicts at all; they were sending people away to
do nothing so that they quit their jobs. So make sure you’re
careful about the use of the world “conflict” in your policies.

I’'m pleased you’ve decided to already start the training. I
think that’s an excellent initiative. You are the experts in the
Senate. I am no expert in the Senate, but from I’ve read about
what has taken place thus far, senators and their staff are like
small businesses. There’s a broad range of literature on how to
prevent harassment in small businesses, so inform yourselves —
or your staff will inform you, I guess — of what that literature
says.

For example, I do a lot of work internationally, and the
Belgian legislation says you have to have a person of confidence
who is named. A person of confidence can be in a large
enterprise, but if it’s a small business, you want somebody who’s
outside. That could be somebody who is on staff, completely
from a different institution. Think of yourselves as small
businesses who can learn from the good practices of legislation
like the Belgian legislation that has developed tools for small
businesses. Remember that you’re a small workplace, but at the
same time you’re a very large workplace, if you have 400
people, so when unions can be involved, they should be
involved. HR can be involved; they should be involved. You’re a
hybrid type of organization, and you can profit from the good
practices of both large and small businesses, but just be aware
that you’re both.

[Translation]

The Belgian legislation talks about a person of trust. The
Quebec National Assembly adopted a policy on harassment
within the National Assembly that applies to departments. In my
document, I provided a link to that policy. The policy talks about
a reference person for harassment cases. According to that
concept, someone is appointed to listen first, before
investigating, to the individual experiencing harassment.

[English)

It is the target of harassment. I try to avoid using the word
victim, but the person who is targeted by harassment has a
person of confidence to whom they can go and speak freely and

définissez-le, mais le harce¢lement peut se produire par exemple
lorsqu’on donne un bureau a quelqu’un sans lui donner un
téléphone et quelque chose a faire. C’est du harceélement, méme
s’il n’y a aucun conflit dans un tel cas. Ce genre de chose peut
tuer des gens. En effet, en France, la société France Télécom fait
face a des accusations criminelles a la suite de suicides. Souvent,
il n’y avait aucun conflit; la société envoyait simplement des
gens ne rien faire du tout, afin qu’ils quittent leur emploi. Il vous
faut donc faire preuve de prudence lorsque vous utilisez le mot
« conflit » dans vos politiques.

Je suis heureuse d’apprendre que vous avez décidé de
commencer la formation. Je crois que c’est une excellente
initiative. Vous étes les experts au Sénat. Je ne suis pas experte
au Sénat, mais selon ce que j’ai lu sur ce qui a été fait jusqu’ici,
les sénateurs et leur personnel sont comme de petites entreprises.
Il existe de nombreux documents sur les moyens de prévenir le
harcélement au sein des petites entreprises, et vous pouvez donc
vous informer — ou je présume que votre personnel peut vous
communiquer ces informations — sur le contenu de ces
documents.

Par exemple, je fais beaucoup de travail a 1’échelle
internationale, et la loi belge indique qu’il faut nommer une
personne de confiance. Une personne de confiance peut se
trouver au sein d’une grande entreprise, mais dans le cas d’une
petite entreprise, il est préférable de nommer une personne de
I’extérieur. Il pourrait s’agir d’un membre du personnel d’un
établissement complétement distinct. Imaginez que vous étes de
petites entreprises qui peuvent tirer des lecons des pratiques
exemplaires contenues dans les lois comme la loi belge, qui offre
des outils aux petites entreprises. Rappelez-vous que vous étes
un petit milieu de travail, mais que, en méme temps, vous faites
partie d’un trés grand milieu de travail, s’il y a 400 employés.
Donc, lorsque les syndicats peuvent participer, ils devraient le
faire. Les ressources humaines peuvent participer aussi et
devraient le faire. Vous étes un organisme hybride, et vous
pouvez profiter des pratiques exemplaires des grandes et des
petites entreprises, mais n’oubliez pas que vous étes ces deux
types d’entreprises.

[Frangais]

Dans la loi belge, on parle d’une personne de confiance.
L’Assemblée nationale du Québec a adopté une politique sur le
harcélement dans [’enceinte de I’Assemblée nationale qui
s’applique aux ministéres. J’ai fourni, dans mon document, le
lien a cette politique. On y traite d’un « répondant en matiere de
harcélement ». C’est un concept qui fait en sorte que quelqu’un
soit nommé pour écouter en premier lieu, avant de faire enquéte,
la personne visée par le harcélement.

[Traduction]

C’est la cible du harcélement. Je tente d’éviter d’utiliser le mot
victime, mais la personne ciblée par le harcélement peut
s’adresser a une personne de confiance et lui parler librement
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anonymously and get advice. That is present in the National
Assembly policy. It’s present in the Belgian legislation. I think
it’s a good practice that you can consider.

Ensure robust protection from reprisals, both for the target of
bullying and for the witnesses and the whistle-blowers. It’s
important to realize that for people who are afraid to speak up
when they witness harassment, be it sexual harassment or
bullying, if there are robust protections for those people, you’re
more likely to have people come forward. The earlier people
come forward, the better it is for the institution because you can
solve the problem before people start becoming ill. It’s really a
public health issue if you let this fester. Therefore, that would be
a piece of advice I would suggest.

In terms of inquiry mechanisms and the choice of investigator,
the person chosen by the parties to do the inquiry, I’ve benefited
from seeing not only the discussions on Bill C-65 but there is
also a PowerPoint presentation on the consultation of the
regulations for Bill C-65. If you haven’t seen that — I’m looking
in particular at the people who are going to support you in this
endeavour — it’s worth seeing what they’re contemplating for
that regulation. One of the things they’re contemplating is a joint
nomination by both parties so that the person who conducts the
inquiry is somebody who is found to be credible by both parties.

I didn’t participate in the consultation because I was out of the
country at the time. As a Senate, you can think about how you’re
going to nominate the people who are going to do the inquiries
and who is the party you’re talking about when we say “both
parties.” When we’re talking about Bill C-65 and about the
Public Service of Canada, in my mind, it was clear it would be
the union and human resources who would be both parties. It’s
perhaps not clear for the people drafting the legislation and
perhaps not clear for you either. I think what you should avoid is
that the so-called accused harasser or perpetrator and the victim
being the “both parties” who choose who is going to inquire.
That may be an opportunity to revictimize the victim. For
instance, if you have a senator who is accused and a page who is
the victim, this is not an equal playing field. If it’s a list of
people approved by both unions and representatives of HR,
perhaps for the whole Senate, even including senators, it would
avoid that imbalance. That would be something that you can look
at.

Ensure adequate financing of independent inquiries. You're
going to need a budget. That will have to be a budget that will
answer to the demand.

tout en gardant I’anonymat et lui demander des conseils. Cela se
trouve dans la politique de 1’ Assemblée nationale et dans la loi
belge. Je crois que c’est une pratique exemplaire que vous
pouvez étudier.

Il faut s’assurer d’offrir une protection solide contre les
représailles a la cible de 1’intimidation, ainsi qu’aux témoins et
aux dénonciateurs. Il est important de se rendre compte que
lorsque les gens craignent de parler apres avoir été témoins de
harcélement, que ce soit du harcélement sexuel ou de
I’intimidation, ils seront plus susceptibles de dire quelque chose
s’ils peuvent compter sur des mesures de protection efficaces.
Plus les gens dénoncent la situation rapidement, plus
I’établissement en profite, car il est possible de résoudre le
probléme avant que les gens commencent a souffrir de troubles
de santé. Lorsqu’on laisse une situation s’aggraver, elle devient
un probléeme de santé publique. C’est donc une suggestion.

En ce qui concerne les mécanismes de traitement des plaintes
et le choix d’un enquéteur, c’est-a-dire la personne choisie par
les deux parties pour mener 1’enquéte, j’ai appris certaines
choses non seulement dans les discussions liées au projet de
loi C-65, mais également dans une présentation PowerPoint sur
les consultations liées aux réglements pour le projet de loi C-65.
Si vous ne I’avez pas vue — je pense surtout aux personnes qui
vous fourniront du soutien pendant cette initiative —, il serait
bon de voir ce qu’on envisage d’inclure dans ces réglements. On
envisage notamment une nomination conjointe par les deux
parties, afin que la personne choisie pour mener 1’enquéte soit
considérée comme étant crédible par les deux parties.

Je n’ai pas participé aux consultations, car j’étais a I’extérieur
du pays a ce moment-la. A titre de membres du Sénat, vous
pouvez réfléchir a la fagon dont vous nommerez les personnes
qui meéneront les enquétes et vous pouvez vous demander qui est
I’autre partie lorsque nous parlons des « deux parties ». Lorsque
nous parlons du projet de loi C-65 et de la fonction publique du
Canada, dans ma téte, il est clair que le syndicat et les ressources
humaines sont les deux parties concernées. Ce n’est toutefois
peut-étre pas clair pour les rédacteurs de la loi ou pour vous. Je
crois que vous devriez éviter que le harceleur ou I’auteur
présumé de D’infraction et la victime deviennent les « deux
parties » qui choisissent la personne qui menera 1’enquéte. En
effet, cela pourrait devenir une occasion de revictimiser la
victime. Par exemple, si un sénateur est accusé et que la victime
est un page, ce n’est pas une situation équitable. S’il s’agit d’une
liste de personnes approuvées a la fois par les syndicats et les
représentants des ressources humaines, peut-étre pour 1’ensemble
du Sénat, en incluant méme les sénateurs, cela éviterait de créer
un tel déséquilibre. Vous pourriez étudier cette possibilité.

Il faut veiller a prévoir un financement suffisant pour les
enquétes indépendantes. Il vous faudra un budget. Ce budget
devra permettre de répondre a la demande.



1:60 Subcommittee on Human Resources

19-6-2018

Ensure the inquiry is held before the determination of the
validity of the complaint. When I read the first draft, the old
version, you get the feeling that somebody decides internally,
like the whip, whether this is a valid complaint and then send it
to an inquiry. I think that is not a good order of things. You
should do an independent inquiry once something is brought to
your attention.

This is where I disagree with some of the people who
intervened. I would say you should avoid imposing rigid
timelines. I saw in your debates that you want to get this over
with, and we get that, but what you have to remember is that,
particularly for targets of bullying, some of the people are on
sick leave and they’re at risk for suicide when it’s very serious.
You don’t want to say, “Get here or get out” to those people. I'm
sure you know this as soon as I bring this to your attention.

I work with people who are doctors in the public health system
in Quebec, and my specialty is workers’ compensation, and
Quebec has always provided coverage for these cases since the
1980s. Some people are very ill and some people are attempting
suicide. You want to make sure you have reasonable flexibility
in your rules so it doesn’t become a new source of stress for the
people involved. To a lesser extent, that can also be true for the
perpetrator, because sometimes you have perpetrators who can
develop mental health problems related to the stress associated
with the process. You have to do something that’s effective. You
don’t want this to go on for four years, but at the same time, you
have to respect the health of everybody involved and make sure
you have a respectful process.

I have a few suggestions — we’re almost done; I’m on the last
page — to promote better prevention. I think this is key, and I
haven’t seen enough emphasis on this in the discussions I've
read. One of your witnesses talked about stress, which is an
appropriate word and a generic word, but what we talk about is
psychosocial risk factors in the workplace. There’s a huge body
of literature included in my report to the ILO. For instance, when
people have high-demand, low-decision latitude, that’s stressful
for everyone in the workplace. If you are a secretary and you
answer to six different people who want everything yesterday,
that can have a spillover effect that poisons the work
environment. There are lots of studies that show this is an
underpinning of workplace bullying and harassment. Job
insecurity is another psychosocial hazard.

Il faut également veiller & mener I’enquéte avant de déterminer
la validité¢ de la plainte. Lorsque j’ai lu la premiére ébauche,
c’est-a-dire 1’ancienne version, j’ai eu l’impression qu’une
personne décide, a I’interne — par exemple, le whip —, si la
plainte est valide et qu’on I’envoie ensuite aux fins d’enquéte. Je
crois que ce n’est pas 1’ordre approprié. Il faudrait mener une
enquéte indépendante lorsqu’un incident est signalé.

Voici le point sur lequel je suis en désaccord avec certains
intervenants. Je crois que vous devriez éviter d’imposer des
échéances serrées. Je peux voir, dans vos débats, que vous tenez
a compléter le processus le plus rapidement possible, et nous
comprenons cela, mais vous ne devez pas oublier que certaines
victimes d’intimidation sont en congé de maladie et qu’elles
présentent un risque de suicide lorsque la situation est trés grave.
Vous ne voulez pas dire a ces gens de se présenter ou de partir.
Je suis stire que vous vous étes rendu compte de cela aussitot que
j’ai abordé le sujet.

Je travaille avec des médecins qui oeuvrent dans le systéme de
santé publique du Québec, et je me spécialise en indemnisation
pour les travailleurs. Le Québec assure la couverture de ces cas
depuis les années 1980. Certaines personnes sont trés malades et
d’autres tentent de se suicider. Il faut veiller a prévoir une
souplesse raisonnable dans les réglements pour éviter qu’ils
deviennent une nouvelle source de stress pour les personnes
touchées. Dans une moindre mesure, cela peut aussi s’appliquer
a la personne accusée, car parfois, cette personne peut
développer un trouble de santé mentale li¢ au stress créé par le
processus. Vous devez étre efficaces. Il ne faut pas laisser le
processus durer quatre ans, mais en méme temps, il faut
respecter la santé de toutes les personnes concernées et veiller a
utiliser un processus respectueux.

J’ai quelques suggestions — j’ai presque terminé; c’est la
derniére page — pour favoriser la prévention. Je crois que c’est
I’¢1ément le plus important, mais dans les discussions que j’ai
lues, on ne mettait pas suffisamment 1’accent la-dessus. L’un de
vos témoins a parlé du stress, un terme approprié et générique,
mais nous parlons en fait des facteurs de risque psychosociaux
en milieu de travail. Vous trouverez ¢énormément de
documentation a cet égard dans mon rapport & 1’Organisation
internationale du Travail. Par exemple, lorsque des gens
occupent des postes ou la demande est élevée, mais ou le pouvoir
de décision est réduit, c’est stressant pour tous les employés de
ce milieu de travail. Si vous étes un adjoint administratif qui
releve de six différentes personnes dont les demandes
s’accompagnent d’échéances extrémement serrées, les effets de
cette situation peuvent se répandre et empoisonner 1’ensemble du
milieu de travail. De nombreuses études révelent que ce genre de
situation est un élément sous-jacent a I’intimidation et au
harcélement en milieu de travail. La précarit¢ d’emploi
représente un autre risque psychosocial.
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If part of your process before somebody starts complaining
about harassment is taking the temperature of the workplace and
looking at the hazards about which people are complaining and
saying they’re exposed, that can serve well for prevention,
because those are fertile conditions for conflict.

Another facet is that precarious employment is shown to be
related to sexual harassment in particular — not so much
bullying. Bullying we see in a lot more permanent employees.
It’s trying to get rid of them and make it impossible for them to
continue. I talked to you about France Télécom, and you might
have questions about that. There are criminal charges against the
CEOs of France Télécom in France because it is alleged they
decided to get rid of these people with good job security by
making their lives difficult through bullying.

It can be horizontal and it can be vertical. Horizontal is
worker-on-worker harassment or senior managers harassing
other senior managers. In EQCOTESST, we found that this is
gendered. For men, the higher they are in the hierarchy, the more
they are protected from harassment. It’s statistically significant
that if you are a CEO or even if you are a professional and a
man, you are less likely to be harassed than if you’re at the
bottom of the hierarchy or even if you are a blue-collar worker,
skilled tradesman or even a supervisor. On the other hand, for
women, there was no statistically significant difference between
secretaries and CEOs. You’re not protected because you’re
moving up. Hypothetically, a senator who is a woman is just as
easily a target of psychological harassment, which is what I’'m
talking about here, as would be a page, which is something you
need to take into consideration in your policies.

Somebody recommended, and I completely agree, that
surveying your people is a good idea. You probably know about
it, but just in case — because I didn’t see it mentioned anywhere
— there’s the Public Service Employee Survey done regularly in
the Public Service of Canada. You have results for all public
servants in Canada. I’ve spoken to Justice and Labour. I’ve done
presentations based on the data that come out of this. It’s a
precious tool. It started under the Harper administration — 2011,
2014, 2017 — and there’s data for the whole public service. I
couldn’t find the Senate. That might be my skill set, or it might
be that you’re not being surveyed. But don’t reinvent the wheel.
Take that survey. It’s great, because you can compare yourself to
yourself over the years. At the same time, you can see your
strengths and your weaknesses. Everybody does something well,
and everybody does something less well. It’s a great tool, and it
doesn’t cost anything because it’s already out there.

Si une partie de votre processus consiste a évaluer le climat du
milieu de travail avant de recevoir une plainte et a examiner les
risques dont les gens se plaignent et auxquels ils affirment étre
exposés, cela peut servir de mesure de prévention efficace, car
ces conditions peuvent facilement engendrer des conflits.

On a également démontré que la précarité d’emploi est
particuliérement liée au harcelement sexuel — mais pas
tellement a D’intimidation. L’intimidation est beaucoup plus
observée chez les employés permanents et elle consiste a tenter
de se débarrasser d’eux en rendant leurs conditions
insupportables. Je vous ai parlé de France Télécom, et vous avez
peut-étre des questions sur cette affaire. En France, on a porté
des accusations criminelles contre les PDG de France Télécom,
car selon les allégations, ils ont décidé de se débarrasser de
certains employés qui profitaient d’une bonne sécurité d’emploi
en rendant leur situation insupportable par 1’entremise de
I’intimidation.

Cela peut se faire sur le plan horizontal et vertical. Sur le plan
horizontal, un employé harcéle un collégue ou un cadre supérieur
harcéle un autre cadre supérieur. L’EQCOTESST a révélé que
c’est fondé sur le sexe. En effet, plus les hommes occupent un
poste €levé dans la hiérarchie, plus ils sont protégés contre le
harcélement. Il est statistiquement significatif qu’'un PDG ou
méme un professionnel soit moins susceptible d’étre victime de
harcelement qu’un homme qui se trouve aux échelons
hiérarchiques inférieurs ou qui est un col bleu, un travailleur
qualifié ou méme un superviseur. Toutefois, pour les femmes, il
n’y avait aucune différence statistiquement significative entre les
secrétaires et les PDG. En résumé, une femme n’est pas protégée
lorsqu’elle gravit les échelons. En théorie, une sénatrice est donc
tout aussi susceptible de subir du harcélement psychologique
— le sujet dont je parle — qu’une page du Parlement. Vous
devriez donc en tenir compte dans vos politiques.

Quelqu’un a recommandé — et je suis tout a fait d’accord —
de mener un sondage auprés de vos employés. Vous le savez
probablement déja, mais juste au cas ou — étant donné que je
n’ai vu cela mentionné nulle part —, il existe un Sondage aupres
des fonctionnaires fédéraux qui est régulierement mené au sein
de la fonction publique du Canada. Vous pouvez consulter les
résultats pour tous les fonctionnaires du Canada. J’ai parlé aux
représentants du ministére du Travail et du ministére de la
Justice. J’ai livré des présentations fondées sur les données
produites par ce sondage. C’est un outil précieux. Il a été lancé
sous 1’administration Harper — en 2011, en 2014 et en 2017 —
et il contient des données sur I’ensemble de la fonction publique.
Par contre, je n’ai rien pu trouver sur le Sénat. C’est peut-étre en
raison de mes compétences de recherche ou il se peut que vous
ne participiez pas au sondage, mais ne réinventez pas la roue.
Utilisez ce sondage. C’est formidable, car vous pouvez vous
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Monitor complaints. Keep your statistics, both for sexual
harassment but for the different categories of harassment as well
— racist harassment, discriminatory harassment, LGBT/sexual

orientation — disability is an important issue in relation to
harassment.
In conclusion — overarching considerations: I’ve already

mentioned it, but don’t forget the health of the targets. People
become extremely ill. Mental health problems are documented
and some physical health problems as well. There’s a huge body
of literature if you’re interested in knowing more. Be carefully of
timelines. We all want to be efficient, I’ve made that point, and |
make it again. Think about the mental health of everyone
involved before you say “60 or 90 days, after which it’s over.”
Quebec just changed its law from a 90-day harassment complaint
to two years. They did that last week. It’s important to pay
attention to delays as well.

Finally — last message — respect the target’s voice. What
does he or she want? Find a safe place for that to be made clear.
Sometimes people just want to make it stop. Sometimes they
want justice, to be recognized that their harassment has existed.
What the person wants is going to really inform the way you’re
going to deal with the subsequent steps.

That’s what I would have to say to you. I hope I didn’t take
too much time.

Senator Scott Tannas (Deputy Chair) in the chair.

The Deputy Chair: Thank you. We will go to questions now.

Senator Jaffer: Thank you. This was very useful.

Since this work started, I’ve been really struggling, because
every time we hear from witnesses, I keep saying, “But we are
different.” I’'m not an artist, but the best way I can share it with
you is with this big building. There are 105 businesses, and then
there is administration. I’m putting it on the bottom but it could
be anywhere. There’s a foundation of administration that serves
these offices to meet our needs and many things, and then we
have our own staff. Then on the top, we have an institution, but
we are still independent. We can be independent in how we deal

comparer a vous-mémes d’une année a I’autre. En méme temps,
vous pouvez cerner vos forces et vos faiblesses. Tout le monde
réussit bien dans certains domaines et tout le monde réussit
moins bien dans d’autres domaines. C’est un excellent outil et il
ne codte rien, car il existe déja.

Surveillez les plaintes. Conservez des statistiques sur le
harcélement sexuel, mais également sur les autres catégories de
harcélement, notamment le harcélement fondé sur le racisme, le
harcélement discriminatoire et le harcélement lié a ’orientation
sexuelle et a I’appartenance au groupe des personnes LGBT. De
plus, les handicaps représentent un élément important dans le
dossier du harcelement.

En terminant, j’aimerais vous communiquer des observations
générales. Je 1’ai déja mentionné, mais n’oubliez pas la santé des
personnes ciblées, car les gens deviennent gravement malades.
Des troubles de santé mentale sont documentés, ainsi que des
troubles physiques. Il existe énormément de documentation a cet
égard si vous souhaitez en apprendre davantage. Aussi, soyez
prudents avec les échéances. Nous voulons tous étre efficaces. Je
I’ai déja souligné, mais je le répéte. Tenez compte de la santé
mentale de toutes les personnes concernées avant d’imposer une
période limite de 60 ou de 90 jours. Le Québec vient tout juste
de modifier sa loi pour passer d’un délai de 90 jours a une
période de deux ans pour les plaintes de harcélement. Ce
changement a été effectué la semaine derniere. Il est aussi
important de faire attention aux retards.

Enfin, je termine avec un dernier message : respectez la voix
de la personne ciblée. Que veut-elle? Trouvez un endroit
sécuritaire ou elle pourra exprimer clairement ses besoins.
Parfois, les gens veulent simplement que le harcélement cesse.
Parfois, ils veulent obtenir justice et ils souhaitent qu’on
reconnaisse qu’ils ont été victimes de harcélement. Ce que la
personne souhaite faire permettra d’orienter le reste de votre
démarche.

A

C’est ce que je tenais & vous communiquer. J’espere que je
n’ai pas pris trop de temps.

Le sénateur Scott Tannas (vice-président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le vice-président : Merci. Nous passons maintenant aux
questions.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Merci. C’était trés utile.

Depuis le début de ces travaux, j’ai vraiment de la difficulté,
parce que je continue a dire que nous sommes différents chaque
fois que nous entendons des témoins. Je ne suis pas une artiste,
mais la meilleure fagon de vous le faire comprendre est avec ce
grand batiment. I y a 105 entreprises, puis il y a
I’administration. Je la place au bas, mais elle pourrait étre
n’importe ou. Il y a une base administrative qui sert les bureaux,
répond a leurs besoins et fait beaucoup de choses, puis nous
avons notre propre personnel. Au sommet, il y a une institution,
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with our staff — so far we have been. We are transient. We’re
not here a lot.

Truthfully, in a business, you hear noises. I don’t know about
my other colleagues, but I’'m here, I do my work and I go home.
I’m really not aware of a lot of things around me — sometimes
not even my office. Today, I haven’t even been to my office,
because I’ve been working. We’re not in one place. We’re not
the boss. It’s a very difficult situation.

We don’t have unions, do we? The senators’ staff does not
have unions. Administration does, but our staff does not have
unions. Add to all of this that our staff doesn’t have security.
Most contracts are one-year contracts, even if they’ve been here
a long time. Not things we are proud of, but I'm just saying this
is our reality.

In a situation like that, everything you said I thought was very
legitimate, and we will certainly look at how we do it, but it is
very different. It’s not an excuse for not doing all the things you
said, but we have challenges.

You may not be able to respond today, and I respect that, but
if you reflect upon this, how do we go about setting a safe
workplace? It’s people we work with and people who work for
us. Both need a safe place. I'm struggling with that. When you
say you listen, it really hit me hard. When do I listen? I’'m not
here to listen. I could go on and on because I’m struggling with
this. I'm wondering if you can help.

Ms. Lippel: Ironically, it’s not that different from professors
who do research. I'm here. I was in my office for two hours
today. I have 10 people working in my office, and I haven’t seen
them for two weeks. I completely hear you. Universities have
been grappling with sexual harassment, bullying and harassment,
because on one side, it’s a huge institution, and on another side,
when you have a research lab, it’s a mom-and-pop thing, so |
completely understand what you’re looking at.

The way to think about it is to find someone or a series of
someones who are these persons of confidence. Every senator
cannot be the person one or two staff people can go to. It’s not
functional, and that’s not your role. But you can have a person of
confidence, like in the Belgian model and like what was adopted
in 2015 in the National Assembly of Québec — somewhere you
can go as a worker or as a senator. I presume that one day,
somebody is going to harass a senator. That existed. The
president of the workers’ compensation board of Quebec was the

mais nous demeurons indépendants. Nous pouvons étre
indépendants dans la fagon de traiter notre personnel — c’était le
cas jusqu’ici. Nous sommes de passage. Nous ne sommes pas
souvent ici.

A vrai dire, dans une entreprise, vous entendez des bruits. Je
ne sais pas ce qu’il en est de mes autres collégues, mais je viens
ici, je fais mon travail, puis je rentre & la maison. Je ne suis
vraiment pas au courant de bien des choses qui se passent autour
de moi — parfois méme dans mon bureau. Aujourd’hui, je n’y
suis méme pas allée puisque j’ai travaillé. Nous ne sommes pas a
un seul endroit. Nous ne sommes pas le patron. C’est une
situation tres difficile.

Nous n’avons pas de syndicats, n’est-ce pas? Le personnel des
sénateurs n’est pas syndiqué. L’administration 1’est, mais pas
notre personnel. Ajoutez a tout cela que notre personnel n’a pas
de sécurité d’emploi non plus. La plupart des contrats durent un
an, méme si les employés sont en poste depuis longtemps. Ce ne
sont pas des choses dont nous sommes fiers, mais je dis
simplement que c’est notre réalité.

Dans une telle situation, tout ce que vous avez dit est trés
légitime, et nous regarderons certainement comment nous
agissons, mais le cadre est trés différent. Ce n’est pas une excuse
pour ne pas faire tout ce que vous avez dit, mais nous avons des
défis a relever.

Il se peut que vous ne puissiez pas répondre aujourd’hui, ce
que je respecte. D’aprés vous, comment pouvons-nous créer un
milieu de travail sécuritaire? Ce sont les gens avec qui nous
travaillons et ceux qui travaillent pour nous. Les deux groupes
ont besoin d’un endroit sir. Cela me pose probléme. Quand vous
dites que vous écoutez, cela me frappe vraiment. Quand est-ce
que j’écoute? Je ne suis pas ici pour écouter. Je pourrais
continuer longtemps puisque cela me dérange. Je me demande si
vous pouvez m’aider.

Mme Lippel : Paradoxalement, votre situation n’est pas si
différente de celle des professeurs qui font de la recherche. Je
suis ici. J’ai passé deux heures dans mon bureau aujourd’hui. J’ai
10 personnes qui y travaillent, et je ne les ai pas vues depuis
deux semaines. Je vous comprends totalement. Les universités
sont aux prises avec des problémes de harcelement sexuel,
d’intimidation et de harcélement. Il y a d’un c6té une énorme
institution, et de 1’autre, un laboratoire de recherche familial, de
sorte que je comprends parfaitement ce que vous voulez savoir.

Ce qu’il faut faire, c¢’est trouver une personne ou une série de
personnes de confiance. Chaque sénateur ne peut pas étre la
personne a qui se confient un ou deux membres du personnel. Ce
n’est pas fonctionnel, et ce n’est pas votre role. Cependant, vous
pouvez avoir une personne de confiance, comme dans le modéle
belge, et comme ce qui a été adopté en 2015 a 1’Assemblée
nationale du Québec — un endroit ou le travailleur ou le sénateur
peut aller. Je présume que quelqu’un va harceler un sénateur un
jour. Cela s’est déja vu. La présidente de la Commission de la



1:64 Subcommittee on Human Resources

19-6-2018

first woman president, and she was sexually harassed. She was
on the radio telling us that she’s not protected from this. Anyone
from a senator down to the person in your office working on a
one-year contract has to have a safe place to talk.

Designing a safe place is not easy. It requires consultation. It
requires consultation with unions, even though your people are
perhaps not unionized. The unions can have recommendations of
service providers who are external and who are perceived to be
fair by all parties and can be recommended. It can be someone
who has worked for the Senate in the past and who is known to
the senators but who does not necessarily have a position. You
can have more than one person. You can choose among different
people. Gender is important.

Senator Jaffer: Can I stop you for a moment? What do you
mean by a person of confidence? Not somebody who will decide
their case? I should stop because my colleagues have questions.
It’s to replace the whip, right, or the person in the party?

Ms. Lippel: I don’t know a lot about whips, so I won’t say
that.

Senator Jaffer: It’s who people go to.

Ms. Lippel: Yes, but the person of confidence is a legal term
that comes from the Belgian legislation, which has always been
my favourite. It’s convoluted, but the Quebec legislation is based
on the Belgian legislation. We didn’t put in this person of
confidence. We have the Commission des normes du travail,
which is now the CNESST, that deals with these cases, so you
have somebody you can go see.

A person of confidence is the go-to person, which is not the
Employee Assistance Program. That’s a different service.
Universities now have these things. It’s the harassment person,
the person responsible. It could be an ombudsman or
ombudswoman. You have to craft the level of decision-making
to fit your needs. They at least have to be somebody that is safe
to talk to. Gender is important. You might want a man and a
woman and have two.

[Translation]

Senator Moncion: My question is about training and about
developing a culture that is free from harassment and violence.
Do you have any comments on either of those topics?

santé et de la sécurité du travail du Québec a été la premicre
femme a la présidence, et elle a été harcelée sexuellement. Elle
disait a la radio qu’elle n’était pas a 1’abri de cela. Tout le
monde, qu’il s’agisse d’un sénateur ou de la personne qui
travaille dans votre bureau pour un contrat d’un an, doit avoir un
endroit sdr ou elle peut parler.

Il n’est pas facile de désigner un endroit s@ir. Cela nécessite
une consultation. Il faut en discuter avec les syndicats, méme si
vos employés ne sont peut-&tre pas syndiqués. Les syndicats
peuvent avoir des recommandations de fournisseurs de services
externes, qui sont per¢us comme étant justes par toutes les
parties, et qui peuvent étre recommandés. Ce peut étre une
personne qui a travaillé pour le Sénat par le passé, et qui est
connue des sénateurs, mais qui n’a pas nécessairement de
position. Vous pouvez nommer plus d’une personne, pour
permettre de faire un choix. Le genre est important.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Puis-je vous interrompre un instant?
Que voulez-vous dire par une personne de confiance? Pas
quelqu’un qui va décider de leur cas? Je devrais m’arréter, parce
que mes collégues ont des questions. C’est pour remplacer le
whip, n’est-ce pas, ou le responsable au sein du parti?

Mme Lippel : Je ne sais pas grand-chose des whips, alors je
ne me prononcerai pas.

La sénatrice Jaffer : C’est la personne a qui les gens
s’adressent.

Mme Lippel : Oui, mais la personne de confiance est un
terme juridique tiré de la législation belge, qui a toujours été ma
préférée. Elle est complexe, mais la 1égislation québécoise s’en
inspire. Nous n’avons pas inclus cette personne de confiance.
Nous avons la Commission des normes du travail, maintenant la
CNESST, qui s’occupe de ces affaires, de sorte que vous avez
quelqu’un a qui vous pouvez vous adresser.

Une personne de confiance est une personne-ressource, qui ne
reléve pas du Programme d’aide aux employés. C’est un service
différent. Les universités ont désormais ce genre de chose. C’est
la personne responsable du harceélement. Ce pourrait étre un ou
une ombudsman. Vous devez déterminer le niveau décisionnel
qui répond a vos besoins. Il doit au moins y avoir quelqu’un a
qui parler. Le genre est important. Vous pourriez nommer un
homme et une femme, de facon a avoir deux personnes-
ressources.

[Frangais]

La sénatrice Moncion : Ma question touche la formation et
le développement d’une culture sans harcélement et sans
violence. Avez-vous des commentaires sur [’un ou 1’autre ou sur
ces deux sujets?
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Ms. Lippel: I think that a number of different types of
training are required. The training I would provide for sexual
harassment is different from the training for other forms of
discriminatory harassment. It would also be different for
psychological harassment. I am not a trainer, but I provided
many union training sessions when the Quebec legislation came
into force. Unions in Quebec are responsible, from a legal
standpoint, for representing both the victims and the accused
members of the union. The legislation was integrated into all of
Quebec’s collective agreements.

In 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, a cultural change occurred. We
are talking about thousands of people, as unionization accounts
for 40 per cent, and customized training had to be planned.
Longshoremen do not receive the same training as health
workers.

I am a professor and a researcher. I have seen other training
examples. I am sure, for instance, that Tomlinson provides
training to its executives. That training is different from the one
provided to colleagues. Those services found on the market may
be more able to design customized training based on various
needs.

Senator Moncion: I would like to come back to customized
training. You are talking about various aspects. The federal
government provided training to all members of Parliament and
to their employees. I think that was the only training that
presented all the aspects. Yet you seem to be saying that the
training should perhaps be divided into different aspects. I did
not see the training, so I am unable to comment on it, and you
probably did not see it either. However, you seem to be telling us
that the training should be divided.

Ms. Lippel: There should be a training program. Explaining
your policy to people is one thing. Teaching them about a piece
of legislation or a policy is another. I have been a law professor
for 40 years, and I can tell you that people will fall asleep, but
when the training is about the reality underlying the policy,
people feel engaged.

This may be due to the Government of Ontario’s Bill 132, but
at the University of Ottawa, training is provided at Christmas to
help people consider various situations, such as ways to react
when a subordinate says something. The training is provided
online and is a bit simplistic, but it’s better than nothing. It is
provided in the individual’s office.

It is much more useful to have informed training. For example,
if you have tools such as public service surveys, we can look into
the situation in the Senate, into what people would say. Are the
questions good? There could be training where people react to
the results for the entire public service and can start a dialogue.
That approach is much more educational. It can be adapted to

Mme Lippel : Je pense que plusieurs formations sont
requises. La formation que je ferais pour le harcélement sexuel
est différente de celle pour d’autres formes de harcélement
discriminatoire. Elle est aussi différente pour le harceélement
psychologique. Je ne suis pas formatrice, mais j’ai fait
énormément de formations syndicales lorsque la loi québécoise
est entrée en vigueur. Les syndicats, au Québec, sont
responsables, d’un point de vue 1égal, de la représentation a la
fois des victimes et des accusés qui sont membres du syndicat.
La loi a été intégrée dans toutes les conventions collectives du
Québec.

En 2002, 2003, 2004 et 2005, il y a eu un changement de
culture. On parle de milliers de personnes, car la syndicalisation
se chiffre a 40 p. 100, et il fallait prévoir de la formation sur
mesure. Lorsqu’on parle aux débardeurs, ce n’est pas la méme
formation que lorsqu’on s’adresse aux travailleurs de la santé.

Je suis professeure et chercheure. J’en ai vu d’autres. Je suis
stre, par exemple, que Tomlinson offre de la formation a ses
cadres. Cette formation est différente de celle que I’on offre a
des collegues. Ces services qu’on retrouve sur le marché sont
peut-étre plus aptes a concevoir une formation sur mesure en
fonction des différents besoins.

La sénatrice Moncion : J’aimerais revenir a la formation sur
mesure. Vous parlez des différents volets. Le gouvernement
fédéral a offert une formation a tous les membres du Parlement
et a leurs employés. Je crois que c’était une seule formation qui
présentait tous les aspects. Or, vous semblez dire qu’il faudrait
peut-étre la diviser et prévoir différents volets. Je ne I’ai pas vue,
donc je ne suis pas en mesure de la commenter, et vous ne 1’avez
probablement pas vue non plus. Toutefois, vous semblez nous
dire qu’elle devrait étre divisée.

Mme Lippel : Il devrait y avoir un programme de formation.
Le fait d’expliquer aux gens votre politique est une chose.
Enseigner une loi ou une politique en est une autre. Je suis
professeure de droit depuis 40 ans, et je peux vous dire que les
gens vont s’endormir, mais lorsque la formation porte sur la
réalité qui est sous-jacente a la politique, les gens se sentent
interpellés.

C’est peut-étre attribuable au projet de loi n® 132 du
gouvernement de 1’Ontario, mais a I’Université d’Ottawa, des
formations sont offertes a Noél pour permettre aux gens de se
pencher sur différentes situations, par exemple, sur la fagcon de
réagir lorsqu’un subalterne dit certaines choses. C’est une
formation en ligne, un peu simpliste, mais elle vaut mieux que
rien. Elle est offerte dans le bureau individuel de la personne.

Il est beaucoup plus utile d’avoir une formation informée. Par
exemple, si vous avez des outils comme le sondage auprés de la
fonction publique, on peut se pencher sur la situation au Sénat,
sur ce que les gens diraient. Les questions sont-elles bonnes? On
peut avoir une formation ou les gens réagissent aux résultats
pour I’ensemble de la fonction publique et peuvent entamer un
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various units within the Senate, be it for administrative workers,
senators or officials.

I know that you don’t have a lot of time, and we don’t either,
but we are doing it. The goal is to get people talking to each
other.

I was at the Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council
when the results of that survey were published. The results were
very good for some things and not so good for others. I was with
all the employees when they learned about those results. The
manager came in and said that it was determined that they have
to talk to each other when it comes to certain themes.

The training is there. We have to see who is sitting on the
committee, what must be done and who can provide us with
information on the issue to ensure prevention. When I talk about
training, that is also involved.

Senator Moncion: You mentioned earlier the federal
government’s survey. Is that a survey on employment
conditions?

Ms. Lippel: It is called the Public Service Employee Annual
Survey Results.

The questions I was interested in concerned stress in the
workplace. Those are validated questions. The survey does not
simply ask, “Are you stressed at work?” The questions are the
following: Is your demand high? Is the decisional latitude low?
Those are questions that resonate for scientists around the world.
We know that, if people answer yes to a certain number of
questions, it’s bad for health. There are some questions on
discriminatory harassment, some on sexual harassment and some
on moral harassment.

Senator Moncion: In that survey?

Ms. Lippel: Yes. The questionnaire is on the Internet and can
be downloaded. It refers to every unit of the Canadian
government, from the smallest to the largest. Because your
numbers are below 400, there is an issue of confidentiality. That
survey contains specific tools to ensure that what is happening
locally cannot be identified.

Statistics Canada is not a huge unit. It is merged with three or
four others, which means that more specific information can be
obtained without violating confidentiality.

dialogue. Cette approche est beaucoup plus pédagogique. Elle
peut étre adaptée selon les différentes unités au sein du Sénat,
soit pour les travailleurs administratifs, pour les sénateurs, et
pour les cadres.

Je sais que vous n’avez pas beaucoup de temps, et nous non
plus, mais on le fait. Le but est de faire en sorte que les gens se
parlent.

J’étais au Conseil de recherches en sciences humaines lorsque
les résultats de cette enquéte ont été diffusés. Les résultats sont
trés bons pour certaines choses et moins bons pour d’autres. Je
me trouvais avec 1’ensemble des salariés lorsqu’ils ont pris
connaissance de ces résultats. Une cadre s’est présentée et a dit
ceci : « On constate que, en ce qui a trait a certaines thématiques,
il faut qu’on se parle. »

Elle est 1a, la formation. Il faut voir qui siége au comité, ce
qu’on doit faire et qui peut nous éclairer sur la question pour
faire de la prévention. Lorsque je parle de formation, c’est aussi
ce dont il est question.

La sénatrice Moncion : Vous avez mentionné tout a 1’heure
le sondage du gouvernement fédéral. C’est un sondage qui porte
sur les conditions d’emploi?

Mme Lippel: En anglais, il s’intitule Public Service

Employee Annual Survey Results.

Les questions qui m’intéressaient concernaient le stress au
travail. Ce sont des questions validées. On ne pose pas
simplement la question « Etes-vous stressé au travail? ». Les
questions sont les suivantes : « Est-ce que votre demande est
élevée? Est-ce que la latitude décisionnelle est faible? » Ce sont
des questions qui résonnent pour les scientifiques a travers le
monde. On sait que si les gens répondent oui a un certain nombre
de questions, c’est mauvais pour la santé. Il y a des questions sur
le harcélement discriminatoire, d’autres sur le harcélement
sexuel et d’autres encore sur le harcélement moral.

La sénatrice Moncion : Dans ce sondage?

Mme Lippel : Oui. Le questionnaire se trouve sur Internet et
on peut le télécharger. Il s’adresse a chaque unit¢ du
gouvernement canadien, du plus petit au plus grand. Parce que
vous étes inférieurs en nombre a 400, il y a une question de
confidentialité. Ce sondage contient des outils particuliers pour
faire en sorte qu’on ne puisse déceler ce qui se passe localement.

Statistique Canada n’est pas une énorme unité. Elle est
fusionnée avec trois ou quatre autres, ce qui fait en sorte qu’on
puisse obtenir des renseignements plus spécifiques sans que la
confidentialité soit violée.
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[English]

The Deputy Chair: I appreciate that we started a little bit
late, so I’'m going to shave some time off of the next panel so we
can finish here. I’d say we have five minutes. Senator Moncion,
do you have more?

[Translation]

Senator Moncion: Yes. How should the cultural aspect be
handled? Do you have any comments on how to also change the
culture?

Ms. Lippel: T think that sexual harassment is different from
discriminatory harassment, which is different from moral
harassment. Tolerance for sexual harassment, as has been
illustrated through the #MeToo movement, is a separate
phenomenon.

I hope the culture is starting to change, and we must continue
along that path. We mustn’t forget sexual harassment, but we
also mustn’t forget all the other forms of harassment.

The rate of victimization involving psychological harassment,
in Quebec, for both men and women is at 14.5 per cent,
compared with 2.5 per cent of workers who are victims of sexual
harassment. So it is nearly 10 times higher. In addition, women
are victims of sexual and moral harassment more often than men.

The culture must be changed in each of those cases, and the
best way to do that is to be in charge of our own situation.
People must understand what is happening. When union culture
was changed in Quebec with regard to psychological and sexual
harassment, unions had to get involved in the management of
cases, and that really helped get them mobilized. They were not
comfortable, but they are better allies now when it comes to
prevention. It costs them a fortune when they fail to manage
situations, as they must defend the victim and the accused in
horizontal cases.

Senator Moncion: Okay. Thank you.
[English]

The Deputy Chair: Professor Lippel, we’ve come to the end
of our time. I want to thank you on behalf of the subcommittee
and, indeed, all senators, for your terrific advice here today. It
was crisp, a number of important things that we had not heard
before and a number of things where you’ve reinforced or
challenged what we heard before. We deeply appreciate your
participation.

Ms. Lippel: My pleasure.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président : Je comprends que nous ayons commencé
un peu en retard, de sorte que je vais rogner quelques minutes
aux témoins suivants pour que nous puissions conclure. Je dirais
que nous avons cinq minutes. Sénatrice Moncion, avez-vous
autre chose?

[Frangais)

La sénatrice Moncion : Oui. Pour ce qui est de la culture,
comment fait-on? Avez-vous des commentaires sur la fagon de
modifier aussi la culture?

Mme Lippel : Je crois que le harcélement sexuel est distinct
du harcélement discriminatoire, et ce dernier se distingue du
harcélement moral. La tolérance au harcélement sexuel, tel que
I’a illustré le mouvement #MoiAussi, est un phénomene a part.

J’ose espérer que la culture commence a changer, et il faut
continuer sur cette lancée. Il ne faut pas oublier le harcélement
sexuel, mais il ne faut pas non plus oublier toutes les autres
formes de harcélement.

Le taux des victimes de harcélement psychologique, au
Québec, pour les hommes et les femmes ensemble, contre
2,5 p. 100 de travailleurs et travailleuses victimes de harcélement
sexuel, se situe a 14,5 p. 100. 11 est donc presque 10 fois plus
¢élevé. En outre, les femmes sont victimes de harcélement sexuel
et moral plus souvent que les hommes.

11 faut changer la culture dans chacun des cas, et la meilleure
fagon de s’y prendre, c’est d’étre responsable de sa situation. Il
faut comprendre de quoi il s’agit. Lorsqu’on a changé la culture
syndicale au Québec en maticre de harcélement psychologique et
sexuel, les syndicats ont di intervenir dans la gestion des
dossiers et ¢a a beaucoup aidé a les mobiliser. Ils n’étaient pas a
I’aise, mais quant a la prévention, ils sont les meilleurs alliés
maintenant. Ca leur coite une fortune s’ils ne geérent pas les
situations, car ils doivent défendre la victime de méme que
I’accusé lorsque c’est horizontal.

La sénatrice Moncion : C’est bien. Merci beaucoup.
[Traduction]

Le vice-président : Madame Lippel, nous arrivons a la fin du
temps alloué. Je tiens & vous remercier au nom du sous-comité,
de méme que de tous les sénateurs, pour les excellents conseils
qui ont ét¢ donnés aujourd’hui. C’était clair; vous avez dit un
certain nombre de choses importantes que nous n’avions jamais
entendues, et un certain nombre de choses qui renforcaient ou
remettaient en question ce que nous avions appris auparavant.
Nous vous remercions chaleureusement de votre participation.

Mme Lippel : Tout le plaisir est pour moi.
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The Deputy Chair: For our second panel, I would like to
welcome representatives of the Canadian Human Rights
Commission, Monette Maillet, Deputy Executive Director and
Senior General Counsel; Fiona Keith, Legal Counsel, Legal
Services Division; and Marcella Daye, Senior Policy Advisor,
Policy, Research and International Division.

Thank you very much for bringing your expertise and advice
to the table. We look forward to your comments, and then we’ll
get into questions. The floor is yours.

[Translation]

Monette Maillet, Deputy Executive Director and Senior
General Counsel, Canadian Human Rights
Commission: Good evening. It’s a great pleasure for me to have
been invited to the Senate today. We are happy to share with you
our perspective on human rights.

[English]

I’m very pleased to have with me today my colleagues from
the commission, Fiona Keith and Marcella Daye. We bring you
greetings from our chief commissioner. We are here today to
offer our perspectives and insights as you update your policy.
We hope that our collective legal and policy experience will help
to inform your discussions. Before we turn to that discussion, I’d
like to say just a few words of introduction.

First, we are encouraged by this work you are doing in
revising your own internal policy at the same time that
Parliament is engaged on Bill C-65. It is always heartening to see
an employer take steps to ensure that its policies are aligned with
the Canadian Human Rights Act and that they reflect the spirit of
human rights in Canada. But the Senate is not only an employer.
It is an esteemed part of our democracy. Because of this, we are
especially encouraged that you have made a public commitment
to “walk the talk” and to lead by example.

Second, we know you are undertaking this work while
Bill C-65 proceeds. As you know, our chief commissioner has
appeared before the House of Commons and again, just last
week, before the Senate committee to speak about the bill. She
was also accompanied by my colleagues who are here with me
today.

The Canadian Human Rights Commission supports Bill C-65,
and we were encouraged to see the amendments proposed by the
Senate committee, which more fully integrate human rights. We

Le vice-président : Pour la deuxiéme partie de la séance,
j’aimerais souhaiter la bienvenue aux représentantes de la
Commission canadienne des droits de la personne : Monette
Maillet, directrice exécutive adjointe et avocate générale
principale, Fiona Keith, avocate, Division des services
juridiques, et Marcella Daye, conseillére principale en politiques,
Division des politiques, de la recherche et des affaires
internationales.

Merci beaucoup de nous faire part de votre expertise et de vos
conseils. Nous attendons votre exposé avec impatience, puis
nous passerons aux questions. La parole est a vous.

[Frangais]

Monette Maillet, directrice exécutive adjointe et avocate
générale principale, Commission canadienne des droits de la
personne : Bonsoir. C’est un grand plaisir pour moi d’étre
invitée ici aujourd’hui au Sénat. Nous sommes heureuses de
partager avec vous notre perspective sur les droits de la
personne.

[Traduction]

Je suis trés heureuse d’étre accompagnée aujourd’hui de mes
collégues de la commission, Fiona Keith et Marcella Daye. Nous
vous présentons les salutations de notre commissaire en chef.
Nous sommes ici aujourd’hui pour vous offrir nos perspectives et
idées tandis que vous mettez a jour votre politique. Nous
espérons que notre expérience juridique et politique collective
contribuera a éclairer vos discussions. Avant de passer aux
échanges, j’aimerais dire quelques mots d’introduction.

Premiérement, nous sommes encouragés par le travail que
vous effectuez a réviser votre propre politique interne pendant
que le Parlement s’occupe du projet de loi C-65. 1l est toujours
encourageant de voir un employeur prendre des mesures pour
s’assurer que ses politiques sont conformes a la Loi canadienne
sur les droits de la personne, et qu’elles reflétent I’esprit des
droits de la personne au pays. Toutefois, le Sénat n’est pas
seulement un employeur. C’est une partie respectée de notre
démocratie. Pour cette raison, nous sommes particuliérement
ravis que vous ayez publiquement pris I’engagement de « joindre
le geste a la parole » et de montrer 1’exemple.

Deuxiemement, nous savons que vous entreprenez ce travail
pendant que le projet de loi C-65 est étudié. Comme vous le
savez, notre commissaire en chef a comparu devant la Chambre
des communes, et une autre fois la semaine derniére devant le
comité sénatorial pour parler du projet de loi. Elle aussi était
accompagnée de mes collégues qui sont avec moi aujourd’hui.

La Commission canadienne des droits de la personne appuie le
projet de loi C-65, et nous étions ravis de voir les amendements
proposés par le comité sénatorial, qui intégrent encore plus les
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ask that this subcommittee consider our remarks and our written
submissions that we provided regarding Bill C-65.

Similarly we ask you to ensure that your own internal policies
are in line with a human rights approach. We will be happy to
discuss this more with you this evening.

Last, we want to applaud your commitment to require
mandatory training for all senators, as well as for all supervisors,
managers and staffers. The commission speaks often about the
importance of education as the foundation for preventing
discrimination and harassment. We see this as a commendable
first step by the Senate, and we’re encouraged to see you moving
to implement this without delay.

We will be pleased to answer any questions you may have and
to further discuss your policy this evening. With that, we
welcome any questions you may have, unless my colleagues
have something they’d like to add.

The Deputy Chair: Anything to add? Okay. We’ll go to
questions.

Senator Jaffer: Thank you very much for being here, and
thank you for your patience as well.

You come from a fairly large institution in the sense of the
Canadian Human Rights Commission, and so do we. You spoke
about Bill C-65, and you know we are doing this harassment
policy and doing the mandatory training. Then, there will be the
regulations.

I am really concerned that we have raised expectations. We’re
not there, but we’ve raised expectations. I was hoping that you
could help us to say what the bridging is. All of these things take
time.

I won’t say her name, but I was at an event recently where
somebody from the military, a very well-known woman, said
there’s no time to wait, because every day we wait, somebody’s
life gets destroyed. A young person comes to an institution with
all kinds of expectations, and then that person’s life is gone.
There is no time to wait. I was told that culture takes time to
change.

Now that I am on this path, I’'m not ready to wait to have
somebody else get hurt. So what is the bridging? I could go on
and on, but you’ve heard enough. What is the bridging until we
get all of these things in place?

Marcella Daye, Senior Policy Advisor, Policy, Research
and International Division, Canadian Human Rights
Commission: Thank you for the question, and thank you for

droits de la personne. Nous demandons au sous-comité de tenir
compte de nos observations et du mémoire que nous vous avons
remis concernant le projet de loi C-65.

De méme, nous vous demandons de veiller a ce que vos
propres politiques internes soient conformes a une approche
fondée sur les droits de la personne. Nous serons heureux d’en

discuter davantage avec vous ce soir.

Pour terminer, nous tenons a saluer votre détermination a
exiger une formation obligatoire pour tous les sénateurs, ainsi
que pour tous les superviseurs, gestionnaires et membres du
personnel. La commission parle souvent de 1’importance de
I’éducation afin de prévenir la discrimination et le harcélement.
Nous trouvons que c’est un premier pas louable du Sénat, et nous
sommes ravis de voir que vous comptez mettre en oeuvre le
projet de loi sans tarder.

Nous serons heureux de répondre a vos questions et de
discuter davantage de votre politique ce soir. Sur ce, nous nous
ferons un plaisir de répondre a vos questions, & moins que mes
collégues aient quelque chose a ajouter.

Le vice-président : Y a-t-il autre chose? Bien. Nous allons
donc passer aux questions.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Je vous remercie infiniment d’étre ici,
et de votre patience aussi.

Vous venez d’une institution assez importante, soit la
Commission canadienne des droits de la personne, et nous aussi.
Vous avez parlé du projet de loi C-65, et vous savez que nous
¢élaborons une politique sur le harcélement et une formation
obligatoire. I y aura ensuite des réglements.

Je suis vraiment préoccupée du fait que nous avons suscité des
attentes. Nous ne sommes pas la, mais nous avons haussé les
attentes. J’espérais que vous puissiez nous aider a comprendre la
transition. Toutes ces choses prennent du temps.

Je ne dirai pas son nom, mais j’ai assisté récemment a un
événement ou une membre de ’armée, une femme trés connue, a
dit qu’il n’y avait plus de temps a perdre, car la vie de quelqu’un
est détruite chaque jour ou nous attendons. Une jeune personne
arrive dans une institution avec toutes sortes d’attentes, puis sa
vie est détruite. Il n’y a plus de temps a perdre. On m’a dit qu’il
faut du temps pour changer la culture.

Maintenant que je suis sur cette voie, je ne suis pas préte a
attendre que quelqu’un d’autre soit blessé. Alors, comment la
transition s’effectue-t-elle? Je pourrais continuer encore et
encore, mais vous en avez assez entendu. Qu’adviendra-t-il
jusqu’a ce que toutes ces choses soient en place?

Marcella Daye, conseillére principale en politiques,
Division des politiques, de la recherche et des affaires
internationales, Commission canadienne des droits de la
personne : Je vous remercie de la question et de nous avoir
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having us here. I’ll start, and then my colleagues may have
additional things to add.

Part of the good news is that you are starting that bridging
with the commitment for training. You don’t need new
legislation to do that, nor do you need the regulations. The
quicker you can get that in place, the better.

From my experience in working with employers and reviewing
policies and practices that seem to be addressing similar issues as
this, there are some other practices that don’t necessarily need
legislation or regulation behind them but that can be quite good.
One of those is getting more detailed about the type of training
that you are giving. Culture is hard to change. It does take time;
there is no easy fix. However, there are types of training that can
turboboost your culture change in a way that is more likely to
result in the changes that you are seeking.

For example, passive training, where someone is either sitting
and watching a webinar or sitting in a lecture room and listening
to information, can certainly convey information, and we want
good information to be conveyed. However, more worthwhile
training that can create shifts in empathy and perception and
possibly shifts in culture is based on interactive training that
actually has things like scenarios and role plays that allow people
to understand what the experience is of someone who is feeling
harassed and help them work towards building solutions.

In addition to being training in raising awareness and
providing knowledge, this can also provides skills training and
skills practice that can then be practically put into place the very
next day.

We encourage you, as you are embarking on this training
initiative, to find robust training that engages interactively and in
a meaningful way with the participants and the senators.

Senator Jaffer: Can I ask for a clarification. What do you
mean by “practice”? I understand the skills training. I don’t
know what training will be provided, but we will be going with
parliamentary training and maybe something else. By “practice,”
do you mean practice while we are being trained or after?

Ms. Daye: Some of the most effective training I have seen has
been active training where people are role-playing scenarios in
the training itself, with some guidance. It provides a structural
environment in which to learn. You get to role play a scenario
and then debrief that role play in order to better understand the
dynamics that might happen in a possible harassment situation
and what might be the pathways that make it worse in the

invités. Je vais commencer, aprés quoi mes collégues auront
peut-étre d’autres choses a ajouter.

Une partie de la bonne nouvelle est que vous commencez cette
transition avec un engagement a 1’égard de la formation. Vous
n’avez besoin ni d’une nouvelle loi ni de la réglementation pour
le faire. Plus vite vous mettrez en place les mesures, mieux ce
sera.

D’aprés mon expérience a travailler avec les employeurs et a
examiner des politiques et des pratiques qui semblent s’attaquer
a des problémes semblables, il y a d’autres pratiques qui n’ont
pas nécessairement besoin de D’appui d’une loi ou d’une
réglementation, mais qui peuvent étre trés bonnes. L’une d’entre
elles consiste a donner plus de détails sur le type de formation
que vous offrez. La culture est difficile a changer. Cela prend du
temps, et il n’y a pas de solution facile. Cependant, il existe des
types de formation qui peuvent donner un élan a votre
changement de culture d’une fagon plus susceptible d’atteindre
les résultats que vous recherchez.

Par exemple, la formation passive, ou le participant est assis a
regarder un webinaire ou a écouter des informations dans une
salle de conférence, peut certainement transmettre des
renseignements, et nous voulons bel et bien que des informations
justes soient diffusées. Cependant, une formation plus
intéressante pouvant entrainer des changements sur les plans de
I’empathie, de la perception et possiblement de la culture est
fondée sur I’interaction. Elle comprend des scénarios et des jeux
de role permettant aux gens de comprendre ce que vit une
personne qui se sent harcelée, ce qui les aide a batir des
solutions.

En plus de sensibiliser les participants et de transmettre des
connaissances, cette formation peut également favoriser
I’acquisition de compétences et leur pratique, des compétences
qui peuvent ensuite étre utilisées le jour suivant.

Tandis que vous vous lancez dans cette initiative de formation,
nous vous encourageons a mettre sur pied une formation
rigoureuse qui permet une véritable interaction avec les
participants et les sénateurs.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Puis-je demander une précision?
Qu’entendez-vous par la « pratique »? Je comprends
I’acquisition de compétences. J’ignore quelle formation sera
dispensée, mais nous opterons pour une formation parlementaire,
et peut-étre quelque chose d’autre. Par « pratique », voulez-vous
dire qu’il faut pratiquer pendant la formation ou aprés?

Mme Daye : Certaines des formations les plus efficaces que
j’ai vues sont des formations actives ou les gens participent a des
jeux de role pendant la séance elle-méme, avec quelques
conseils. On y offre un cadre structurel dans lequel il est possible
d’apprendre. Le participant joue un rdle, puis en discute afin de
mieux comprendre la dynamique pouvant survenir dans une
éventuelle situation de harcelement. Il apprend les voies qui
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moment and what might be the skills that could help make it
better in the moment. When that is done in a classroom setting,
with guidance and with knowledge building, then it allows
people to actually practice the skills to both prevent harassment
and to be able to deal with it effectively in the moment.

Senator Jaffer: When we do the training — and this has been
on my mind a lot — do we do it with our peers or with a mixed
group?

Ms. Daye: 1 would invite my colleagues to comment on this.
The best ones I have seen are a mix.

Our chief commissioner often says it starts at the top, and you
have 105 tops. You have all of the leaders in the Senate, and
there is a certain benefit to having peer training amongst
senators.

I am also aware that there has been some discussion around
Bill C-65 about training for bystanders; that is, assisting people
who may witness harassment or to whom somebody who has
suffered harassment first discloses to. That bystander training
can also be helpful amongst a peer group.

The peer groups exist on various levels, so a peer group with
senators, a peer group with supervisors and management, a peer
group with staff, but then it is important to mix these groups as
well so that you can understand the perspectives and debrief
amongst the power dynamics, which are so unique and stark here
at the Senate. You have individuals who have a high degree of
power and, as you said, sort of transient youth who are coming in
to work at the Senate.

Senator McPhedran: Welcome, and thank you for your
ongoing engagement in the various ways in which we are trying
to make this a better place.

The basic question I have is about ideal circumstances. It picks
up on what Senator Jaffer was addressing, which is the need for a
catalyst to change culture.

I am not talking now about Bill C-65. I am talking exclusively
about our workplace, the Senate, and the option for those who
have experienced anything along that continuum of harassment,
of being able to make a complaint out to the commission under
the Canadian Human Rights Act. I know we discussed briefly
maybe one of the only cases where there was an attempt to stop a
Senate staff person from making a complaint under the Canadian
Human Rights Act.

peuvent empirer la situation dans le moment, et les compétences
qui pourraient améliorer les choses a cet instant. Lorsque c’est
fait dans une salle de classe, avec des directives et I’acquisition
de connaissances, cela permet aux participants de véritablement
mettre en pratique les compétences nécessaires pour prévenir le
harcelement et le gérer efficacement sur le coup.

La sénatrice Jaffer : Lorsque nous suivons la formation — et
cette question me préoccupe beaucoup —, le faisons-nous avec
nos pairs ou au sein d’un groupe mixte?

Mme Daye : J’inviterais mes collégues a répondre a la
question. Les meilleurs groupes que j’ai vus étaient mixtes.

Notre commissaire en chef dit souvent que tout commence par
le haut, et vous avez 105 dirigeants. Vous avez tous ces chefs de
file au Sénat, et il y a un certain avantage a dispenser une
formation entre pairs chez les sénateurs.

Je sais aussi que le projet de loi C-65 a suscité des discussions
au sujet de la formation des spectateurs; ce sont des personnes
aidantes qui peuvent étre témoins de harcélement, ou a qui une
personne victime de harcélement s’adresse d’abord. Cette
formation pour spectateur peut également étre utile parmi un
groupe de pairs.

Les groupes de pairs peuvent &tre formés a divers échelons :
un groupe de pairs de sénateurs, un groupe de pairs de
superviseurs et de gestionnaires, et un groupe de pairs de
membres du personnel. Il est toutefois important de mélanger ces
groupes afin de comprendre les points de vue et d’échanger sur
la dynamique du pouvoir, qui est unique et frappante au Sénat.
Vous avez des personnes qui détiennent beaucoup de pouvoir et,
comme vous l’avez dit, des jeunes de passage qui viennent
travailler au Sénat.

La sénatrice McPhedran : Je vous souhaite la bienvenue, et
je vous remercie de votre engagement continu dans nos diverses
tentatives en vue d’améliorer cet endroit.

La question fondamentale que je me pose concerne les
circonstances idéales. Cela fait suite aux propos de la sénatrice
Jaffer, qui parlaient de la nécessité d’un catalyseur pour changer
la culture.

Je ne parle pas du projet de loi C-65. Je parle exclusivement
de notre milieu de travail, le Sénat, et de la possibilité, pour ceux
qui ont vécu quelque chose qui reléve du harcélement, de porter
plainte devant la commission en vertu de la Loi canadienne sur
les droits de la personne. Je sais que nous avons discuté
bricvement d’un des seuls cas, peut-étre, ou on a tenté
d’empécher un membre du personnel du Sénat de déposer une
plainte en vertu de cette loi.
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This is hypothetical. Ideally, is that an essential aspect of
having an effective not only culture change but an ongoing set of
mechanisms to sustain the culture change; in order words, a just
workplace?

Fiona Keith, Legal Counsel, Legal Services Division,
Canadian Human Rights Commission: [ am speaking
generally as a lawyer. I think having third party redress is
important. The commission has always supported internal
redress mechanisms, and they are supported throughout the
public service. Having said that, I think having a third parties to
go to, whether it be filing a labour grievance or a human rights
complaint with the Canadian Human Rights Commission, are
important checks and balances. It is also consistent with the
approach that the victim or the target should be able to choose
his, her or their preferred mechanism and may embark on more
than one mechanism at a time.

Senator McPhedran: If I may continue my hypothetical:
Let’s say that we do have a Senate staff person who has been
aggrieved, reaches out and does make a complaint under the
Canadian Human Rights Act. It would seem that there is a
definite possibility that they would be declined under section 41,
the discretion of your Chief Commissioner. Can you give us a
sense of how often that happens? If I have time, I would like to
move into a question of mediation, but I will stop with the Chief
Commissioner’s discretion question.

Ms. Keith: Culture around enforcement mechanisms changes
as well. We have talked a bit about culture here this evening, but
there is also culture around the use of enforcement mechanisms.
In recent years, particularly in the last three years, I can’t think
of one instance where the commission has exercised its
discretion to defer dealing with a harassment complaint to
another decision maker. To put that in the positive, I can’t think
of any exception to the commission deciding to deal with a
harassment complaint. That is reflective of any number of factors
but also including culture around enforcement mechanisms. The
current thinking is that it is very important to have human rights-
based enforcement mechanisms available to targets of
harassment.

Ms. Maillet: Yes. I agree. In fact, at the commission we have
prioritized  harassment complaints, particularly  sexual
harassment complaints, where we find, for example, in a male-
dominated industry, the women there may be more vulnerable,
so we do prioritize these complaints to ensure that they get the
support that they need.

The Deputy Chair: I think I have lost the plot, and I want to
make sure I understand.

C’est hypothétique. Idéalement, est-ce un aspect essentiel non
seulement pour opérer un changement de culture efficace, mais
aussi pour avoir un ensemble de mécanismes qui soutiennent ce
changement — autrement dit, un milieu de travail juste?

Fiona Keith, avocate, Division des services juridiques,
Commission canadienne des droits de la personne : Je parle
de fagon générale en tant qu’avocate. Je pense que le recours
aupres de tiers est important. La commission a toujours appuyé
les mécanismes de recours internes, qui sont soutenus dans
I’ensemble de la fonction publique. Cela dit, je pense que la
possibilité de faire appel a un tiers, qu’il s’agisse de déposer un
grief relatif au travail ou une plainte en matiere de droits de la
personne aupres de la Commission canadienne des droits de la
personne, sont des mécanismes d’équilibre importants. Cela
cadre également avec I’approche selon laquelle la victime ou la
cible devrait pouvoir choisir son mécanisme préféré et opter pour
plus d’un mécanisme a la fois.

La sénatrice McPhedran : Si je continue avec mon
hypothése : disons qu’un membre du personnel du Sénat se sent
1ésé et dépose une plainte en vertu de la Loi sur les droits de la
personne. Il me semble qu’il est tout a fait possible que la plainte
soit rejetée en vertu de l’article 41, selon la discrétion de la
commissaire en chef. Pouvez-vous nous dire si cela arrive
souvent? Si j’ai le temps, j’aimerais passer & une question sur la
médiation, mais je m’arréterai a la question sur la discrétion de la
commissaire en chef pour I’instant.

Mme Keith : La culture et les mécanismes d’application
changent également. Nous avons parlé un peu de la culture ce
soir, mais il y a aussi la culture relative aux mécanismes
d’application. Au cours des derniéres années — et surtout au
cours des trois derniéres années —, je ne me souviens d’aucun
cas ou la commission ait exercé son pouvoir de discrétion pour
renvoyer une plainte pour harcélement a un autre décideur. Pour
le dire de fagon positive, je ne me souviens pas qu’il y ait eu une
exception : la commission a traité toutes les plaintes de
harcélement. Cette situation est attribuable a plusieurs facteurs,
notamment a la culture relative aux mécanismes d’application.
Selon le point de vue actuel, il est trés important d’offrir aux
cibles du harcélement des mécanismes d’application axés sur les
droits de la personne.

Mme Maillet : Oui. Je suis d’accord. En fait, la commission
accorde la priorité aux plaintes en matiére de harcélement,
surtout aux plaintes pour harcélement sexuel lorsque, par
exemple, dans une industrie dominée par les hommes, les
femmes sont plus vulnérables. Nous accordons la priorité & ces
plaintes afin de veiller a ce que ces femmes aient tout le soutien
dont elles ont besoin.

Le vice-président : Je crois que j’ai perdu le fil et je veux
étre certain de bien comprendre.
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If the Senate of Canada was to establish for its employees and
senators a third-party investigative process, in the case of a
senator, I think the senators would have to sit in judgment, but in
other cases there would be the other. We could do all of that, and
somehow someone would be free to go to the Human Rights
Commission and do it all over again? Is that what we are saying
here? Is that the same in every business or institution? You are a
stand-alone and you can decide where you want to insert
yourselves based on people coming to you. Is that fair?

Ms. Keith: That is correct.
The Deputy Chair: Thank you.
Senator McPhedran: We have a vote.

The Deputy Chair: While we find out what the bells are, we
will hear from Senator Moncion.

Senator Moncion: How often do complaints of harassment
get to your level? There is a mechanism that goes on. How often
does it go to you?

Ms. Keith: The federal human rights system has two parts:
There is the Canadian Human Rights Commission, which is
where we’re from, and there is the Canadian Human Rights
Tribunal. People file complaints with the commission, which is
where we work, and the commission has a look at those
complaints, gathers some facts and decides whether or not that
complaint should be sent to the Canadian Human Rights
Tribunal. The tribunal is the adjudicative body that can actually
award remedies if they find that a complaint has been
substantiated.

In the last 10 years, we have received about 1,100 complaints
of harassment.

Senator Moncion: In the last year?
Ms. Keith: In the last 10 years.

People often achieve success in resolving harassment issues
through other mechanisms. They may decide to discontinue their
complaint with the commission; they may decide not to file a
complaint or not to proceed. Any number of things can happen,
but the law provides that people can have concurrent redress
through the Canadian Human Rights Commission right now.

Senator Moncion: So 1,100 over 10 years is not a lot. I will
rephrase that. It is not a lot if you compare it to the number of
things we are hearing.

Si le Sénat du Canada mettait en place pour ses employés et
sénateurs un processus d’enquéte par un tiers... Dans le cas d’un
sénateur, je crois que les autres sénateurs rendraient un
jugement, mais dans les autres cas, on aurait recours a ce
processus. Nous pourrions faire tout cela et ensuite, la personne
pourrait s’adresser a la Commission des droits de la personne
pour tout recommencer? Est-ce que c’est ce que nous disons ici?
Est-ce qu’il en va de méme dans toutes les entreprises et
institutions? Vous étes indépendants et vous pouvez décider
d’intervenir lorsqu’une personne fait appel a vous. Est-ce exact?

Mme Keith : C’est exact.
Le vice-président : Merci.
La sénatrice McPhedran : Il y a un vote.

Le vice-président : Nous allons entendre la sénatrice
Moncion pendant que nous vérifions pourquoi les cloches
sonnent.

La sénatrice Moncion : Dans quelle mesure les plaintes se
rendent-elles jusqu’a vous? Il y a un mécanisme en place. Selon
quelle fréquence recevez-vous les plaintes?

Mme Keith : Le systéme fédéral des droits de la personne
compte deux volets : la Commission canadienne des droits de la
personne — c’est nous — et le Tribunal canadien des droits de la
personne. Les gens déposent une plainte auprés de la
commission, ou nous travaillons, et la commission 1’étudie. Elle
rassemble les faits et détermine si la plainte doit ou non étre
transmise au Tribunal canadien des droits de la personne. Le
tribunal est I’organisme décisionnel qui peut accorder réparation
s’il juge que la plainte est fondée.

Au cours des 10 derniéres années, nous avons re¢u environ
1 100 plaintes de harcelement.

La sénatrice Moncion : Au cours de la derniére année?
Mme Keith : Au cours des 10 derniéres années.

Les gens arrivent souvent a régler les questions de harcélement
par ’entremise d’autres mécanismes. Ils peuvent décider de
retirer leur plainte auprés de la commission, décider de ne pas
porter plainte ou de ne pas continuer. Il se passe toutes sortes de
choses, mais la loi prévoit un recours simultané par I’entremise
de la Commission canadienne des droits de la personne.

La sénatrice Moncion : Donc, 1 100 personnes en 10 ans, ce
n’est pas beaucoup. Je vais le dire autrement. Ce n’est pas
beaucoup si I’on compare ce chiffre au nombre d’histoires que
I’on entend.
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Ms. Keith: I think we would agree that the number of
complaints that the commission receives is probably not
representative of the incidents of harassment in federally
regulated workplaces.

Senator Moncion: Thank you. That is what I meant. With
what we hear, 1,100 is a lot, but it is not a lot given the size and
scope of everything.

The Deputy Chair: Sorry, we had a mix up. We thought it
was an hour bell but it is not. It is a half-hour bell. The vote is at
7:18 p.m. Do you want to go for another 10 minutes?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Ms. Daye: As we move forward, we are available outside of
this room to have conversations if you have questions and the
time is cut short.

The Deputy Chair: Thank you.

Senator McPhedran: What I would like to move to next is,
again, a hypothetical. The staffer decides to make a complaint.
The commission decides to accept the complaint. There is the
investigation process, and typically — correct me if I’'m wrong
— they end up in mediation. That is often the scenario, and the
record disappears. This is something that I am struggling with in
this institution, namely, the extent to which secrecy shrouds
processes, numbers and what actually happened. Was there a
settlement? Did it involve non-disclosure? What has actually
happened here?

The only way I have been able to find out anything is through
this confidential line that I set up. What is now happening is I'm
hearing about mediations or facilitated discussions and, in effect,
settlements, but it has all disappeared. To some extent, anywhere
where you have mediation in the way they are typically
conducted, that is what happens. For example, the
understandable reaction my colleague has had was saying that is
not much, but a lot of that has to do with what has disappeared
from the record to really understand the extent.

To your knowledge, is there a way to capture more accurate
profiling of what actually has gone on and still allow people the
choice, if it is a genuine choice, to go into a mediation
environment where they may well agree to no longer have
anything on the record?

Ms. Daye: You raise a question that is a question for many
employers and many organizations. It is especially timely now
when we have seen the emergence of the #MeToo movement,
which has brought many complaints that were hidden into the
light. The concerns that you raise are on everyone’s minds.

Mme Keith : Je crois que nous sommes d’accord pour dire
que le nombre de plaintes que regoit la commission n’est
probablement pas représentatif du nombre de cas de harcélement
dans les milieux de travail sous réglementation fédérale.

La sénatrice Moncion : Merci. C’est ce que je voulais dire.
Avec ce qu’on entend, 1 100, c’est beaucoup, mais pas tantque
ca, étant donné 1I’ampleur du probléme.

Le vice-président : Excusez-moi, il y a eu une erreur. Nous
pensions que c’était le timbre d’une heure, mais ce n’est pas le
cas. C’est le timbre d’une demi-heure. Le vote se tiendra a
19 h 18. Voulez-vous poursuivre encore 10 minutes?

Des voix : D’accord.

Mme Daye : Nous serons disponibles pour vous parler si vous
avez des questions et que nous manquons de temps.

Le vice-président : Merci.

La sénatrice McPhedran : Ma prochaine question est une
fois de plus hypothétique. Si un membre du personnel décide de
porter plainte et que la commission décide d’accueillir la plainte.
Il y a un processus d’enquéte et en régle générale — corrigez-
moi si je me trompe —, on finit par passer a la médiation. C’est
souvent ce qui se passe, et le dossier disparait. C’est une chose
avec laquelle j’ai de la difficulté dans cette institution, c’est-a-
dire la mesure dans laquelle le secret voile les processus, les
chiffres et la vérité. Est-ce qu’il y a eu entente? Est-ce qu’il y a
une clause de non-divulgation? Qu’est-ce qui s’est vraiment
passé?

La seule fagon d’avoir des réponses, c’est par I’entremise de la
ligne confidenticlle que j’ai mise sur pied. Ce qui se passe
maintenant, c’est que j’entends parler de la médiation ou des
discussions dirigées et des ententes, mais tout cela disparait.
Dans une certaine mesure, c’est toujours ce qui se passe avec la
médiation selon sa forme habituelle. Par exemple, ma collégue a
eu une réaction compréhensible lorsqu’elle a dit qu’il n’y avait
pas beaucoup de plaintes, mais il faudrait savoir ce qui a disparu
pour bien comprendre 1’ampleur du probléme.

A votre connaissance, y a-t-il une fagon de dresser un portrait
plus juste de la situation tout en permettant aux gens de choisir la
médiation si c’est ce qu’ils souhaitent vraiment, alors qu’ils
accepteront peut-étre que rien ne soit consigné?

Mme Daye : Vous soulevez une question que se posent de
nombreux employeurs et organisations. Elle est d’autant plus
importante depuis 1’émergence du mouvement #MoiAussi, qui a
levé le voile sur de nombreuses plaintes. Vos préoccupations
sont les mémes que celles de tout le monde.
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What I will say about the commission’s own process is that we
successfully mediate about a third of our harassment complaints.
Those mediations are completely voluntary and in many cases
they are preferred. They are the preferred solution for the
complainant for many reasons, including that they don’t want to
have the issue drawn out, that they can find a quicker, easier
solution that takes less time; and that also gives them the
resolution that they need in order to move forward with their life.

There is a kind of empowerment that can happen through a
successful mediation, but there is also data loss. One of our
recommendations to you, as you revise your policy, would be
that you think about how to capture that data and how to capture
that data in a way that it provides an indicator of what might
need attention in the workplace, but that it is disassociated and
anonymous in a way that still protects the confidentiality of
people who move through it.

The lack of ability to gather that data and to use that data for
robust analysis about what equality looks like in your workplace
will be a big loss if it’s not put into the policy. That kind of
requirement may find its way into the regulations, but it may not.
However, it is certainly within your purview to put it strongly
into the policy and to make it very clear to those who are seeking
these informal resolutions that data that captures the nature of the
complaint and helps you analyze the problem and find solutions
on systemic issues is part of the process. Does that help?

Senator McPhedran: Thank you very much.

The Deputy Chair: Colleagues, I don’t want to play chicken
anymore with the clock.

I want to thank you very much. I apologize for the
circumstances today and would ask that if we wanted to call you
back or maybe consult through a video conference or something
throughout the summer, would you consider helping us out some
more?

Ms. Maillet: Of course. We will be available.
The Deputy Chair: Thank you so much.

(The committee adjourned.)

Ce que je dirais au sujet du processus de la commission, c’est
que nous arrivons a régler environ le tiers des plaintes de
harcélement par 1’entremise de la médiation. Cette médiation est
tout a fait volontaire et est privilégiée dans de nombreux cas. Il
s’agit de la solution privilégiée par les plaignants pour de
nombreuses personnes, notamment parce qu’elles ne veulent pas
que le processus s’éternise et qu’il s’agit d’une solution plus
rapide et plus facile, qui leur donne aussi le réglement dont elles
ont besoin pour passer a autre chose.

Une médiation réussie peut redonner un sentiment de controle
aux plaignants, mais elle entraine aussi une perte de données.
Notre recommandation, alors que vous révisez votre politique,
serait de songer a recueillir ces données de maniere a fournir un
indicateur des mesures a prendre au travail, mais a les recueillir
de fagon distincte et anonyme afin de protéger la confidentialité
des personnes qui passent par ce processus.

L’incapacité de recueillir ces données et de les utiliser afin de
procéder a une analyse robuste de 1’égalité en milieu de travail
représentera une perte importante pour la politique. Ce type
d’exigence pourrait se retrouver dans la réglementation, mais
peut-étre pas non plus. Toutefois, il est tout a fait de votre ressort
d’intégrer cette mesure a la politique et de montrer clairement
aux personnes qui souhaitent avoir recours a ces réglements
informels que les données qui saisissent la nature de la plainte et
vous aident a analyser le probléme et a trouver des solutions a
des problémes systémiques font partie du processus. Est-ce que
cela vous est utile?

La sénatrice McPhedran : Merci beaucoup.

Le vice-président : Chers collégues, je ne veux plus jouer au
plus brave avec ’horloge.

Je vous remercie tous. Je suis désolé des circonstances de la
réunion d’aujourd’hui. Si nous voulions vous réinviter ou peut-
étre vous consulter par vidéoconférence au cours de 1’été, seriez-
vous préts a nous aider encore?

Mme Maillet : Bien siir. Nous serons disponibles.
Le vice-président : Merci beaucoup.

(La séance est levée.)
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Katherine Lippel, professeure et titulaire de la Chaire de recherche
du Canada en droit de la santé et de la sécurité du travail.

Commission canadienne des droits de la personne :

Monette Maillet, directrice exécutive adjointe et avocate générale
principale;

Fiona Keith, avocate, Division des services juridiques;

Marcella Daye, conseillére principale en politiques, Division des
politiques, de la recherche et des affaires internationales.
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